

Instruction Manual

9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO

HIOKI E. E. CORPORATION

May 2011 Revised edition 2 9768A981-02 11-05H



Contents

1	Introd Opera	s License Agreement luction ating Precautions rating Environment and Installation	1
	1.1 1.2	Operating Environment	
2	Over	view	7
	2.1 2.2	Main Functions System Configuration Diagram	
3	Oper	ation (Basics)	11
	3.1	 Initial Settings for the Measurement System 3.1.1 Starting MAP Editor 3.1.2 Setting the LAN system 3.1.3 Setting the Wireless system 3.1.4 Auto Recognition of Measurement Modules Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement module) 3.2.1 Common Steps 3.2.2 Setting Measurement Parameters for Models 2301 to 2305 3.2.3 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2306 3.2.4 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2321 3.2.5 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2331 3.2.6 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2332 3.2.7 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2341 3.2.8 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2342 3.2.9 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2343 3.2.10 Common Tab Settings 	12 24 24 42 42 44 45 47 50 50 56 59 61 66 76
	3.3	Monitoring Measurement Values3.3.1Starting and Stopping the Monitor Function3.3.2Displaying a Trend Graph3.3.3Setting the Monitor3.3.4Monitoring Screen Right-Click Menu	80 81 83 86
	3.4	Checking the Current Waveform	

Contents

4

4.4.2

4.4.3

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.5 4.6

3.5	Recording and Acquiring Data	91
	3.5.1 Starting Data Recording	
	3.5.2 Acquiring Recorded Data	103
	3.5.3 Stopping Data Recording	107
3.6	Time Correction	109
3.7	Read the recorded data	111
	3.7.1 Reading the recorded data	111
	3.7.2 Screen Organization of Smart Site Viewer	114
	3.7.3 Main Functions of "Table"	
	3.7.4 Main Functions of "Graph"	
	3.7.5 Main Functions of "Alarm"	
3.8	Acquiring Batches of Waveform Data	
3.9	Displaying Waveform Data	124
	3.9.1 How to Display Waveform Data	
	3.9.2 Using the Waveform Selection Screen	
	3.9.3 Using the Smart Site Wave Viewer	
	3.9.4 Displaying Multiple Waveform Data	
Ope	ration (Advanced)	133
4.1	Creating the Layout	133
	4.1.1 Creating the Layout	
	4.1.2 Switching layouts	
	4.1.3 Right-Click Menus for Layouts and Layout Parts	
4.2	Report Creating Function	157
	4.2.1 Creating a Format File	
	4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file	168
	4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file4.2.3 Auto Report Output	168 170
13	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file 4.2.3 Auto Report Output 4.2.4 Precautions for Report Creation 	168 170
4.3	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file 4.2.3 Auto Report Output 4.2.4 Precautions for Report Creation Calculating Measured Values 	168 170 177
4.3	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file 4.2.3 Auto Report Output 4.2.4 Precautions for Report Creation Calculating Measured Values (PC Calculation Module) 	168 170 177 183
4.3	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file	168 170 177 183 183
4.3	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file	168 170 177 183 183 184
	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file	168 170 177 183 183 184
4.3 4.4	 4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file	168 170 177 183 183 184 185

Checking the Communication Status192

Displaying the Communication Status198

Setting the Administrator Mode199

Managing Module Lists193

I	

4.6.3	Checking Module Information	201
	Acquires all memory data for the measurement n	
	and saves it as a CSV file	202
4.6.5	Advanced Communication Settings	204

5 Alarm Function

207

	5.1	Overview	207
	5.2	Function to evaluate alarms by computer	208
		5.2.1 Alarm operation settings	
		5.2.2 Start alarm operation	
		5.2.3 Displaying the Alarm Log	
		5.2.4 An alarm signal occurs from 2342 Output Module	
	5.3	Function to evaluate alarms by module	217
		5.3.1 An alarm data is saved or an alarm signal is	- · -
		output by the measurement module	217
		5.3.2 An alarm signal is output by using the 2342 Output Module's evaluation function	222
			ZZZ
6	Ope	ration (part Model 2354)	235
	6.1	Overview	235
	6.2	Using Off Line	
	0.2	6.2.1 Constructing the System	
		6.2.2 Saving the Setting to the CF Card	
	6.3	Viewing Recorded Data (Off line)	
	010	6.3.1 Converting Recorded Data	
		6.3.2 Viewing Recorded data with Excel	
	6.4	Collecting Recorded Data with FTP	
	6.5	Sending Recorded Data Automatically	
	••••	by the FTP Client	256
	6.6	Time Correction by SNTP Client.	
	6.7	Recording file size for CF card	
7	Spec	cifications	267
8	9768	-01 Server/ Client Option	271
	8.1	Install the Server Option software	272

- 8.4 Read record data in multiple computers279

iii

Contents

9

8.5 8.6 8.7	Refresh the settings of the module list Refresh the settings (IP address, port numb server computer Specifications	oer) on the 280
9768	8-02 LAN Module Mail Option	283
9.1	Install LAN Module Mail Option	

9.Z	Set conditions for alarm evaluation for	
	the measurement module	
9.3	Set alarm notification	285
9.4	Checking E-mail for Alarm Evaluation Results	
9.5	Setting the Network Alarm Light for	
	the DN-1000 Series	291
9.6	Other Important Points	292
9.7	Specifications	293

10 9768-03 Modbus server Option

10.1	Install the Modbus server option	296
10.2	About Modbus address and data format	297
10.3	Operate the Modbus server	298
10.4	Notes on Modbus communication	300
10.5	Specifications	301

Appendix

303

295

Smart Site Ut	ility Settings Folder Configuration	
Recording fol	der configuration for Smart Site Utility	
Number of W	ireless Relay Steps	305
Wireless Trar	smission Stages	
Cannot Comr	nunicate with LAN	
LAN Termino	logy	
Checking Me	thod for CommunicationPort	
Canceling Sta	andby and Hibernation Functions	
CF card		

User's License Agreement

Important

Please read the following agreement carefully. This user's license agreement (hereafter referred to as Agreement) is a legal contract between the software user (individual or institution) and HIOKI E. E. CORPORATION (hereafter referred to as HIOKI). The term "software" includes any related electronic documentation and computer software and media, as well as any printed matter (such as the Instruction Manual). By installing, reproducing, or using the software, you, the Licensee, agree to

By installing, reproducing, or using the software, you, the Licensee, agree to accept the license terms set forth in this Agreement.

This software is protected by copyright laws, international copyright agreements, as well as non-corporate laws. The software is a licensed product, and is not sold to the user.

1. License

You may install the software on multiple computers controlled by the same administrator.

2. Explanation of other rights and restrictions

- -1. Restrictions on reverse engineering, decompiling, and disassembling: You may not reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the software.
- -2. Separation of components:

This software is licensed for use as a single product. You may not separate the components for use on multiple computer systems.

-3. Loaning:

You may not loan or lease the software.

-4. Transfer of software:

You may transfer full rights in accordance with this Agreement. However, if you do so, you may not retain any copy of the software, but must transfer the software in its entirety (all components, media, related documentation such as the Instruction Manual, and this Agreement), and must ensure that the receiver of the software agrees with the terms set forth in this Agreement.

-5. Cancellation:

In the event that the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement are violated, HIOKI retains the right to cancel this Agreement without compromise of any of its other rights. In this event, you must destroy all copies of the software and its components.

3. Copyright

The title and copyright rights concerning the software's related documentation, such as the Instruction Manual and copies of the software, are the property of HIOKI and other licensors, and are protected by copyright laws and international agreement regulations. Accordingly, you must treat the software as you would any other copyrighted document. However, you are permitted to make a single copy of the software only if the copy is not intended for use other than back-up purposes.

However, you may not reproduce the documentation supplied with the software, such as the Instruction Manual.

4. Dual media software

You may receive the same software on more than one type of media. However, regardless of the type and size of media provided, except when transferring the software as stipulated above, you may not loan, lease, or transfer the other media to any other user.

5. Warranty

- -1. HIOKI reserves the right to make changes to the software specifications without any prior warning. If HIOKI releases a new version of the software, it will provide registered users with information about the revised software.
- -2. If the software does not operate in accordance with the supplied Instruction Manual, or the software media or Instruction Manual are damaged in any way, you have one year from the date of purchase to apply for either an exchange or repair at HIOKI's discretion.
- -3. In no event will HIOKI be liable for any damages resulting from fire, earthquake, or actions of a third party under the conditions stated in item number 2 above, or for any damage caused as a result of your using the software incorrectly or under unusual circumstances. Further, the warranty is invalid if the following occurs:
 - (A) Damage incurred through transport, moving, droppage, or any other kind of impact after you purchased the software.
 - (B) Damage incurred through any form of alteration, unwarranted servicing, or any other type of mistreatment.
- -4. In the event that the software is exchanged or repaired, the period of warranty expires on the latest occurring date out of the day stated in the original warranty, and exactly 6 months from the day the exchanged/repaired software is returned to you.
- -5. Regardless of the grounds for making a legal claim, HIOKI and its licensors will not be liable for any damage incurred (including, but not limited to: lost profits, suspension of business, loss of data or lost savings) unstated in the warranty terms for the use of this software. This is true even if HIOKI is notified of the possibility of such damages. In any event, HIOKI's liability shall be limited only to replacing defective software with software that is not defective.

Thank you for purchasing the HIOKI "Model 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO." To obtain maximum performance from the product, please read this manual first, and keep it handy for future reference.

Verifying Package Contents

When you receive the product, inspect it carefully to ensure that no damage occurred during shipping. If damage is evident, or if it fails to operate according to the specifications, contact your dealer or Hioki representative.

9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO(CD-R)

 Instruction manual

Safety Symbols

The following symbols in this manual indicate the relative importance of cautions and warnings.



Indicates that incorrect operation presents a possibility of injury to the user or damage to the product.

Other Symbols

Indicates references.

•

Notation

- Unless otherwise specified, "Windows" represents Windows 2000, Windows XP, Windows Vista, or Windows 7.
- Dialog box represents a Windows dialog box.
- Menus, commands, dialogs, buttons in a dialog, and other names on the screen and the keys are indicated in brackets.
- Windows and Excel are the registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
- In this manual, the model number is indicated as follows: Example: 2351-20 → 2351 (the number following the "-" is omitted.)

1

Mouse Operation

Click	Press and quickly release the left button of the mouse.
Right-click	Press and quickly release the right button of the mouse.
Double click	Quickly click the left button of the mouse twice.
Drag	While holding down the left button of the mouse, move the mouse and then release the left button to deposit the chosen item in the desired position.
Activate	Click on a window on the screen to activate that window.

Operating Precautions

Follow these precautions to ensure safe operation and to obtain the full benefits of the various functions.



- Always hold the disc by the edges, so as not to make fingerprints on the disc or scratch the printing.
- Never touch the recorded side of the disc. Do not place the disc directly on anything hard.
- Do not wet the disc with volatile alcohol or water, as there is a possibility of the label printing disappearing.
- To write on the disc label surface, use a spirit-based felt pen. Do not use a ball-point pen or hard-tipped pen, because there is a danger of scratching the surface and corrupting the data. Do not use adhesive labels.
- Do not expose the disc directly to the sun's rays, or keep it in conditions of high temperature or humidity, as there is a danger of warping, with consequent loss of data.
- To remove dirt, dust, or fingerprints from the disc, wipe with a dry cloth, or use a CD cleaner. Always wipe radially from the inside to the outside, and do no wipe with circular movements. Never use abrasives or solvent cleaners.
- Hioki shall not be held liable for any problems with a computer system that arises from the use of this CD-R, or for any problem related to the purchase of a Hioki product.

Operating Environment and Installation

1.1 Operating Environment

Computer environment requirements

Hardware	CPU: 1 GHz or higher OS: Windows 2000/XP/Vista/7 .NET Framework 2.0 Internet Explorer 5.01 more
Memory	512 MB or more
Display	Resolution 1024 x 768 dots, 65536 colors or more
Hard disk	At least 30 MB of free space (However, when .NET Frame- work 2.0 is not installed, approximately 500MB alternates are necessary), plus space for stored data (at least 500 MB rec- ommended)
Interfaces	COM port, LAN

1.2 Installation

The installation procedure for the 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO is as follows.

Procedure

 Execute Setup.exe from the English folder on the CD-ROM.
 To install the program under Windows 2000/XP, you must be logged in with Administrator privileges.
 Run installation as an administrator.
 Installation is carried out in two stages.
 Install NET Framework 2.0 (Only when it is not installed on the computer)
 Install 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO If Internet Explorer 5.01 or higher is not installed, an error occurs and it cannot be installed. In that case, install after updating Internet Explorer to the latest version using software such as Windows Update.

2.

If .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed on the computer, the following dialog box opens.

♦ If .NET Framework 2.0 is already installed, proceed to 6. (P. 6).

🐞 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro (English) Setup 🛛 🛛 🔀
For the following components:
.NET Framework 2.0
Please read the following license agreement. Press the page down key to see the rest of the agreement.
MICROSOFT SOFTWARE SUPPLEMENTAL LICENSE TERMS MICROSOFT .NET FRAMEWORK 2.0 MICROSOFT WINDOWS INSTALLER 2.0 MICROSOFT WINDOWS INSTALLER 3.1 Microsoft Corporation (or based on where you live, one of its affiliates) licenses this supplement to you. If you are licensed to use Microsoft Windows operating system software (the "software"), you may use this supplement. You may not use it if you do not have a license for the software. You may use a copy of this supplement with each validly licensed copy of the software.
View EULA for printing Do you accept the terms of the pending License Agreement?
If you choose Don't Accept, install will close. To install you must accept this agreement.
Accept Don't Accept

5

3. Click [Accept], .NET Framework 2.0 is installed.

When the installation of .NET Framework 2.0 is complete, the 9768
 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO installation dialog box opens.
 Go to 6 (P. 6)

If the following screen opens instead of the 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO installation dialog box, click [Yes] to restart the computer.

🐞 9768 Smart Site Utility P	ro (English) Setup	×
Setup must reboot befor	e proceeding.	
Choose Yes' to reboot now or 'No'	to manually reboot later.	
Details >>	Yes	No

After restarting, installation continues automatically.

If the installation is not restarted and the following message appears, execute Setup.exe again. When it is executed again, the 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO installation dialog box opens.

9768 Si	mart Site Utility Pro (English) Setup	×
1	An error occurred attempting to install 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro (English).	
Det	ails >> Close	

5. Install 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO. Click [Next] and follow the on-screen instructions to install.



6. When the following screen appears, installation is complete.

🛃 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro (Eng	glish)		🛛
Installation Complete			
9768 Smart Site Utility Pro (English) has bee	en successfully in	stalled.	
Click "Close" to exit.			
Please use Windows Update to check for a	any critical update	es to the .NET Fra	amework.
-			
-	Cancel	<u>U</u> aol	Close

Overview

2

2.1 Main Functions

The Smart Site Utility has the following functions.



Make communication settings for communication modules and measurement parameter settings for measurement modules



Measurement value monitoring

Monitor windows placed on the background screen allow monitoring close to the actual image.



Trend graph display

Monitor values can be represented as a trend graph.



Data recording and acquisition

The utility can control the recording function of measurement modules, for periodic acquisition of data at specified intervals.



Viewing recorded data and alarm data (Smart Site Viewer)

You can view collected recorded data and alarm data as a table or a graph. You can also print out the graph. Also, table data can be output to Microsoft Excel, and then output as a CSV file.



Create report (Smart Site Viewer)

Using Microsoft Excel, daily and monthly reports can be created, using a format file as a template.



When an alarm is triggered, an alarm log pop-up display and an alarm sound can be generated.



Operation with a CF card

By using a 2354 Memory Module CF card, this can record operations off line. Also, data stored on a CF card can be read and viewed by computer card readers or files downloaded by connecting to FTP.

2.2 System Configuration Diagram

System example 1..... LAN system

3.1.2 "Setting the LAN system" (page 13)



MODULE ID of measurement module^{*2}

- Set within the range 01 to 63.
- Make sure that there are no duplicate MODULE ID settings within the same CAN bus.
- If the communication module is different, duplicate MODULE ID settings are allowed.
- *1 Communication module : Collective name for 2351 Air Module, 2352 Wire Module, 2353 LAN Module, 2354 Memory Module
- *2 Measurement module : Collective name for 2301 Humidity Module to 2305 Instrumentation Module, 2306 Multifunction Module, 2331 Power Meter Module, 2332 Power Meter Module, 2341 Input Module, 2342 Output Module, 2343 RS Link Module

8

System example 2..... Wireless system

✤ 3.1.3 "Setting the Wireless system" (page 24)



When converting LAN ←→ wireless, the [2353] LAN MODULE and the [2351] AIR MODULE are connected within the same CAN bus. Set the [2353] LAN MODULE COM ID to 00.

- Make the ID setting with the rotary switches on the rear of the module. When the POWER LED of a module flashes in red, MODULE ID duplication has been detected within the CAN bus. Change the settings so that all MODULE IDs in the same CAN bus are unique.
- In system configuration diagrams in this Instruction Manual, the power source and the module base have been left out.
- If the POWER LED on each measuring module flashes yellow, the sensor may not be connected or no signal has been input. In this status, continue setting the measurement systems.

10 2.2 System Configuration Diagram

Operation (Basics)

3.1 Initial Settings for the Measurement System

This section describes the procedure for making only the settings that are required for communication, and using auto recognition for the measurement modules.

General procedure



3.1.1 Starting MAP Editor

To use 2300 Smart Site, you need to enter the system configuration (module configuration) into the computer.

To do this, start the Smart Site Utility MAP editor.

- In the MAP editor, you can build the entire module configuration including measurement modules.
- For a simple, you enter the intended module configuration into the computer by making settings only for the communication module and using auto recognition for the other modules.

Procedure

1. Start the Smart Site Utility.

Select [Start] - [All Programs] - [HIOKI] - [SmartSite] - [Smart Site Utility]. The illustration below shows an example for starting the Smart Site Utility in Windows XP.



From the menu bar, select [File] - [Open MAP Editor] to open the MAP editor.

You can also open the MAP editor by selecting [MAP] from the toolbar.

Serect either



13

3.1.2 Setting the LAN system

This section describes how to configure a LAN-based system

(1) Configuring initial settings for a LAN-based system

This description explains how to set up the following example setup:



[2353] LAN MODULE addition, initial settings



Procedure

겱

1. Add [2353] LAN MODULE for COM ID:1.

Drag [2353 LAN Module] from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon in the center.



Right-click on [Computer] to access the popup menu, and then select [Add] - [2353 LAN MODULE] to make the same settings.

The [Communication module settings] dialog box appears.

Co	mmunication Module Settings	×
	2353 LAN MODULE 2.COM ID 🔲 🖃	
3	_ Model Comment	-
	2353 LAN MODULE	
4	LAN (Ethernet) setting	-
ľ	IP address 192 . 168 . 1 . 2 COM Port No. 50000 💌	
	Subnet mask 255 . 255 . 255 . 0 Time Out(ms) 3000 🛁 (300 - 60000)	
	Default gateway	
5		
	Router WAN Side IP address or Name (1 - 65535)	
6		-
	🗖 Send PING periodically	
	Destination IP Address 🛛 Send Period(s) 10 🚍 (10 - 3600)	
		-
	/, — OK Cancel	

2. Verify that [COM ID] is set to [1].

3

- An empty ID is automatically assigned to the COM ID field.
- Any number can be set as long as it does not duplicate other communication modules and IDs.
- Set the rotary switch for the LAN Module to this ID before sending initial settings.

```
3. The [Model Comment] field serves for identifying the communication module to distinguish it from other modules. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand.
```

In the [LAN (Ethernet) setting] fields, enter the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.



4

- For information on how to set these items, consult the network administrator.
- When no default gateway is used, this field may be left blank.



When a LAN module enters an Internet environment through a broadband router, set [WAN Settings].
A WAN global IP address for a broadband router to which a LAN module is connected is set to [Router WAN IP address].

[WAN Settings] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled. 4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)

6. [PING Send Settings] are set so that a ping is regularly sent to the IP address specified from the LAN module.
Click □ from [Send Regular PING], to set the [Destination IP Address] and [Send Period(s)].
[PING Send Settings] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled.

✤ 4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)

7. Click [OK].

The computer and [COM ID:01(2353 LAN Module)] are now connected.



Next [2354] Memory Module is added and initialized.

[2354] Memory Module addition, initial settings



Procedure

1. Add [2354] Memory Module for COM ID:2.

Drag [2354 Memory Module] from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon in the center.



Right-click on [Computer] to access the popup menu, and then select [Add] - [2354 Memory Module] to make the same settings.

The [Communication Module Settings] dialog box appears.

Communication Module Settings 🛛 🔀	Communication Module Settings 🛛 🔀
	2354 MEMORY MODULE COMID 2 -
Model Comment	Model Comment
2354 MEMORY MODULE	2854 MEMORY MODULE
Basic settings Advanced settings	Basic settings Advanced settings
LAN (Ethernet) setting	C FTP server settings
IP address 192.168.1.4 COM Purt Na. 1997.	OOM Port No. 21 - (1 - (5535) (Standard 21)
Subnet mask 255 . 255 . 255 . 0 Time Out(ma) (000 -60000)	T Use user authentication
Submet mask 255 + 255 + 255 + 0 Time Out(ma) (300 - 60000) Default esteway . Number of refry	Duer Name Pacoword
	FTP cleart sattags
DNS server	T Use
	FTP server OF address or name)
AN SetTings/Sommunicate vis Enternet using broadband nourse port toprisiding/ Router WAN Side COM Port No. (0.1111/0.11111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.11111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.1111/0.11111/0.1111/0.11111/0.1111111/011111/01111/011111111	COM Part No: [71 - (1 - 65535) (Standard 21)
P address or Name	User nome Password
Call Sollings	Server clore
OF the History	path I time to a construction
Destination (P Address Send Period(a) (10 - 3000)	A Philipe man. A summer man.
Precord settines	SNTP client settings
Operation when insufficient storage space on the OF	T Use
Continue recording (Delete Old files) C Stop recording	Time to correct more
File format in CF	The second second shall a
Create a CSV file * Abinary file is always created * The data of 2043 is not saved at a CSV file	Pressedutor Prantition difference man
- Alarm date finskadnik werelerin datal storake ereinter 2021 in OF	NTP server QP address or name/
Allerm data storace srea 00 0 = 0 = 100	COM Fort No. 100 - 655350 (Standard 123)
OK Cancel	
OK Cancel	OK Cancel

Verify that [COM ID] is set to [2].

An empty ID is automatically assigned to the COM ID field.

- Any number can be set as long as it does not duplicate other communication modules and IDs.
- Set the rotary switch for the Memory Module to this ID before sending initial settings.
- З. The [Model Comment] field serves for identifying the communication module to distinguish it from other modules. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand.

4 In the [LAN (Ethernet) setting] fields, enter the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.

For information on how to set these items, consult the network administrator.

When no default gateway is used, this field may be left blank.

5. When a Memory Module enters an Internet environment through a broadband router, set [WAN Settings]. A WAN global IP address for a broadband router to which a Memory Module is connected is set to [Router WAN IP address]. [WAN Settings] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled. 4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)

6. [PING Send Settings] are set so that a ping is regularly sent to the IP address specified from the Memory Module. Click I from [Send Regular PING], to set the [Destination IP Address] and [Send Period(s)]. [PING Send Settings] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled.

4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)



8. In [FTP server settings], set the authentication method for the FTP connection to the memory module. Click □ from [Perform user authentication], to set the [User name] and [Password] when connecting to an FTP.

✤ 6.4 "Collecting Recorded Data with FTP" (page 252)

9. In [FTP client settings], set the function that automatically sends the recorded data of the memory module to the FTP server once a day. Click □ from [Use], to input the [FTP server], [User name], [Password], [Server store path] and [Transfer time] and to select the [Active mode] or [Passive mode].

♦ 6.5 "Sending Recorded Data Automatically by the FTP Client" (page 256)

In [SNTP client settings], set the function that corrects the time of memory module with NTP server once a day.
 Click □ from [Use], to set the [Time to correct time], [Time difference with UTC], [NTP server] and [COM port].
 ♦ 6.6 "Time Correction by SNTP Client." (page 258)

11. Click [OK].

20

The computer and [COM ID:02(2354 Memory Module)] are now connected.



This completes initial settings on the MAP editor. Save the settings you created.



Next, the initial settings are sent to each communication module.

(2) Sending LAN system settings

Sending settings to [2353] LAN Module, [2354] Memory Module

Initial settings are sent to [COM ID:01 (2353 LAN Module)] or [COM ID:02 (2354 Memory Module)]. Send via LAN. The following is the setting procedure for the LAN module. Send settings to the mem-

The following is the setting procedure for the LAN module. Send settings to the memory module in the same way.

Procedure

1. The COM ID for the LAN Module is set to 01. (Set with the rotary switch on the rear of the module) 2. Connect the power supply module and 2353 LAN Module to the module base, and turn power on. З. Connect the LAN module with the computer by a cross cable or a straight cable via a hub, and then turn on the power to the LAN Module. 2353 LAN MODULE Computer COM ID: 01 5 LAN unin (cross cable) 2353 LAN MODULE Computer Hub COM ID: 01 5 <u>àcaic</u> LAN (straight cable)

4. In the MAP editor, select [COM ID: 01 (2353 LAN Module)] and right-click to access the popup menu. Then select [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].



5.

The following [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].

Send settings to modules.
COM ID: 01 (2353 LAN MODULE)
Send settings to connected modules.
Send via LAN. Send settings. after connecting 2353 to communication modules and LAN.
Options
☐ Do not send settings to measurement modules.
6> Send End

6.

Click the [Send] button to initiate the transmission.

When the settings have been sent, the message [Settings sent.] appears. Verify that the procedure was successful, and click the [OK]- [End] button to close the dialog box.



ŢŢ,

When the settings are sent, the internal clock of the module will be set to the same time as the clock of the computer.

Note

When the IP address for the network address set in the LAN module and for each computer (network group) is different, the following dialog box opens.



This means that after successfully setting the IP address for the LAN module, a communication test was carried out between the computer and the LAN module, but communication was not possible because the network group is different. The LAN module settings are successfully completed.

If an error occurs

If the following dialog box opens, sending the initial settings has failed. Check the following items and then try again.



This completes sending settings to the LAN MODULE for COM ID:1.

354 MEMORY MODULE COM ID: 01

3.1.3 Setting the Wireless system

This section describes how to set up a wireless system.

(1) Configuring initial settings for a wireless system

This description explains how to set up the following wireless system:



LAN←→Wireless conversion ([2353] LAN Module +[2351]AIR Module) Eaddition, initial settings



Procedure

F

1. Drag [2353LAN+2351 Air Module] from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon in the center.



Right-click on [Computer] to access the popup menu, and then select [Add] - [2353LAN + Air Module] to make the same settings.

The [Communication Module Settings] dialog box appears.

Communication Module Settings	×
2351 AIR MODULE 2. COM ID COM ID COM ID COM ID 0]
2353 LAN + 2351 AIR MODULE Wireless communication settings Frequency band 03Band ▼ Channel 23 ▼ ID code 0 ⊕ (0 - 65535)	
IP address 192.168.1.3 COM Port No. 50000 x Subnet mask 255.255.255.0 Time Out(ms) 1500 x Default gateway . Number of retry 2 x	
WAN Settings(Communicate via Internet using broadband router port forwarding) Router WAN Side IP address or Name COM Port No. 50002 (1 - 65535) 8.	



(J

- An empty ID is automatically assigned to the COM ID field.
- Any number can be set as long as it does not duplicate other communication modules and IDs.
- Set the rotary switch for the LAN Module to this ID before sending initial settings. (The LAN module ID is set to [0])
-)
- **3.** The [Model Comment] field serves for identifying the communication module to distinguish it from other modules. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand. (20 characters or less)
- **4.** In the [Air Module settings] section, select the frequency band, frequency channel, and ID code. You may initially want to leave these settings in the default condition.
- 5. In the [Antenna settings] section, select the [Use both A and B antennae] button only when two antennas are used.
- 6. In the [LAN (Ethernet) setting] fields, enter the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.
 - For information on how to set these items, consult the network administrator.
 - When no default gateway is used, this field may be left blank.

7.

- When a LAN module enters an Internet environment through a broadband router, set [WAN Settings].
 - A WAN global IP address for a broadband router to which a LAN module is connected is set to [Router WAN IP address].
 - [WAN Settings] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled.
 - ✤ 4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)

8. Click [OK].

The computer and [COM ID:01(2353 LAN + 2351 Air Module)] are now connected.



9.

Next, connect to the [COM ID: 02 (2351 Air Module)]. 2353+51complete1.pngUse the same procedure as described for step 1.



- The drop target icon is [COM ID 01(2353 LAN + 2351 Air Module)] (because Air Module occurs via the [COM ID 01(2353 LAN + 2351 Air Module).)
- [COM ID] of [Communication Module Setting] should be set to [2].
- The same settings as the current highest level Air Module are automatically assigned for the frequency band, frequency channel, and ID code.

The computer and the [COM ID: 01 (2353 LAN + 2351 Air Module)] and [COM ID: 02 (2351 Air Module)] are connected.

MAP Editor Edit	
	_ # 1
2332 POWER 2341 INPUT METER MO. 2014 MODULE PC COM ID: 01 (2353 LAN + 2351 AIR MODULE) 2342 OUTPUT 2343 R5 LINK MODULE MODULE	Measurement Module List of COM ID: 02 (2351 AIR MO
236T AIR 2352 WIRE MODULE MODULE	
2353 LAN 2354 MODULE MEMOR.	
2353 LAN + 2351 AIR	HI .



[2351] Air Module addition, initial settings

Procedure

 Add [2351] Air Module for COM ID:3. Drag [2351 Air Module] from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon in the center.





Right-click on [Computer] to access the popup menu, and then select [Add] - [2351 Air Module] to make the same settings.

28
The [Communication Module Settings] dialog box appears.

	2351 AIR MODULE 2.COM ID S
3.	Model Comment 2351 AIR MODULE
4.	Wireless communication settings Frequency band 03Band Channel 20 ID code 0 (0 - 65535)
6	RS232C settings COM port COM1
	8.—► OK Cancel

Verify that [COM ID] is set to [3].

- An empty ID is automatically assigned to the COM ID field.
- Any number can be set as long as it does not duplicate other communication modules and IDs.
- Set the rotary switch for the Air Module to this ID before sending initial settings.
- **3.** The [Model Comment] field serves for identifying the communication module to distinguish it from other modules. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand. (20 characters or less)
- 4.
 - In [Air Module settings] set the frequency band, frequency channel, and the ID code.

Because a different wireless system already exists in the system constructed in this manual (COM ID:1 and COM ID:2 Air Module...frequency channel 23), it is necessary to set a frequency channel other than 23 to prevent wireless interference.



5. In the [Antenna settings] section, select the [Use both A and B antennae] button only when two antennas are used.

6. In the [RS-232C setting] - [COM port] field, select the COM port to be used for RS-232C communication.

7. For [Retry Frequency], if a communication error occurs in RS-232C communication, reset the communication retry frequency. [Retry Frequency] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled.

4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)

8. Click [OK].

About Air Module

- The [Frequency band] and [Channel] settings determine the frequency that will be used for Air Module.
- Even if the wireless frequency matches, no communication is possible between two devices if the [ID code] setting is not matched, or the frequency is occupied. Verify the [ID code], or change the wireless frequency.
- Appendix 4 "Wireless Transmission Stages" (page 306)

The computer and [COM ID: 03 (2351 Air Module)] are now connected.



9.

Æ

Next, connect to the [COM ID: 04 (2351 Air Module)]. Use the same procedure as described for step 1.

- The drop target icon is [COM ID 03 (2351 Air Module)] (because Air Module occurs via the [COM ID 03 (2351 Air Module)].
- [COM ID] of [Communication Module Setting] should be set to [4].
- The same settings as the current highest level Air Module are automatically assigned for the frequency band, frequency channel, and ID code.

The computer and the [COM ID: 03 (2351 Air Module)] and [COM ID: 04 (2351 Air Module)] are connected.



This completes Air module initial settings on the MAP editor. Save the settings you created.

siin.	Smart Site	Utility - [Standard
Site	MAP Editor	Edit
	Save Sett	tings Ctrl+S
	Advanced	Settings
23 MB	Quit MAP	Editor

Next, the initial settings are sent to each communication module.

(2) Sending wireless system settings

Sending settings to LAN $\leftarrow \rightarrow$ Wireless conversion ([2353] LAN Module + [2351] Air Module)

Initial settings are sent to [COM ID:00 (2353 LAN MODULE)] or [COM ID:01 (AIR MODULE)]. Send via LAN.

Procedure

 The COM ID for the LAN MODULE is set to 00 and the COM ID for the Air Module is set to 01.

(Set with the rotary switch on the rear of the module)



For LAN $\leftarrow \rightarrow$ wireless conversion, make sure you adjust the COM ID for the LAN module to 00.

- 2. Connect the power supply module and LAN Module, Air Module to the module base, and turn power on.
- **3.** Connect the LAN Module with the computer by a cross cable or a straight cable via a hub, and then turn on the power to the LAN Module and Air Module.



4. In the MAP editor, select [COM ID: 01 (2353 LAN Module+2351 Air Module)] and right-click to access the popup menu. Then select [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].





The following [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].





Click the [Send] button to initiate the transmission.

7. When the settings have been sent, the message [Settings sent.] appears. Verify that the procedure was successful, and click the [OK]- [End] button to close the dialog box.

SmartSiteUtility 🔣
Settings were sent.
ОК



When the settings are sent, the internal clock of the module will be set to the same time as the clock of the computer.



If an error occurs

If the following dialog box opens, sending the initial settings has failed. Check the following items and then try again.

1	COM ID: 01	(2353 LAN + 2351	AIR MODULE) no	t found on LAN.
<u>•</u>				

•	Is the COM ID of the 2353 LAN Module correct? (Is the same number for COM ID set in the MAP editor?)	 1. (Page 32) 2.(Page 26)
•	Is the 2353 LAN Module COM ID set to 00?	
•	Was the sending process attempted while the 2353 LAN Module was still in the initialization phase (about 10 sec- onds after power-on)? Please send settings after initialization.	



This completes the process of sending settings to the 2353 LAN MODULE with COM ID: 00 and the 2351 WIRELESS MODULE with COM ID: 01.

 Next, send the settings to [COM ID:02 (2351 Air Module)]. Send the settings by following the same procedure as procedure 1.(Page 36) to 8.(Page 38). (Set the COM ID for the Air Module to [2])

Sending settings to [2351] Air Module

Send initial settings to [COM ID:03 (2351 Air Module)]. Send via RS-232C.

Procedure

36

- The COM ID for the Air Module is set to 03. (Set with the rotary switch on the rear of the module)
- 2. Connect the power supply module and Air Module to the module base, and turn power on.
- **3.** Use LAN cable as shown in the illustration below to connect the 2353 LAN Module to the computer. The settings will be sent via the hub on the LAN.



4. In the MAP editor, select [COM ID: 03 (2353 LAN Module)] and right-click to access the popup menu. Then select [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].



5. The following [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].



6. Check that the COM port settings match and then press [Send] to send the settings.

7. When the settings have been sent. Click the [OK]-[End] button to close the dialog box.

 SmartSiteUtility
 Settings were sent.

 Settings
 Settings

 In this example, measurement module setup is not performed. Therefore

the check/uncheck status of [**Options**] has no effect. When the settings are sent, the internal clock of the module will be set to the same time as the clock of the computer.

If an error occurs

If the following dialog box opens, sending the initial settings has failed. Check the following items and then try again.



Is the COM ID of the 2351 Air Module correct? (Is the same number for COM ID set in the MAP editor?)	✤ 1.(Page 36)
Does the [COM port used to send settings] setting match the actual COM port to which the cable is connected?	6.(Page 37) Appendix 7 (page 310)
Is a cross-wired (null-modem) RS-232C cable being used?	✤ 3.(Page 36)
Was the sending process attempted while the 2351 Air Module was still in the initialization phase (about 10 seconds after power-on)?	Please send set- tings after initializa- tion.
Is another application currently using the COM port?	Terminate the ap- plication and restart Smart Site Utility.

In the same way, send the settings also to the [COM ID 04(2351 Air Module)].

Reconnect the RS-232C cable to the [COM ID 04(2351 Air Module)] and repeat steps 1 and 8 of the procedure.

(Set the COM ID for the wireless communications module to [04].)



8.

Before sending the settings, make sure that the RS-232C cable is connected correctly.

This completes sending settings to the AIR Module for COM ID:3 and COM ID:4.

This completes the process of configuring initial settings for all communications modules. Exit the MAP editor.

<Notes> [2352] Wire Module Eaddition, initial settings

Although no examples are given in this manual, use the same procedure to add and initialize the [2352] Wire Module.

Procedure

 Drag [2352 Wire Module] from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon in the center. The [Communication Module Settings] dialog box appears.

2352 WIRE MODULE	<mark>2,</mark> сом і	D 1 -		
3 Model Comment 2352 WIRE MODULE				
COM port	COM1 💌	Number of	retry 2 💌	
		5.→	ок	Cancel

2. Verify that [COM ID] is set to [1].

- An empty ID is automatically assigned to the COM ID field.
- Any number can be set as long as it does not duplicate other communication modules and IDs.
- Set the rotary switch for the Wire Module to this ID before sending initial settings.
- 3.

The [Model Comment] field serves for identifying the communication module to distinguish it from other modules. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand.

In the [RS-232C setting] - [COM port] field, select the COM port to be used for RS-232C communication.
 For [Retry Frequency], if a communication error occurs in RS-232C communication, reset the communication retry frequency.
 [Retry Frequency] can be changed when [Advanced Settings] is enabled.
 4.6.5 "Advanced Communication Settings" (page 204)



Sending settings to [2352] Wire Module

Although no examples are given in this manual, use the same procedure to send settings to the [2352] Wire Module.

Procedure

40



5. The following [Transmit Data Setting to Modules].

Send settings to modules,
COM ID: 01 (2352 WIRE MODULE)
Send settings to connected modules.
Send settings after connecting cable to RS-232C port of communication module.
Send settings COM port
Options Do not send settings to measurement modules.
6> Send

- 6. After checking [COM port used for settings], press [Send] to send the settings.
- **7.** After sending is complete, click [OK] [End] to close the dialog box.

Sma	artSiteUtility 🔣
Se	ttings were sent.
	ОК

\square	=
	\neg
0	귀
_	

When the settings are sent, the internal clock of the module will be set to the same time as the clock of the computer.

If an error occurs

If the following dialog box opens, sending the initial settings has failed. Check the following items and then try again.

	iteUtility	
1	COM ID: 01 (2352 WIRE MOD Communication timeout	ULE

•	Is the COM ID of the 2351 Air Module correct? (Is the same number for COM ID set in the MAP editor?)	✤ 1.(Page 40) 2.(Page 39)
•	Does the [COM port used to send settings] setting match the actual COM port to which the cable is connected?	6.(Page 41) Appendix 7 (page 310)
•	Is a cross-wired (null-modem) RS-232C cable being used?	♦ 3.(Page 40)
•	Was the sending process attempted while the 2351 Air Module was still in the initialization phase (about 10 sec- onds after power-on)? Please send settings after initialization.	

3.1.4 Auto Recognition of Measurement Modules

- Install the communication modules and measurement modules in the actual measurement locations, and turn power on.
- The communication module connection method is as follows.



Procedure

2.

1. On the menu bar, click the [COM] button. The [Confirm communication and module list] dialog box appears.

Smart Site Utility - [Standard]		
e(F) Monitor(M) Recond Lt diver(A) Tool(f)		
lodule List Layout List		
Confirm if the box is checked.	Confirm communication and module list. If measurement module not found in the list. If settings on the module are different from those on the PC C Adjust to the settings on the PC C Adjust to the settings on the module Display Detail Execute End Again Again Confirm communication Confirm communication	
		22:19:5

Verify that the [Add recording module not found in the list] check box is selected, and then click [Execute].

3.

When the check is complete, recognized modules will be added to the [Module list] as circled in the illustration below.



In this example, measurement module setup is not performed. Therefore the status of the check boxes for [If recording module in the list is not found, delete it from the list] and [If settings on the module are different from those on the PC] has no effect.

The above completes the initial setup of the measurement system. Most functions described below in this instruction manual are performed for a specific measurement module, after selecting that module from the [Module list].

If an error occurs

F

If the following dialog box opens, a communication malfunction has occurred in the system installed. Check the following items



• Was the setting transmission to the communication module completed?

✤ 3.1.3 (page 24)

- Were the LAN cable and the RS-232C cable connected correctly?
- Is the module connected to the power supply?
- Was communication checked during communication module setup (about 10 seconds immediately after power-up, about 20 seconds for the memory module)?

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement module)

3.2.1 Common Steps

To set the operation parameters for a measurement module, you should first bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.

Procedure

Select the measurement module from the [Module list].

2.

Right-click to access the popup menu. Then select [Set Modules] (Top menu).



3.2.2 Setting Measurement Parameters for Models 2301 to 2305

Procedure

Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)

2.

Set the [Basic Settings] tab.

The diagram is an example of Model 2305.

The [Basic Settings] tab for Models 2301 to 2305 is the same except for the part enclosed by the red frame (4 to 8: settings particular to each measurement module).

2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE (COM ID: 02 MODULE ID: 05)
2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE 1 MODULE ID 5 Firmware Version 2.38
2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE
Basic Measurement item Record Alarm (Module) Alarm (Computer)
3-CH1 ✓ Use Range Current CH2
Use Range Current
4 to 8 Specific measurement module settings
Send Close

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

	Setting item	Description		
1	MODULE ID	ID number of the measurement module You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor.		
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters). 		
3	CH use indicator	 Select the CH to use. The data recording, alarm output, and measurement error check functions for that channel are turned off. This is convenient to prevent spurious alarm output or LED flashing. 		
4	Model 2302 (specific setting) Pt	Sets the Pt type.	[Pt100 / JPt100]	
5	Model 2303 (specific setting) Thermocouple	Sets the thermocouple type.	[K / E / J / T]	
6	Model 2304-20 (2304-21) (specific setting) Filter	 Controls the filter setting. *Only setting Model 2304-21 is enabled for the [Filter] for CH2. 	[OFF / ON]	
7	Model 2304-20 (2304-21) (specific setting) Input Terminal	 Select an input terminal. 	[Use +Lo / Use +Hi]	
8	Model 2305(specific setting) Range	Sets the voltage or current range.	[50 mV / 500 mV / 5 V / 50 V / Current]	
9	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication. 		



Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -1.(Page 76).

Δ

Set the [Record Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -2(Page 77).

5. Set the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Module)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -3(Page 78).

6.

Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).

When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the measurement module.

3.2.3 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2306 Procedure

Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box. 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)

2. Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.

306 MULTI-FUNCTION MODULE 1 MODULE	ID 1 Firmware Version 2.38
2306 MULTI-FUNCTION MODULE	
2306 MULTI-FUNCTION MODULE	
Basic Measurement item Record Alarm (Modu	le) Alarm (Computer)
The best noise i	removal result for regions in which commercial powe
Digital Filter 60Hz Frequencies are 6	60 Hz. nt sample is once every 2 seconds.
CH1	
🔽 Use	IV Use
Meas TC Disconnetion Detection	Meas Items Voltage 💌
Range K	Range 5V 💌
CH2	CH6 Use
Meas Items Voltage	
T	Meas Voltage
Range 5V 💌	Range 5V 💌
CH3	CH7
✓ Use	🔽 Use
Meas Voltage 💌	Meas Items Voltage 💌
Range 5V 💌	Range 5V 💌
CH4	
✓ Use	✓ Use
Meas Items Voltage 💌	Meas Items Voltage 💌
Range 5V 💌	Range 5V 💌

Setting item		Description
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the 2306 Multifunction Module. You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor.
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).

	Setting item	Description	
	Digital Filter		digital filter setting, it is possible to have a highly accurate set- tle variation.
		OFF	 Highly accurate measurements are only possible under excellent environments without any noise. The influence of extraneous noise such as commercial power and inverters causes large variations in measurement values. The measurement sample is once every 1 second.
3		60 Hz	 The best noise removal result for regions in which commercial power frequencies are 60 Hz (Western Japan). The measurement sample is once every 2 seconds.
		50 Hz	 The best noise removal result for regions in which commercial power frequencies are 50 Hz (Eastern Japan). The measurement sample is once every 2 seconds.
		10 Hz	 The most satisfactory noise removal effect in Eastern and Western Japan. It is possible to remove both 50 and 60 Hz commercial frequencies. It also makes it hard for high frequency noise (tens of KHz) from inverters etc. to have any influence. The measurement sample is once every 10 seconds.
4	CH Settings	 Sets the measurements for each CH. *1: See the following for CH settings 	
5	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicat- ing with the module by sending settings or checking communication. 	

*1 : Detailed CH Settings Sets the measurements for each CH.

	CH1	
1	✓ Use	
	2 Meas Items TC	Disconnetion Detection
	3Range K	▼ 5 Ext RJC sensor

Setting item		Description		
1	CH use indicator	 Select the CH to use. The data recording, alarm output, and measurement error check functions fo that channel are turned off. This is convenient to prevent spurious alarm output or LED flashing. 		
2	Measurement Item	 Set the type of measurement. 	[Thermocouple/Pt/Voltage/Current]	
3	Range	 Set the type of range. The choices vary depending on the item set by the measurement item. 	Thermocouple: [K/E/J/T/R] Pt: [Pt100 / JPt100] Voltage: [50 mV / 500 mV / 5 V / 50 V] Current: 30 mA	
4	Disconnection Detection	 Select when performing thermocouple measurement disconnection detec- tion. *This is necessary only when thermocouple is selected as the measurement item. 		
5	Reference Junction Compensation External	 Select when you want to set external reference junction compensation for thermocouple measuring. When this is cleared, it is set to internal. *This is necessary only when thermocouple is selected as the measurement item. 		

3. Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -1.(Page 76).

4.

Set the [Record Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -2(Page 77).

Important

For 2306, there are times when restrictions appear for recording intervals with digital filter settings. The following combination cannot be set.

Digital Filter: Recording interval 60 Hz, 50 Hz: 1, 5, and 15 seconds 10 Hz: 1, 2, 5, and 15 seconds



Set the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Module)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -3(Page 78).

<u>6</u>.

Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

- For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).
- 7.
 - When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2306 Multifunction Module.

3.2.4 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2321

Procedure

Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)

2. Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.

321 WAVEFORM MODULE 1odel Comment	1 MODULE ID 1 Firmware Version 2.38	
2321 WAVEFORM MODU	LE	
asic Measurement item 	Trigger (CH1) Trigger (CH2) Record Alarm (Computer)	2 Trig
🔽 Use	Normal Mode Wave Comparator Mode	A
Analog Settings Measurement Bange		
Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling	1ms(1k\$/s)	c
Memorv Settinas Memory Partitions	2 Data Length 32000 + (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger	3200 ** (3.20s) Post Trigger 0 ** (0.00ms)	
-CH2		
Use	Mode Settings Normal Mode Wave Comparator Mode	
Analog Settings 4 Measurement Bange	5V 5 Low-pass Filter OFF	
Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling	1ms(1kS/s)	
Memory Settinas 7 Memory Partitions	2 • 8 Data Length 32000 • (32.00s)	
9 Pre Trigger	3200 ± (3.20s) 10 Post Trigger 0 ± (0.00ms)	

Setting item		Description
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the 2321 Waveform Module. You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor.
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).
3	CH use indicator	 Select an input terminal. The data recording, alarm output, and measurement error check functions for that channel are turned off. This is convenient to prevent spurious alarm output or LED flashing.
4	Measurement Range	Select a measurement range.
5	Low-pass Filter	 Set the low-pass filter used in the analog detection section.

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

Setting item		Description
6	Measurement Sampling	Set the measurement sampling.
7	Memory Partitions	 Set the number of partitions for waveform acquisition memory.
8	Data Length	 Set the acquisition data length after a trigger occurs.
9	Pre-trigger	 Set the data number to acquire before the start trigger occurs.
10	Post trigger	 Set the data number to acquire after the stop trigger occurs.
11	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicat- ing with the module by sending settings or checking communication.
12	Trigger	 Acquire the current waveform data. This can be used for firmware version 2.36 or later. For details, see 3.4 "Checking the Current Waveform" (page 88).

For details on each item, see chapter 8 in the 2300 SMART SITE manual.



Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -1.(Page 76).



Scaling sets Inst for each CH.

Set [Trigger (CH1)], [Trigger (CH2)]. Set the settings for each CH trigger condition, pre-trigger, post trigger, trigger filter, and trigger output.

2321 WAVEFORM MODULE (COM ID: 23 MODULE ID: 01)	
2321 WAVEFORM MODULE MODULE ID 1 Firmware Version 2.38	
Model Comment	
2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	
Basic Measurement item Trigger (CH1) Trigger (CH2) Record Alarm (Computer) I - CH1	Trigger —
Mode Settings	
IV Use I Normal Mode C Wave Comparator Mode	ALL
Analog Settings	
Measurement 5/ Low-pass Filter OFF	
Sampling Settings	
Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling 1ms(1kS/s)	CH1
Memory Settinas	
Memory Partitions 2 Data Length 32000 + (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger 3200 + (3.20s) Post Trigger 0 + (0.00ms)	CH2
010	
2 CH2 Mode Settings	
Vise C Normal Mode C Wave Comparator Mode	
Analog Settings	
Measurement 5V Low-pass Filter OFF	
Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling 1ms(1kS/s)	
3 Memory Settings	
4 Partitions 2 Data Length 32000 ± (32.00s)	
4	
Pre Trigger 3200 ± (3.20s) Post Trigger 0 ± (0.00ms)	
Send	

	Setting item	Description
1	Start Trigger	Set the trigger conditions for beginning waveform recording.
2	Stop trigger	 Set the trigger conditions for stopping waveform recording.
3	Trigger filter	Set a trigger filter for the analog trigger and the logic trigger respectively.
4	Trigger output	 Set the trigger output method when a trigger occurs. Three types can be set: Saving waveform, Continuous output, and Fixed time (you can set 1 to 255 seconds)
5	Waveform data pixel skipping	 Select the checkbox to perform pixel skipping on waveform data. You can set 2 to 32000.

✤ For details on each item, see chapter 8 in the 2300 Smart Site manual.

4.

5. Set the [Record Settings] tab.
For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" - 2(Page 77).
6. Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.
For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).
7. When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2321 Waveform Module.

Note

When the settings are changed, the trigger doesn't work during about five seconds after transmitting the settings.

3.2.5 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2331

Procedure

- Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)
- 2. Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.

2331 POWER METER MODU	LE 1 MODU	ILE ID 31 👻	Firmware Version 2.3	8
Model Comment	•	,		
2331 POWER METER MO	DULE			
Basic Measurement item	Record Alarm (Mo	dule) Alarm (Comp	uter)	
Measuring line	1			
1P2W 💌				
Measuring range				
	100V -	5 Clamp-on sensor Current range	9695-02 50A 💌	
			.,	
Scaling C (RT) coling		00 7 CT) 1 📑 (1 · 1000	0
	I (1 · 1000		, 11 ⊇ (1·1000	UJ

	Setting item	Description		
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the measurement module You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor. 		
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters). 		
3	Measuring line	 Serves to select the type of measurement line. Make the setting so that it matches the actual measurement connection. Regarding the connection method, refer to the instruction manual of the Model 2331. 		
4	Voltage range	 Check the voltage range. The actual setting must be made with the switch on the unit. The setting cannot be changed here. 		
5	Clamp-on sensor Current range	Select according to the type of clamp sensor being used.		

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

Setting item		Description
6	Scaling VT (PT) ratio	 Sets the VT (PT) ratio. (Voltage value shown on measurement screen = actually measured voltage x VT (PT) ratio) Used when a transformer is used in the voltage measurement line.
7	Scaling CT ratio	 Sets the CT ratio. (Current value shown on measurement screen = actually measured current x CT ratio) Used when a current transformer is used in the current measurement line.
8	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication.

Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -1.(Page 76).

4.

З.

Set the [Record Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -2(Page 77).

5.

Set the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Module)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -3(Page 78).



Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).

7. When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2331 Power Meter Module module.

3.2.6 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2332

Procedure

- Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)
- **2.** Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.

2 POWER METER	MODULE MODULE ID 32 🔽 Firmware Version 2.38	
del Comment		
332 POWER MET	ER MODULE	
sic Measurement	t item Record Alarm (Module) Alarm (Computer)	
Measuring line —	5 LED Monitor	
1P2W	▼ 4 Max circuit 6 ▼ UIP	•
Clamp-on sensor C		
(I1/I2) 9765	5A 🗸 (13/14) 9765 5A 🔽 (15/16) 9765 5A	-
[0100		_
Scaling		
VT (PT) ratio	1 * VT/CT range (1 · 10000)	
8 CT ratio	(11/12) 1 1 (13/14) 1 1 (15/16) 1 1	
	9 ⊙x1 ○x1/10 ○x1/100	
	Module Hardware	
	Normal	

	Setting item	Description		
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the measurement module You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor. 		
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewe when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningfu and easy to understand (up to 40 characters). 		
3	Measuring line	 Serves to select the type of measurement line. Make the setting so that it matches the actual measurement connection. Regarding the connection method, refer to the instruction manual of the 2332 Power Meter Module. 		
		[1P2W / 1P3W / 3P3W]		

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

	Setting item	Description
4	Max circuit	 Sets the number of circuits to be measured. The data for the number of circuits selected here will be recorded as measurement values. Data for other circuits will not be recorded. For common voltages, [1P2W] can be set to 1 to 6, and [1P3W] and [3P3W] can be set to 1 to 3.
5	LED Monitor	 Monitor display selections for POWER LED. For normal measurements, use [Voltage/Current/Power Monitoring Mode]. For measuring current only (no voltage input), use the Current Monitoring Mode. [Voltage/Current/Power Monitoring Mode] In the following cases, the LED flashes yellow. When the voltage is beyond the effective input, the current exceeds the range, or the effective power is negative. [Current Monitoring Mode] When the current exceeds the range, the LED flashes yellow. There is no influence from the voltage and effective power.
6	Clamp-on sensor Current range	 Select according to the type of clamp sensor being used. Can be set for each of the two channels [(11/12)], [(13/14)], and [(15/16)].
7	Scaling VT (PT) ratio	 Sets the VT (PT) ratio. (Voltage value shown on measurement screen = actually measured voltage x VT (PT) ratio) Used when a transformer is used in the voltage measurement line.
8	Scaling CT ratio	 Sets the CT ratio. (Current value shown on measurement screen = actually measured current x CT ratio) Used when a current transformer is used in the current measurement line. Can be set for each of the two channels [(11/12)], [(13/14)], and [(15/16)].
9	Scaling x1,x1/10,x1/100	 Serves to set the CT ratio to a fraction. [x1/10]:CT ratio is 0.1. [x1/100]:CT ratio is 0.01. The setting applies globally to [(11/12)], [(13/14)], and [(15/16)].
10	Firmware	• The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication.

3.

Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -1.(Page 76).

4.

Make settings under the [Record Settings] tab.

These settings are used for the data recording function. You can set the [Rec. Interval] and [Recording Mode].

Basic | Measurement item Record | Alarm (Module) | Alarm (Computer) |

Precording interval				
2 Recording Mode				
INST	I AVE	🗆 мах	🖂 MIN	
3 Recording item				
U 🖓		P P	ΓQ	
PF	🔽 FREQ	VP+		
-				

	Setting item	Description
1	Rec. Interval	 Sets the interval in which measurement values are recorded in the internal memory.
2	Recording Mode	 Select the type of measurement value to save in the internal memory. Select all required items from the available choices: instantaneous value, [AVE] (average value), [MAX] (maximum value), [MIN] (minimum value). Common recording mode settings (instantaneous value, MAX, MIN, AVE, instantaneous value +MAX, MIN, AVE) do not apply to this module. Be sure to make the settings from this screen, regardless of the common settings.
3	Recording item	 Select the measurement item (parameter) to save in the internal memory. Select all required items from the available choices: [U] (Voltage), [I] (Current), [P] (Effective power], [Q] (Reactive power), [PF] (Power factor), [FREQ] (Frequency), [WP+] (Effective power within interval time). Be sure to select at least one item.

Important

5.

Set the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Module)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -3(Page 78).

6.

Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).



When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2332 Power Meter Module.

3.2.7 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2341

Procedure

- Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)
- **2.** Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.

341 INPUT MODULE	1 MODULE	ID 41 🔻 F	irmware Version 2.38	
Model Comment				
234TINFOT MODULE	•			
Basic Record Alarm	(Computer)			
СН1	_	СН5		
🔽 Use 🗸	🖡 Logic C Active Hi	∏ Use		
Comment	Active Lo			
CH1				
CH2				
🔽 Use	Logic 🔿 Active Hi	🗌 Use		
Comment	 Active Lo 			
CH2				
CH3		1 - CH7		
IV Use	Logic 🔘 Active Hi	L Use		
	 Active Lo 			
Comment				
СНЗ				
CH4		CH8		
🗖 Use		🗖 Use		

	Setting item	Description		
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the 2341 Input Module You cannot make changes from this screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the MAP editor. 		
2	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters). 		
3	СН	Selects the channel to use.		
4	CH logic	 Select [Active Hi] or [Active Lo]. Example: [Active Lo] is selected When a contact short or similar (Lo level) input is detected, the internal alarm (evaluation result) becomes ON. INPUT LED on the 2341 main unit is green at Lo level input (regardless of the logic setting). 		

	Setting item	Description
5	Comment	 The string entered here serves to identify the channel. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).
6	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication.

3. Make settings under the [Record Settings] tab.

These settings are used for the data recording function.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -2(Page 77).

2341 records data when there is a change in status (ON \rightarrow OFF, OFF \rightarrow ON) in logic (measured values). Aside from this, if you want to record logic data at specified intervals, select [Record input data at specified intervals] and select the recording interval.

Basic	Record Alarm (Computer)
•	Recording the data at specified interval
F	ecording interval
	1min 💌

POINT

- Because this can be set when recording starts if all measurement modules have a common recording setting, you do not need to set it here.
 - If you want to set each measurement module, set before this window.

Important

2341 saves each effective CH ON/OFF change in the memory as alarm information regardless of the settings in [Record Settings].



Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).



When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2341 Input Module.

3.2.8 Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2342

Procedure

- Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)
- 2.
- Make settings for the various items.

There are two modes. Select the appropriate mode with the [Watch Settings] item.

PC Control Mode	The alarm output of the Model 2342 is controlled from the computer.
Alarm Mode	The Model 2342 monitors and evaluates the data from mea- surement modules on the same CAN bus and activates alarm output as necessary.

The tab contents change, depending on the selected mode. When [Alarm Mode] is selected, the tab settings also change depending on which module is being monitored.

Using PC control mode

For [Operating Mode Settings], select [PC Control Mode].



Required setting items (common to [PC Control Mode] and [Alarm Mode]

Setting item		Description					
	Setting item						
1	MODULE ID	ID number of the 2342 Output Module Cannot be changed from the main screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the [MAP editor].					
2	Model Comment	The string entered here serves for identifying the module to distinguish it from other modules. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).					
3	Use	 Selects the channel to use. For CH in which [Use] is not selected, port output is set to Hi (transfer OFF). 					
4	Logic	 Select [Active Hi] or [Active Lo]. When the alarm evaluation result for the specified channel becomes ON (alarm output), the selected signal is output. Example: [Active Hi] is selected When the internal alarm (evaluation result) changes from OFF to ON, the output transistors change from ON to OFF (alarm signal = output transistors OFF). (Alarm signal = Output Hi Output transistor OFF) The OUTPUT LED is green when the output is Lo (output transistor is ON). (regardless of the logic setting). 					
5	Comment	The string entered here serves to identify the channel. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).					
6	Output Reset Settings	 This function is intended to prevent inadvertent resetting of the Model 2342 output if the [ALARM RESET] switch is pushed by mistake 					
7	Operating Mode Settings	 Select one of the following modes, depending on the intended purpose. [PC Control Mode]: The alarm output of the Model 2342 is controlled from the computer. [Alarm Mode] : The Model 2342 monitors and evaluates the data from measurement modules on the same CAN bus and from the input module. It is also possible to monitor the data from a power meter module or similar connected to the Model Model 2343. Data are compared to threshold settings for evaluation, and the alarm output is activated according to the result. 					
8	Firmware	 Displays the firmware version numbers for any modules with which data was exchanged in the course of sending settings or verifying communications. 					

Setting item when [PC Control Mode] is selected

	Setting item	Description
9	Set Value Output	 When [ON] is selected, the alarm signal is output according to the logic evaluation result. When [OFF] is selected, the alarm signal is disabled. To switch the output signal, click the [ON] or [OFF] button, and then click the [Send] button.
10	One-Shot Pulse Output	 Generates a single output pulse based on the settings.

Setting item when [One-shot pulse output] is selected

	Setting item	Description
11	Pulse width	Sets the width of the one-shot pulse.
12	Output Delay	 Sets how long to wait before outputting the one-shot pulse.
13		 Generates one-shot pulse output during check operation and when the power is turned on.

Using alarm mode	
 For [Operating Mode Settings], select [Alarm Mode]. First, set the required items. * "Required setting items (common to [PC Control Mode] and [A 62) 	larm Mode]" (page
CH1 CH2 CH3 CH4 CH5 CH6 CH7 CH8 Alarm (Computer) CH settings ✓ Use Logic C Active Hi Disable ALARM RESET switch of COM Comment ⓒ Active Lo Disable ALARM RESET switch of COM Module Mode Settings ○ PC Control Mode ⓒ Alarm Mode(Monitoring module on the same CAN bus) Monitoring module 2 Measurement item	
ID: 05 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODUL CH1 Alarm Settings Upper 120 L Gutput Settings Output Settings Alarm port output CH1 CH1 CH2 CH3 CH4 CH5 CH6 CH7 Refresh at every sampling	

Common settings for all modules

	Setting item	Description
1	Module Type	Select the monitoring module.
2	Monitored Measurement Item	 In [Monitoring Module] select which measurement item to monitor from the specified module. * When input module Model 2341 is specified in [Monitoring Module], this setting item is not displayed.
3	Alarm output control	 Select from the following two methods of alarm port output from the module. [Save Alarm Status]: Once the alarm signal output has been activated, it stays on regardless of the subsequent evaluation result. [Update at each sampling]: The result of the comparison and evaluation process that occurs each second is reflected in the state of the output. To clear the alarm, the [ALARM RESET] switch on the communication must be pressed for at least 1 second.
4	Alarm Priority CH	 A function to force alarm evaluation result OFF when the high priority CH evaluation result is ON Select the channel which has highest output priority. If the function is not required, select nothing here. Example: On the CH8 settings screen, when the CH alarm priority is set to CH2. When the CH2 evaluation result is ON, the CH8 alarm evaluation result is forced OFF.

Monitor Settings	
Monitoring module	Measurement item
ID: 05 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION M	
Alarm Settings	
Upper 120 L	L 6 Filter width 10 sec
Lower	L

Setting items when watching Models 2301 to 2306,2321,2331,2332

64

	Setting item	Description
5	Upper Lower	 Enter the lower and upper alarm threshold values When no value is entered, there is no maximum or minimum evaluation. The setting range is -1E+07 to -1E-07, 0, 1E-07 to 1E+07.
6	Filter Time	 This function serves to suppress spurious alarm signal output that may be caused when the watched module indicates an abnormal measurement value due to transient noise or another cause. When the specified filter duration for evaluation results is the same, the alarm evaluation result (ON/OFF) as well as the port output are changed. When [OFF] is selected, the evaluation result for each second is reflected in the output. Example: Filter time set to 5 seconds Internal alarm OFF→ ON change: When ON condition persists 5 times in succession, the alarm signal is output. Internal alarm ON → OFF change: When OFF condition persists 5 times in succession, the alarm signal is output.

Monitor Settings								
Monitoring module								
ID: 41 (2341 INPUT MODULE)	-							
Alarm Settings								
8 · 08				7 Moi	nitoring	СН		
C AND	CH1	CH2	CH3	CH4	CH5	CH6	CH7	CH8
9 Filter width 1 💽 sec	▼	Γ	•	Γ		Γ	Γ	

Setting items when watching Model 2341

Setting item		Description
7	Monitoring CH	Select the channels of the Model 2341 to watch.
8	OR/AND	 When several CH are selected in [CH Monitoring], set evaluation under either OR/AND conditions. Example: When CH1 and CH3 are selected in [CH Monitoring], and [OR] is selected, if either CH1 or CH3 for Model 2341 turn ON, Model 2342 alarm is output (ON).
9	Filter Time	 This function serves to suppress spurious alarm signal output that may be caused when the watched module indicates an abnormal measurement value due to transient noise or another cause. When the specified filter duration for evaluation results is the same, the alarm evaluation result (ON/OFF) as well as the port output are changed. When [OFF] is selected, the evaluation result for each second is reflected in the output. Example: Filter time set to 5 seconds Internal alarm OFF→ ON change: When ON condition persists 5 times in succession, the alarm signal is output. Internal alarm ON → OFF change: When OFF condition persists 5 times in succession, the alarm signal is output.
3. Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.
* For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).
4. When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the set-

When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2342 Output Module.

Important

Model 2342 saves each effective CH ON/OFF change in the memory as alarm information.

Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2343 3.2.9

The 2343 RS Link Module communicates with external equipment with an RS-232C port and acquires data for the external equipment. Multiple commands registered beforehand are transmitted, and the response data from the external equipment is saved as it is. You can set how this response data is interpreted, and handle it as optional measurements.

The 2343 RS Link Module has two types of settings, optional equipment and MELSEC made by the Mitsubishi Electric Corporation.

Optional Equipment (Page 67)

The module supports equipment that satisfies the following requirements:

- When a command is transmitted, response data must be returned
- The command transmitted is a fixed command
- Reception must have a condition to determine when reception ends (reception delimiter)
- Response data must be no more than 250 bytes in length.
- The response data format should be any of the following:
- (1) In ASCII format using commas and semicolons to delimit numeric data (many **HIOKI** products)
- (2) In ASCII format using any one character to delimit data
- (3) In binary format fixed length data (big/little endian)
- (4) Modbus RTU protocol

Mitsubishi Electric Corporation MELSEC (Page 72)

Serial communications unit for Q/A series and QnA series sequencers

In communication with MELSEC, the frame for data communication uses A compatible 1C frame format 1.

Alternately, set the MELSEC checksum to [None].

Note for data type DWORD and BCD12

In Smart Site Utility, all values are treated as single-precision floating points (float), although these can be interpreted as 32bit integers. Therefore the accuracy falls (canceled) for values where the significant digit exceeds 24bit.



Setting items

	Setting item	Description
1 MODULE ID		 ID number of the RS Link Module Cannot be changed from the main screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the [MAP editor].
2	Connection Model	 Selects the optional equipment to use.
3	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).
4	Firmware	 The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication.
5	Command input format	 Select either ASCII format or binary format (hexadecimal form) as the command input format.
6	Measurement command	 Multiple entries can be input, and one line becomes one sending command. Input using the command input format you set.

Setting items

	Setting item	Description
7 Communication period		 Communicate with the optional equipment in the communication period set here. However, when the communication period for the recording interval is not divided during recording, it operates under the assumption that the communication period = the recording interval. Setting range: you can set from 1 to 255 seconds in 1 second units.
8	Wait between commands	 Set the wait between communication commands for optional equipment. When sending several measurement commands, after the previous command's response has ended, wait until the next command is sent. (This is because, depending on the equipment, it might not be able to receive the command immediately after the response is sent.)
9	Interpretation settings for received data	 Set how data at certain positions is interpreted for response data saved in Model 2343. * In order to set the interpretation method, you need a good understanding of the response data specifications for the external equipment.
10	Measurement item settings	 Set the specification for the read data and interpretation method for the received data. *: See Detailed Settings for Measurement Items

*: Detailed Settings for Measurement Items When the interpretation settings for received data are as follows: "ASCII format using commas and semicolons to delimit numeric data" "ASCII format using any one character to delimit numeric data"

Measurement Item				
	Item position	MEAS Item Name	Unit	
	2	Current	A	
Þ	5	Humidity	%rh	
*				

Item position • Set what item to retrieve from the response data.			
The name of the measurement item retrieved. (40 characters or less) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file.			
The units of the measurement item retrieved. (20 characters or less) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file.			
 When item 9 above, "Interpretation settings for received data," is set to "ASCII format using any one character to delimit numeric data," set the delimiter here. 			
Interpretation settings for received data			
In ASCII format using any one character to delimit data			
Measurement Item Delimiter Other > -			

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

Example: To acquire current and humidity

Assume that commands trigger comma-delimited responses as follows:

- "MEASURE1," the command to acquire current, results in response data consisting of "voltage, current, resistance."
- "MEASURE2," the command to acquire humidity, results in response data consisting of "temperature, humidity."

In this case, the following settings should be made:

Command (N lines describes the data for N time)	
MEASURE1 MEASURE2	^
MEASURE2	V
< >	

Set the interpretation settings for received data to "ASCII format using commas and semicolons to delimit numeric data" and enter the commands into the measurement command field as shown above.

Set the interpretation settings for received data to "ASCII format using commas and semicolons to delimit numeric data" and enter the commands into the measurement command field as shown above.

received data	voltage	current	resistance	temperature	humidity
Item Positions	1	2	3	4	5

Consequently, position 2 should be set for current and position 5 for humidity.

When the interpretation settings for received data are as follows: "Binary format fixed length data (big endian)" "Binary format fixed length data (little endian)" "Modbus RTU"

Interpretation settings for received data						
In binary format fixed length data (big endian)						
Measurement Item Please input a BIT position, only when a data type is BIT.						
	Readout byte		Data type	BIT position	MEAS Item Name	Unit
*			•			

Int	Interpretation settings for received data							
M	Modbus RTU							
Measurement Item								
	Slave number	Data address	Data type	MEAS Item Name	Unit			
	1	30001	WORD 💻 H	lumidity	C			
*	÷							

Readout byte position	Set what	Set what byte to retrieve from the response data.		
	PleaseWhen u	what type to use to interpret the received data. note, there is a possibility that DWORD will be canceled. Ising a Modbus RTU, DWORD/FLOAT data is interpreted as little endian. BYTE data cannot be used.		
	BIT	 Interpret the specified BIT of 1 byte received data as a unsigned integer. 		
	BYTE	 Interpret 1 byte received data as a signed 8bit integer. 		
Data turna	UBYTE	 Interpret 1 byte received data as an unsigned 8bit integer. 		
Data type	WORD	 Interpret 2 byte received data as a signed 16bit hexadecimal form inte- ger. 		
	UWORD	 Interpret 2 byte received data as an unsigned 16bit hexadecimal form integer. 		
	DWORD	 Interpret 4 byte received data as a signed 32bit hexadecimal form inte- ger. 		
	FLOAT	 Interpret 4 byte received data as a single-precision floating point. 		
BIT position (When the data type is BIT)	 When y 	 Look at which bit is set in 1 byte by hexadecimal format. When you can see bit 0 use "01", when you can see bit 4 to 7 use "F0", in this way, make the bit you want to see 1 with a hexadecimal descriptor. 		
Measurement Item Name		 The name of the measurement item retrieved. (40 characters or less) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file. 		
 Units The units of the measurement item retrieved. (20 characters) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CS 		is of the measurement item retrieved. (20 characters or less) r the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file.		
Slave no. (Modbus RTU)	Sets the Modbus device slave number.			
Data address (Modbus RTU)	 Ordinar 	 Sets the data address. Ordinarily, bit data addresses start at 10001, while integer and floating point (input register) data addresses start at 30001. 		



Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" - "Measurement Item" (Page 76).

4.

Set the [Record Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -"Record Settings" (Page 77)

5.

6.

Set the [Sending Settings] tab.

Match the sending rate, parity, data length, and the stop bit to the settings for the external equipment.

B	asic 🛛 Measurement item 🗍 Record	Communication Alarm (C	omputer)
	Communication		
	1 Baud Rate	9600bps 💌	[
	2 Parity	NONE	
	3 ^{Data Length}	8bit 💌	
	4 Stop Bit	1bit 💌	
	5 ^{Sending} Delimiter	NONE	[
	6Receiving Delimiter	TIMEOUT	[
	Reception Timeout	300	[msec]
	Byte Interval Timeout	50	[msec]

	Condina Doto	T		
1	Sending Rate	•	1200bps to 57600bps	
2	Parity	None/Odd number/Even number		
3	Data Length	•	7bit / 8bit	
4	Stop Bit	•	1bit / 2bit	
5	Sending Delimiter	•	Data added after the send command. (Usually used to communicate in the ASCII format) None/CR+LF/CR/LF	
6	Receiving Delimiter	•	Allows for a chance to determine when reception ends. CR+LF/CR/LF/Timeout	
7	Reception Timeout	•	The timeout value after the command is sent until the first 1 byte is received.	
8	Byte Interval Timeout	•	The reception timeout value after the second byte. When a reception delimiter is timed out, reception is determined to have ended if no data is received after this interval.	

Set the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -"Alarm Settings (Computer)"(Page 78)

- 7. When the settings are complete, click the [Send] button to send the settings to the 2343 RS Link Module.
- 8. Check whether communication with external equipment is performed correctly by clicking the [Communication check after sending settings] button from the [Basic Settings] tab after sending settings is complete.

	COM check
Send	Close

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement



Selecting Mitsubishi Electric Corporation MELSEC

Procedure

Bring up the [Module settings] dialog box.
 3.2.1 "Common Steps" (page 44)

2. Make settings under the [Basic Settings] tab.



Setting items

	Setting item	Description	
1	MODULE ID	 ID number of the RS Link Module Cannot be changed from the main screen. Can only be changed during the initial setup of the [MAP editor]. 	
2	2 Connection Model • Selects the MELSEC.		
3	Model Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the module. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters). 	
4	Firmware	• The firmware version number for the module appears when communicating with the module by sending settings or checking communication.	

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

Setting items

	Setting item		Description		
5	Communication period	here. However, when the com during recording, it ope period = the recording in	here. However, when the communication period for the recording interval is divided during recording, it operates under the assumption that the communication period = the recording interval.		
6	Wait between commands	 When sending several mand's response has e because, depending on 	Set the wait between communication commands for optional equipment. When sending several measurement commands, after the previous com- mand's response has ended, wait until the next command is sent. (This is because, depending on the equipment, it might not be able to receive the com- mand immediately after the response is sent.)		
7	Code Numbers	number set in MELSEC.	 Setting range: 00 to 31 (enter decimals) Set the same number as the code number set in MELSEC. Setting range: 00 to 31 (enter decimals) 		
8	PC Numbers	 Set the same number as the PC number set in MELSEC. Setting range: 00 to FF (enter hexadecimals) 			
9	Number of Digits for Device	 Only when reading a high order device (device for which 6 digits are neces- sary), set the number of digits for the device to 6. 			
		 Set the specification interpretation method for the read data and the received data. *Multiple data types cannot be read in a command. For example, when interpreting the D0 to D7 register, divide the 8 pieces of data for column BCD4 into 8 separate descriptors. 			
		Device	Specify the device name of the data to read.		
		Device number	Specify the device number of the data to read.		
10	Command settings (Measurement item settings)	Data type	 Select what type to use to interpret the received data. Please note, there is a possibility that DWORD, BCD12 will be canceled. * See Details for data type 		
		Measurement Item Name	 The name of the measurement item retrieved. (40 characters or less) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file. 		
		Units	 The units of the measurement item retrieved. (20 characters or less) Used for the measurement value monitor display and the CSV header file. 		

* Details for the data type

	BIT	1 byte received data is regarded as BIT data.
	WORD	Interpret 4 byte received data as a signed 16bit hexadecimal form integer.
	UWORD	Interpret 4 byte received data as an unsigned 16bit hexadecimal form integer.
Data type	DWORD	 Interpret 8 byte received data as a signed 32bit hexadecimal form integer. Interpret as replacing low bytes and high bytes. Example Received data: "1234 0567" (hex) Data is interpreted as "0567 1234" (hex), is read by signed 32bit, and is converted into decimals. Therefore, the measurement is "90640940" (decimal).
	BCD4 / 8 / 12	 Interpret 4/8/12 byte received data as a decimal form. Interpret as replacing low bytes and high bytes. Example Received data: "1234 0567" (hex) Interpreted data "0567 1234" (BCD). Therefore, the measurement is "5671234" (decimal).

About command settings

- (1) Depending on the type of command, you can read approximately 45 devices. For Model 2343 internal, the send command is less than 700 bytes, and the configurable range for the received data is less than 250 bytes.
- (2) When you want to delete the send command In the command setting column, click the line header to the left of the command that you want to delete to select the line.

	Command settings Measurement item settings							
		Device		Device number	Data type		Measurement Item Name	Units
	_	Х	-	0001	BIT	•	X Register 1	Status
•	\mathbf{F}	X	-	0002	BIT	-	X Register 2	Status
	*		-			-		

Press the "Delete" key to delete the command you selected.

Set the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

For an explanation of the [Measurement Item Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" - "Measurement Item" (Page 76).

4.

3.

Set the [Record Settings] tab.

 For an explanation of the [Record Settings] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -"Record Settings" (Page 77)

5. Set the [Sending Settings] tab.

Match the sending rate, parity, data length, and the stop bit to the settings for the external equipment.

Basic Meas	surement item	Record	Communication	Alarm (Co	mputer)	
Communication						
	<mark>1</mark> Baud F	Rate	9600bps	•		
	2 Pa	arity	NONE	•		
	3 Data Ler	neth	8bit	-		
	4 Stop	Bit	1bit	-		
5	Sending Delim	niter	NONE	-		
6 F	Receiving Delin	niter	TIMEOUT	-		
7	Reception Time	eout	300		[msec]	
8 Byt	te Interval Time	eout	50		[msec]	

1	Sending Rate	•	1200bps to 57600bps *57600bps is recommended
2	Parity	None/Odd number/Even number	
3	Data Length	a Length • 7bit / 8bit	
4	Stop Bit	٠	1bit / 2bit
5	Sending Delimiter	٠	This setting cannot be changed from [None].
6	Receiving Delimiter	Receiving Delimiter • This setting cannot be changed from [Timeout].	
7	7 Reception Timeout • The timeout value after the command is sent until the first 1 by received.		The timeout value after the command is sent until the first 1 byte is received.
8	Byte Interval Timeout	•	The reception timeout value after the second byte. When a reception delimiter is timed out, reception is determined to have ended if no data is received after this interval.



* Optional equipment and MELSEC common items

3.2.10 Common Tab Settings

To make common tab settings, you need to set the [Basic Settings] tab beforehand. Set each tab in order from the left.

Basic	Measurement item	Record	Alarm (Module)	Alarm (Computer)

1.

Make settings under the [Measurement Item Settings] tab.

This setting allows you to set the [Comment], [Number of Characters to Display], and [Scaling] for each measurement item.

E	Basic	Measurement item	Record Alarm (Module	e) 🛛 Alarm (Compu	uter)		
	Meas	surement it Comme	ent	De l	Jnit 9	Scaling		
	CH1	CH1		1		AB: A 6250 B -25		
I	CH2	CH2		1	L E	Between two points:	4 to 20 >>	0 to 1
	<							>
	CH2	·						
		2 Comme	nt CH2					
	3 -Di	isplay Settings ———						_
		O OFF 📀 ON	Prefi	к String				
		Decimal 1 💌 I		L	- 0)isplay ±99.9 L		
			2 digits, Unit k(Prefix.)		_			
			z algita, onik k(i tolik.)	m(oung)				
	4 -So	- Pot	ween 👝 🗛					
		UFF two	point Cy=A*>	(+B				
		Measure Jent Valu	mA	to	20		mΑ	
		Display 0	L	to	100		L	

	Setting item	Description
1	Measurement Item	 The current setting contents for each measurement item appear. When you want to change a setting, click the measurement item for which you want to change a setting.
2	Comment	 The string entered here serves for identifying the Measurement Item. This string is used in the measurement value monitor and Smart Site Viewer when displaying recorded data. Enter a comment string here that is meaningful and easy to understand (up to 40 characters).

3.2 Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement

	Setting item	Description				
		 Set the display digit when measurements are displayed on the Monitoring screen. Perform [Display Digit Setting] whenever you use scaling. 				
	Display Digit	Decimal number	Set the number of digits to display after the decimal point.	[<mark>0</mark> to 4]		
3	Display Digit Setting	Units: (Supplementary)	Set the supplementary unit.	[p/ n/ μ/ m/ k/ M/ G/ T]		
		Units: (Character string)	This can be set when scaling is used. Set an optional character string of up to 6 characters. You can select from options pre- pared beforehand.	[W/ V/ A/ °C/ %rh/ Hz]		
	Scaling	B for measurer Example: If A = = W, when the measurement • Perform [Displation]	g operation Y [units] = A x measurement value ment values. = 200, B = 100, units (supplementary) = k, ur original measurement value is 1[V] after the value is 300[kW]. ay Digit Setting] whenever you use scaling. not using scaling, select [OFF].	nits (character string)		
4		Between two points	 The values of coefficient A and B are not specified directly, the measurement value range ([Measurement Value]) as well as the value after scaling which corresponds to the value ([Display]) are specified. The values for coefficients A and B are automatically calculated according to the value entered. 	The numerical entry range is -1E+07 to -1E-07, 0, 1E-07 to 1E+07.		
		A*x + B	 The values of coefficient A and B are specified directly. 	The numerical entry range is -1E+09 to -1E-09, 0, 1E-09 to 1E+09.		

2.

Make settings under the [Record Settings] tab.

These settings are used for the data recording function. You can set the [**Rec. Interval**] and [**Recording Mode**].



Hints

- When wishing to use the same recording settings for all measurement modules, you can make the setting at the start of recording and do not need to do it here.
- When wishing to use different settings for individual measurement modules, you should make the settings beforehand on this screen.

3.

Settings for the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

This setting is to use the alarm function of the module. If you are not going to use it, you do not need to make any settings.

♦ For details on the alarm, see 5 "Alarm Function" (page 207).

When you want an alarm evaluation in the computer for the monitor value when measurement values are being monitored, set the alarm from the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

E	Basic 🛛 Measurement iten	n Record Alarm (Module)	Alarm (Computer)	
		ne module's built−in alarm, p m log is saved in a module'		ement item.
	Measurement item	Comment	Lower	Upper
1	СН1	CH1		30 L
	CH2	CH2		
	CH1			
	2Lower	L	Upper 30	L
	3 Filter Widtl	h 📃 1 🗄 Sec (1 -	255)	
		4 Alarm port output Do	o not output	T

	Setting item	Description
1	Measurement Item	 Select the CH for alarm evaluation. Select the check box at the left of the window to enable alarm settings, and the setting item appears below the screen. When an alarm is triggered for measurements in the measurement module and an alarm occurs, it is saved in the memory as alarm data.
2	Upper Lower	 Enter the lower and upper alarm threshold values When no value is entered, there is no maximum or minimum evaluation. The setting range is -1E+07 to -1E-07, 0, 1E-07 to 1E+07.
3	Filter time width	 Sets the alarm judgment filter time. This functionality prevents sudden fluctuations in the measured value from causing changes in the alarm judgment result. Whenever the alarm judgment reaches or exceeds the filter time width, the alarm judgment result is changed. Example: If the filter time width is set to 5 sec When the alarm judgment result changes from "in-range" (off) to "out-of-range" (on): The alarm judgment result will change to "out-of-range" once the out-of-range state persists for 5 sec. When the alarm judgment result changes from "out-of-range" (on) to "in-range" (off): The alarm judgment result will change to "in-range" once the in-range state persists for 5 sec.
4	Alarm port output method (All items common settings)	 Set whether or not to output the alarm evaluation result to the alarm port and the LED for the measurement module. (Settings are common for all measurement items.) [Do not output], it is not output. For [Save Alarm Status], when the alarm evaluation result is outside the range, it continues to output until it is cleared*. For [Update at each sampling], evaluation results are output every second. *: When you clear the alarm output (port) for the measurement module, hold down the [ALARM RESET] switch on the communication module for more than one second.

4.

Settings for the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] tab.

When you want an alarm evaluation on the computer, this setting sets the measurement item monitoring with Smart Site Utility. If you are not going to use alarm evaluation for the computer, you do not need to make any settings.

When you want to use the module's built-in alarm, set the alarm from the [Alarm Settings (Module)] tab.

E	Basic Measur	rement iten	n Record	Alarm (Module)	Alarm (Computer)		
	When you war	nt an alarm	evaluation	in the computer,	please se	lect the meas	urement it	em.
	An alarm eval	luation is p	erformed or	nly during monito	ring.			
1	Measurement	titem	Comment		Lower		Upper	
•	CH1		CH1		201101		35 L	
	СН2		CH2					
[-CH1							
	2 6	ower		L	Upper	35	L	
	3	Filter Widtł	n 15	🗄 Sec (1 -	36000)			

	Setting item	Description
1	Measurement Item	 Select the measurement item for alarm evaluation. Select the check box at the left of the window to enable alarm settings, and the setting item appears below the screen. When alarm evaluation is enabled, the alarm can evaluate monitor values while monitoring measurements. Check alarm information from the [Alarm log] window.
2 When no value is entered, there is no maximum		 Enter the lower and upper alarm threshold values When no value is entered, there is no maximum or minimum evaluation. The setting range is -1E+07 to -1E-07, 0, 1E-07 to 1E+07.
3	Filter time width	 Sets the alarm judgment filter time. This functionality prevents sudden fluctuations in the measured value from causing changes in the alarm judgment result. Whenever the alarm judgment reaches or exceeds the filter time width, the alarm judgment result is changed. Example: If the filter time width is set to 5 sec When the alarm judgment result changes from "in-range" (off) to "out-of-range" (on): The alarm judgment result will change to "out-of-range" once the out-of-range state persists for 5 sec. When the alarm judgment result changes from "out-of-range" (on) to "in-range" (off): The alarm judgment result changes from "out-of-range" (on) to "in-range" (off): The alarm judgment result will change to "in-range" once the in-range state persists for 5 sec.

3.3 Monitoring Measurement Values

You can open a window for each measurement module and use the display to monitor measurement values.



The monitored items can be displayed in the monitor list.

3.3.1 "Starting and Stopping the Monitor Function" (page 81)



When an alarm is triggered, the color changes for the measurement value in which the alarm occurs.

5.2.3 "Displaying the Alarm Log" (page 211)



You can move open monitor windows to the position you want by dragging them.

You can select the display size from five sizes: Large, Medium, Small, Minimum, Button.



3.3.1 Starting and Stopping the Monitor Function

Important

When you use Smart Site Utility for a long period, set the computer so that it does not enter standby mode or hibernate.
If the computer enters either standby or hibernation status, Smart Site Utility cannot communicate between modules and monitoring and recorded data for measurement values cannot be collected.
For details on the setting method, see Appendix 8 "Canceling Standby and Hibernation Functions" (page 313).

Procedure

1. Select the measurement module for which you want to monitor measurements from the [Module List].

2

3

Right-click to access the popup menu. Then select [Open Monitor].

The same effect can be achieved by double-clicking on the measurement module in step 1.









To start the monitor function, click the [Mon] button on the toolbar.



The measurement items are listed in the monitor list. Click the [Monitor List] button on the toolbar to display and hide.



Monitor Lis	Monitor List 🛛 🗶							
ID	Model Comment	Measurement items	Monitor	Unit	Lower	Upper		
[89]-[01]	2301 HUMIDITY MODULE	CH1	22.8	С				
[89]-[01]	2301 HUMIDITY MODULE	CH2	44.4	%rh				
[89]-[02]	2302 Pt MODULE	CH1	23.5	С				
[89]-[02]	2302 Pt MODULE	CH2	24.8	С				
[89]-[03]	2303 TC MODULE	CH1	24.2	С				
[89]-[03]	2303 TC MODULE	CH2	25.0	С				
[89]-[04]	2304 PULSE MODULE	CH1	983					
[89]-[04]	2304 PULSE MODULE	CH2	983					



3.3.2 Displaying a Trend Graph

The monitor window normally shows instantaneous values in numeric format. Sometimes it may be desirable to use measurement values from a short preceding interval and display the results in graphical form. This can be achieved by using the trend graph function.

The longest interval that can be covered by the trend graph is one hour.

Procedure

 Right-click on the monitor window and click menu, [Show Trend Graph] to bring up the [Trend Graph Settings] dialog box.

< 2302 Pt MODULE	
CH1	
20.6 c	
CH2	Change Display Measurement Item
22.2 c	Window size
	Window movement
	Measurement Colors
	Background Color
	Copy Monitor
	Trend graph display
	2302 Pt MODULE Settings
	Close

2. The display item selection window for the selected module opens.

Trend graph Settings	
2302 Pt MODULE	
Please select a me	easurememt item to display.
CH1	•
Detail	OK Cancel

The trend graph window opens when the displayed CH is selected and [Set] is clicked.

When [Detailed Settings] is clicked, a window containing all selected setting items for the module that exist in the module list opens.

Tre	Trend Graph - Detail Settings						
	-Trend Gra	aph Setting					
	🔽 СН1	2302 Pt MODULE	•	CH1 💌			
	CH2	2302 Pt MODULE	-	CH2 💌			
	🔽 СНЗ	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	•	CH1 (RMS)			
	CH4	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	•	CH2(RMS)			
	СН5			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•		
	CH6		~				
	🖂 СН7		~				
			~				
	🗖 СН9		~	_			
	CH10		~				
	CH11		~	_			
	CH12		~	_			
	CH13		~				
	CH14		~				
	CH15		~				
	CH16		~	_			
		_		.,			
		_	ОК	Cancel			

Select the check boxes of items for which you want to display a trend graph (maximum 16). Then click [Set]. Monitoring starts automatically, and the trend graph window opens.

3. The trend graph menu items are the same as on the [Graph] window of Smart Site Viewer.

3.7.4 "Main Functions of "Graph"" (page 116)



Note

- The trend graph is updated every second, using the monitor data. If wireless connection conditions are poor, the measurement values may not be displayed properly.
 The trend graph can show up to 16 channels and up to one hour's worth of
- The trend graph can show up to 16 channels and up to one hour's worth of data. When one hour is exceeded, old data will progressively disappear from view.
- Graph settings will not be stored.

3.3.3 Setting the Monitor

To reduce the load during monitor communication, you can set a cycle for monitor communication. Also, you can set to automatically start monitoring.

Procedure

1. From the menu bar, select [Monitor]-[Monitor Settings].



2.

Displays the [Monitor Settings] dialog box.

Set the monitor's communication cycle.

When you want monitoring to start automatically after restarting the application (for example, after making settings when starting from startup etc.) select "Start monitoring automatically after startup" and click the [OK] button.

Monitor Settings
Monitor's COM cycle 500 🕂 ms (Range: 500 - 60000)
Start monitoring automatically after application starting
OK Cancel

3.3.4 Monitoring Screen Right-Click Menu

You can find the following items on the right-click menu of the Monitoring screen.

Right-click menu	Description	
Change display measurement item	Change the measurement item displayed.	
Window size	 Select the window size. Notes: Window sizes that can be displayed vary depending on the type of module. 	
Window movement	Set allow or deny movement for the Monitoring screen.	
Measurement colors	Change the display color for the monitor values.	
Background color	 Change the background color of the Monitoring screen. 	
Copy monitor	• Make a copy of the Monitoring screen. After copying, the new Monitoring screen inherits the pointers and Monitoring screen attributes (display items, window size, measurement colors, and background color).	
Trend graph display	Display the trend graph.	
Module settings	Change alarm settings etc. for the module.	
Close	Close the measurement labels.	

3.4 Checking the Current Waveform

You can use this to collect the current waveforms acquired, and to adjust the range and trigger settings. Without depending on the status of 2321 (before recording, during recording), current waveform data can be acquired.

Ν	ot	e	
---	----	---	--

This can be used for firmware version 2.36 or later.

Procedure before starting recording

7. Display the [Measurement Module Settings] dialog box.

2.

Click the trigger button for the CH that you want to acquire.

Model Comment	ODULE			
	item Trigger (CH1) Tri	gger (CH2) Record	Alarm (Computer)	Trig
CH1 Use				
Analog Settings				
Measurement Range		Low-pass Filter	OFF 💌	
Sampling Settings				
Measurement Sampling	1ms(1kS/s)	[
Memory Settings				
Memory Partitions	2 🔹	Data Length	32000 ÷ (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger	3200 ÷ (3.20s)	Post Trigger	0 ÷ (0.00ms)	. c
	(0.000)		, <u> </u>	
-CH2 Use				
Analog Settings -				
Measurement Range	5V 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF 💌	
Measurement	1ms(1kS/s)			
Memory Settings Memory Partitions	2	Data Length	32000 ÷ (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger	3200 📫 (3.20s)	Post Trigger	0 🛨 (0.00ms)	

* You cannot click ALL before recording starts.

The following dialog box appears for the period in which waveform data is collected.

You cannot perform other operations while acquiring waveform data.



* The dialog box closes after one minute if waveform data cannot be acquired due to network problems etc.

The Smart Site Wave Viewer starts automatically when waveform data collection has finished, and the waveform data that has been acquired is displayed.

For details on how to use the Smart Site Wave Viewer, see 3.9.3 "Using the Smart Site Wave Viewer" (page 127)



- - 2000 250us (2.5us) 1 07-03-26 09:57:41.4609 - - Rea

Note

З.

4.

- If the CH setting is not set to "Use", the trigger cannot be applied. You can acquire waveform data at a maximum of one a minute.
- Data acquired before recording starts is not automatically saved in the PC.

Procedure when recording

90

- **1.** Display the [Measurement Module Settings] dialog box.
- 2. Click the trigger button for the CH that you want to acquire. To acquire waveform data for both CH, click ALL.

CH1 Analog Settings Measurement Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling	DULE m Triager (CH1) Tri 5V 1ms(1kS/s) 2	ager (CH2) Record	Alarm (Computer)	AL CH
Basic Measurement ite CH1 CH2 Analog Settings Measurement Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling Settings	m Triager (CH1) Tri 5V 💌		 	
CH1 Analog Settings Measurement Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling	5V _ 1ms(1kS/s) _		 	
☐ Use Analog Settings Measurement Range Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling	1ms(1kS/s) 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF	
Analog Settings Measurement Range Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling Memory Settings	1ms(1kS/s) 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF	
Measurement Range Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling Memory Settings	1ms(1kS/s) 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF	
Range J Sampling Settings Measurement Sampling J Memory Settings	1ms(1kS/s) 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF _	
Measurement Sampling		[сн
Measurement Sampling		[СН
Memory Settings				CH
	2			
memory	2 -			
Partitions	-	Data Length	32000 🛨 (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger	3200 ÷ (3.20s)	Post Trigger	0 🐳 (0.00ms)	СН
			,	
CH2				
₩ Use				
Analog Settings Measurement		Law and Dilar	loss	
Range	5V 💌	Low-pass Filter	OFF 💌	
Sampling Settings				
Measurement Sampling	1ms(1kS/s) 🔹			
Memory Settings Memory	<u> </u>	[
Partitions	2 💌	Data Length	32000 ÷ (32.00s)	
Pre Trigger	3200 🕂 (3.20s)	Post Trigger	0 🛨 (0.00ms)	
		1		

3. Send the trigger command to each module.

4.

Waveform data is automatically collected.

For details on displaying the waveform data, see 3.9 "Displaying Waveform Data" (page 124).

3.5 Recording and Acquiring Data

- When a recording start command is received by a measurement module, the module starts to save measurement data at regular intervals in its internal memory.
- The recorded data can be collected by the computer and saved in a file.
 Files greated in this way can be viewed with Smart Site Viewer (this is all
- Files created in this way can be viewed with Smart Site Viewer (this is also possible while data recording is still in progress).

General procedure



3.5.1 Starting Data Recording

Procedure

1. Click the [Rec] button on the toolbar to open the [Start and stop recording] dialog box. This dialog box lets you set the recording parameters and start recording.

ol(T)	Help(H)	
₽	<u>@</u>	A
n List	Rec	Data



You can also select [Record] - [Start/Stop Recording] from the menu bar.

2. If the [Start/Stop Recording] dialog box opens, make the necessary settings.

Select each of the tabs [Basic Settings], [Applied Settings], and [2354 Specific Settings] and perform settings.

a decloy Trogan FlexSmatSieUtily Setting: Applied Setting: 2364 Specific Setting: Seconding method Use common setting: Recording mode Proceeding mode Proceeding mode Proceeding mode Proceeding mode Proceeding method Set recording method Set recording method Set recording method Set recording method Set recording inmediately. Start Coording at set time. Set recording method Set recording inmediately. Start Coording at set time. Set recording method Set recording inmediately. Set recording method Set recording inmediately. Start Coording info Set recording inmediately. Start Coording info Set recording inmediately. Start Coording info Set recording in	ave directory Save directory Support Ref Seconding method C.VProgram Files/SmattSiteUtility Basic Settings 2354 Specific Settings Recording method Save the history of module's built-in alarm Files/SmattSiteUtility C.INST Files/SmattSiteUtility Save the history of module's built-in alarm Files/SmattSiteUtility Save the history of module's built-in alarm Files/SmattSiteUtility C.INST Files/SmattSiteUtility Save the history of module's built-in alarm Files/SmattSiteUtility C.INST Files/SmattSiteUtility C.INST Files/SmattSiteUtility Save the history of module's built-in alarm * Recording mode C.INST * Record mode has the next restrictions. -2201 and 2322 use a setup for every module. - 2304 is instantaneous value only. 2304 is instantaneous value only.	re-version module.
Program FlatShandSkeUllijy Ref Statutory Ref ShandSkeUllijy Statutory Ref ShandSkeUllijy Ref ShandSkeUllijy Shat recoding innedde Shat recoding innedde Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat recoding inne Shat r	Program Files\SmattSiteUhility Ref Settings Applied Settings 2354 Specific Settings ecording method Use common settings Rec interval Recording mode Rec interval Recording mode Rec interval Record mode has the next restrictions. 2321 Waveform Data 2324 Value only. 2324 V	re-version module.
<pre>imp Apdied Setting: 254 Specie: Setting:</pre>	Basic Settings 254 Specific Settings 256 Specific	re-version module.
drag method the common setting: interval	ding method ise common settings c. interval imin Peconting mode C. interval C. interval C	re-version module.
Ute common setting: ec: riterval Phonor dry mode: Phonor dry mo	Use common settings ec. interval Imm Pecording mode C INST C MAX/MIN/AVE C INST C MAX/MIN/AVE * Record mode has the next restrictions. - 2321 and 2332 use a setup for every module. - 2304 is instantaneous value only. C INST every module is averaged at a CSV file. C INST every module is averaged at a CSV file.	re-version module. sult and power failu
Use control selfing: Price in Kerval Price in Kerval P	Use common settings lec. interval lec. inter	re-version module. sult and power fail
230 and 2332 use a step for every mode. 230 and 2332 use a step for every mode. 230 and 2332 use a step for every mode. 230 and 2332 use a step for every mode. 231 at encoding immediately. Stat recording immediately. 9 year	- 2321 and 2332 use a setup for every module. - 2304 is instantaneous value only.	ry collection incre-
art recording method > Stat recording inmediately. art recording inmediately. > get =	2. A Back sound is Avian COV and a successful in the successful	
pop recording melhod Set recording top time top recording time Stat Cloce	Start recording immediately. C Start recording at set time.	ion place folder.
Set recording stop time top recording time gear stat	year year day hour min	
htprecording time year month day hour min Start Close start Close start Close start Start start Close start start Close start star		
Image: Stat Doce St		
Stat Close Ad stop recording: ording File Name REC0707231455 Program Files/SmatSiteUtility Ref		
d stop recording rdng Fie Name REC0707231455 organ Fies/SnartSikeUkity Ref stings Applied Settings 254 Specific Settings common steps is used by all 254. common steps is used by all 254. radion when insufficient storage space on the CF Continue recording(Delete Old files) C Stop recording format in CF * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. quite 2554 Status 4 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days [F 10: D1 (2354 MEMORY MODULE 356kB 122MB 349Day X 10: D2 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day X		
ting File Name REC0707231455 .hrp directory gam File SmartSiteUtility Ref trings Applied Settings 254 Specific Settings common setup is used by all 234. andion when insufficient atorge space on the CF Continue recordingDelete Old files) C Stop recording format in CF Create a CSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. apite 2554 Status 4MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days [10: 0: 10;254 MEMORY MODULE] 366kB 122MB 349Day 10: 0: 12;354 MEMORY MODULE] 366kB 122MB 349Day 10: 0: 12;354 MEMORY MODULE] 366kB 122MB 349Day	Start Close Start	1
e directory Program Files\SmartSiteUtility Ref Program P		
A common setup is used by all 2354.	ve directory	
A common setup is used by all 2354. Seration when insufficient storage space on the CF Continue recording(Delete Old files) C Stop recording e formatin CF Create a CSV Re * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV Re. 54 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days F M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 355kB 122MB 349Day M D: 62 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974 MD 1479Day	Program Files\SmartSiteUtility Ref	
oreation when insufficient dronge space on the CF © Continue recording[Delete Old files] © Stop recording e format in CF © Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. * The data	Settings Applied Settings 2354 Specific Settings	
oreation when insufficient dronge space on the CF © Continue recording[Delete Old files] © Stop recording e format in CF © Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. Create a DSV file * A binary file is always created. * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV file. * The data	A common setup is used by all 2354.	
e format in CF Create a CSV Re * The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV Re. S4 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days F MID: 01 (254 MEMORY MODULE) 366kB 122MB 349Day MID: 62 (254 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974MB 1478Day	Iperation when insufficient storage space on the CF	
Create a CSV Re A binagy file is always created. The data of 2343 is not saved at a CSV Re. S4 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Firee space Recording days F MID: 01 (2544 MEMORY MODULE) 366kB 122MB 349Day MID: 62 (2544 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974 MB 1478Day		
cquire 2354 Status 54 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days F MID: 01 (2554 MEMORY MODULE) 355kB 122MB 349Day MID: 62 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974MB 1478Day	Craste a COV Rea * A binary file is always created.	
54 MEMORY MODULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days F M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 355kB 122MB 349Day M ID: 62 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974MB 1478Day	i ne data of 2343 is not saved at a USY file.	
M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 956kB 122MB 349Day M ID: 62 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 675kB 974MB 1478Day	coquire 2354 Status	
M ID: 01 (234 M EMORY MODULE) 366 kB 122 MB 349 Day M ID: 62 (235 M MEMORY MODULE) 675 kB 974 MB 1478 Day		
	94 MEMURY MUDULE 1 day capacity Free space Recording days F]	
Start Close	M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
Start Close	M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
Start Close	DM ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
Start Close	20M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
Start Close	DM ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
Start Close	0M ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356kB 122MB 349Day	
	DM ID: 01 (2354 MEMORY MODULE) 356KB 122MB 349Day	

Setting item		Description
1	File name	Specifies the file name for recorded data.
2	Save directory	 To change the directory, click the [Ref] button.
3	Recording method	 To use the same settings for all modules, select the [Use common settings] check box, and make settings for [Rec. interval] and [Recording mode]. When the [Use common settings] check box is not selected, individual settings will be used for each module. See the section on making settings for the [Recording Method] tab of each module 3.2 "Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement module)" (page 44)
4	Start recording method	 Determines whether recording starts immediately or at a specified time. Actual recording start will occur at a suitable transition point.

	Setting item	Description
5	Stop recording method	 Set this option if you want the recording to stop at a specified time.
6	Alarm Log	 Select to save alarm logs in the module itself.
7	2321 Waveform Data	 If [Create CSV file for waveform data] is selected, when waveform data for 2321 Waveform Module is collected, the file is converted to a CSV file at the same time the waveform data is saved in the "Target file\Wave" folder. This setting is only enabled when Model 2321 is present in the module list.
8	2354 Specific Settings	 When present in the module list, to make all 2354 Memory Module recording settings common, check [Use common settings for all 2354]. When [Continue recording] is set from [Operation when insufficient storage space on the CF], old files are deleted one by one when there is insufficient storage space on the CF card. When [Stop recording] is set, recording stops but files are not deleted. When [Create a CSV file] is set from [File format in CF], in addition to the binary format file, a CSV file for viewing and editing in Excel etc. is created at the same time. This setting is only enabled when 2354 is present in the module list.
9	2354 Status Check	 Click [Acquire 2354 Status] to query all Model 2354 present in the module list and display the status in one column. [1 day capacity] is necessary for the CF card, and [Free space], [Recording days], and [Recording Status] are displayed for the CF card. When there are problems in the CF card such as not enough free space, the contents of the problem are highlighted in red.

F

Alarm logs cannot be saved when the module's firmware version earlier than 2.30.
When saving alarm logs, you need to enable the alarm in the module beforehand.
For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Module)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -3(Page 78).

SmartSi	SmartSiteUtility				
٩	There is a module (less than 2.30 Version) which does not correspond to the preservation function of an alarm history. The alarm history of a not corresponding module is not saved. Is record started as it is? The version of all modules can be checked				
	Yes				

Important note 1

 Internally, a measurement module will start recording at a suitable transition point in time (a time that can be divided by the interval time).
 Example:

Interval setting: 60 minutes

Specified recording start time (or time at which immediate recording start is activated): 9:01:00

Actual recording start: 10:00:00

Important note 2

• For [MAX/MIN/AVE] and [INST+MAX/MIN/AVE], the first recording data are generated after the interval has elapsed. If one of these modes is selected in the example of "Important note 2", the first recording data will be generated at 11:00:00.

Important note 3

 When using the 2332 Power Meter Module, recording items cannot be selected from this dialog box. For details on setting the recording mode from the [Measurement Module Settings] dialog box for each module, see 3.2.6 "Setting Measurement Parameters for Model 2332" (page 56)

Important note 4

 Before starting to record, make sure your computer's clock is set correctly. When recording starts, the internal clocks for all modules are set according to the computer's clock.

Important note 5

 When using 2354 Memory Module, you need to install the CF card in Model 2354. Also, you cannot start recording when there is less than two days of free space on the CF card. For details on CF card capacity, see 6.5 "Recording File Size of the CF Card" (page 241).

3.

When all settings have been made, click the [Start] button.

The recording settings are sent, and recording starts. The indication [Recording] appears on the toolbar.



• The internal clock of the module will be set to the same time as the clock of the computer.

Module save data numbers and available recording time

- The amount of saved data and the time that can be saved for the measurement modules differs depending on the number of uses of the CH and the recording mode.
- When alarm settings are made for each measurement module, and the alarm is enabled in the module, an increase in the frequency of alarm events means a decrease in the time that can be saved.
- 1. Rough relationship between the number of save data and the maximum storage days (hours) for Models 2301 to 2305.

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	26000	13000	10000
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	7.5 h	3.5 h	2.5 h
2 s	14.5 h	7 h	5.5 h
5 s	1.5 d	18 h	14.5 h
10 s	3 d	1.5 d	1 d
15 s	4.5 d	2 d	1.5 d
20 s	6 d	3 d	2 d
30 s	9 d	4.5 d	3.5 d
1 m	18 d	9 d	7 d
2 m	36 d	18 d	14 d
5 m	92 d	46 d	36 d
10 m	184 d	92 d	73 d
15 m	277 d	138 d	110 d
20 m	369 d	184 d	147 d
30 m	554 d	277 d	221 d
60 m	1109 d	554 d	443 d

2. Rough relationship between the number of save data and the maximum storage days (hours) for Model 2306.

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	49140	18900	14430
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	13 h	5 h	4 h
2 s	1 d	10.5 h	8 h
5 s	2.5 d	1 d	20 h
10 s	5.5 d	2 d	1.5 d
15 s	8.5 d	3 d	2.5 d
20 s	11 d	4 d	3 d
30 s	17 d	6 d	5 d
1 m	34 d	13 d	10 d
2 m	68 d	26 d	20 d
5 m	171 d	66 d	50 d
10 m	341 d	131 d	100 d
15 m	512 d	197 d	150 d
20 m	683 d	263 d	200 d
30 m	1024 d	394 d	301 d
60 m	2048 d	788 d	601 d

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	5300	2000	1500
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	80 m	30 m	25 m
2 s	2.5 h	1 h	50 m
5 s	7 h	2.5 h	2 h
10 s	14.5 h	5.5 h	4 h
15 s	22 h	8.5 h	6.5 h
20 s	1 d	11 h	8.5 h
30 s	1.5 d	17 h	13 h
1 m	3.5 d	1 d	1 d
2 m	7 d	2.5 d	2 d
5 m	18 d	7 d	5 d
10 m	37 d	14 d	11 d
15 m	55 d	21 d	16 d
20 m	74 d	28 d	22 d
30 m	111 d	43 d	33 d
60 m	222 d	85 d	65 d

3. Rough relationship between the number of save data and the maximum storage days (hours) for Model 2321.

4. Rough relationship between the number of save data and the maximum storage days (hours) for Model 2331.

1P2W			
	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	13000	5900	4600
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	3.5 h	1.5 h	1 h
2 s	7 h	3 h	2.5 h
5 s	18 h	8 h	6 h
10 s	1.5 d	16 h	12.5 h
15 s	2 d	1 d	19 h
20 s	3 d	1 d	1 d
30 s	4.5 d	2 d	1.5 d
1 m	9 d	4 d	3 d
2 m	18 d	8 d	6 d
5 m	46 d	20 d	16 d
10 m	92 d	41 d	32 d
15 m	138 d	61 d	48 d
20 m	184 d	82 d	64 d
30 m	277 d	123 d	96 d
60 m	554 d	246 d	192 d

3P4W				
		Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
Number of save data	8800	3500	2700	
Recording interval (interval)				
1 s	2 h	0.5 h	0.5 h	
2 s	4.5 h	1.5 h	1.5 h	
5 s	12 h	4.5 h	3.5 h	
10 s	1 d	9.5 h	7.5 h	
15 s	1.5 d	14.5 h	11 h	
20 s	2 d	19.5 h	15 h	
30 s	3 d	1.5 d	22.5 h	
1 m	6 d	2 d	1.5 d	
2 m	12 d	4 d	3.5 d	
5 m	30 d	12 d	9 d	
10 m	61 d	24 d	18 d	
15 m	92 d	36 d	28 d	
20 m	123 d	49 d	37 d	
30 m	184 d	73 d	56 d	
60 m	369 d	147 d	113 d	

1P3W/3P3W			
	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	12000	5100	3900
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	3 h	1 h	1 h
2 s	6.5 h	2.5 h	2 h
5 s	17 h	7 h	5.5 h
10 s	1 d	14 h	11 h
15 s	2 d	21 h	16.5 h
20 s	2.5 d	1 d	22 h
30 s	4 d	1.5 d	1 d
1 m	8 d	3.5 d	2.5 d
2 m	17 d	7 d	5 d
5 m	42 d	17 d	13 d
10 m	85 d	35 d	27 d
15 m	127 d	53 d	41 d
20 m	170 d	71 d	55 d
30 m	255 d	106 d	82 d
60 m	511 d	213 d	165 d

5. Rough relationship between the number of save data and the maximum storage days (hours) for Model 2332

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	3510	1410	1080
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	50 m	20 m	15 m
2 s	1.5 h	40 m	30 m
5 s	4.5 h	1.5 h	1.5 h
10 s	9.5 h	3.5 h	3 h
15 s	14.5 h	5.5 h	4.5 h
20 s	19.5 h	7.5 h	6 h
30 s	1 d	11.5 h	9 h
1 m	2 d	23.5 h	18 h
2 m	4.5 d	1.5 d	1.5 d
5 m	12 d	4.5 d	3.5 d
10 m	24 d	9.5 d	7.5 d
15 m	37 d	14.5 d	11 d
20 m	49 d	19.5 d	15 d
30 m	73 d	29 d	22.5 d
60 m	146 d	59 d	45 d

In the case of 1P2W 6 Circuit measurement

In the case of 1P2W 5 Circuit measurement

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	4095	1657	1275
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	1 h	20 m	20 m
2 s	2 h	50 m	40 m
5 s	5.5 h	2 h	1.5 h
10 s	11 h	4.5 h	3.5 h
15 s	17 h	6.5 h	5 h
20 s	22.5 h	9 h	7 h
30 s	1 d	13.5 h	10.5 h
1 m	2.5 d	1 d	21 h
2 m	5.5 d	2 d	1.5 d
5 m	14 d	5.5 d	4 d
10 m	28 d	11.5 d	8.5 d
15 m	43 d	17 d	13 d
20 m	57 d	23 d	17.5 d
30 m	85 d	35 d	26.5 d
60 m	171 d	69 d	53 d

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	4912	2010	1552
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	1 h	30 m	20 m
2 s	2.5 h	1 h	50 m
5 s	6.5 h	2.5 h	2 h
10 s	13.5 h	5.5 h	4 h
15 s	20 h	8 h	6 h
20 s	1 d	11 h	8.5 h
30 s	1.5 d	16.5 h	12.5 h
1 m	3 d	1 d	1 d
2 m	6.5 d	2.5 d	2 d
5 m	17 d	6.5 d	5 d
10 m	34 d	13.5 d	10.5 d
15 m	51 d	20.5 d	16 d
20 m	68 d	27.5 d	21.5 d
30 m	102 d	42 d	32 d
60 m	205 d	84 d	65 d

	In the case	of 1P2W 4	Circuit measurement
--	-------------	-----------	---------------------

In the case of 1P2W 3 Circuit measurement

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	6142	2557	1980
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	1.5 h	40 m	30 m
2 s	3 h	1 h	1 h
5 s	8.5 h	3.5 h	2.5 h
10 s	17 h	7 h	5.5 h
15 s	1 d	10.5 h	8 h
20 s	1 d	14 h	11 h
30 s	2 d	21 h	16.5 h
1 m	4 d	1.5 d	1 d
2 m	8.5 d	3.5 d	2.5 d
5 m	21 d	8.5 d	6.5 d
10 m	43 d	17.5 d	13.5 d
15 m	64 d	26.5 d	20.5 d
20 m	85 d	36 d	27.5 d
30 m	128 d	53 d	41 d
60 m	256 d	107 d	83 d

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	8190	3510	2730
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	2 h	50 m	40 m
2 s	4.5 h	1.5 h	1.5 h
5 s	11 h	4.5 h	3.5 h
10 s	22.5 h	9.5 h	7.5 h
15 s	1 d	14.5 h	11 h
20 s	1.5 d	19.5 h	15 h
30 s	2.5 d	1 d	22.5 h
1 m	5.5 d	2 d	1.5 d
2 m	11 d	4.5 d	3.5 d
5 m	28 d	12 d	9 d
10 m	57 d	24 d	18.5 d
15 m	85 d	37 d	28 d
20 m	114 d	49 d	38 d
30 m	171 d	73 d	57 d
60 m	341 d	146 d	114 d

In the case of 1P2W 2 Circuit measurement

In the case of 1P2W 1 Circuit measurement

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	12285	5580	4387
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	3 h	1.5 h	1 h
2 s	6.5 h	3 h	2 h
5 s	17 h	7.5 h	6 h
10 s	1 d	15.5 h	12 h
15 s	2 d	23 h	18 h
20 s	2.5 d	1 d	1 d
30 s	4 d	1.5 d	1.5 d
1 m	8.5 d	3.5 d	3 d
2 m	17 d	7.5 d	6 d
5 m	43 d	19 d	15 d
10 m	85 d	39 d	30 d
15 m	128 d	58 d	46 d
20 m	171 d	78 d	61 d
30 m	256 d	116 d	91 d
60 m	512 d	233 d	183 d
	Recording mode		
-------------------------------	---------------------	-------------	--------------------------------------
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	5115	2047	1575
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	1 h	30 m	20 m
2 s	2.5 h	1 h	50 m
5 s	7 h	2.5 h	2 h
10 s	14 h	5.5 h	4 h
15 s	21 h	8.5 h	6.5 h
20 s	1d 11 h		8.5 h
30 s	1.5 d	17 h	13 h
1 m	3.5 d	1 d	1 d
2 m	7 d	2.5 d	2 d
5 m	17.5 d	7 d	5 d
10 m	36 d	14 d	10.5 d
15 m	53 d	21 d	16 d
20 m	71 d	28 d	21.5 d
30 m	107 d	43 d	33 d
60 m	213 d	85 d	66 d

In the case of 1P3W/ 3P3W 3 Circuit measurement

In the case of 1P3W/ 3P3W 2 Circuit measurement

	Recording mode		
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE
Number of save data	6825	2790	2152
Recording interval (interval)			
1 s	1.5 h	40 m	30 m
2 s	3.5 h	1.5 h	1 h
5 s	9 h	3.5 h	2.5 h
10 s	18.5 h	7.5 h	5.5 h
15 s	1 d	11.5 h	8.5 h
20 s	1.5 d	15.5 h	11.5 h
30 s	2 d	23 h	17.5 h
1 m	4.5 d	1.5 d	1 d
2 m	9 d	3.5 d	2.5 d
5 m	23.5 d	9.5 d	7 d
10 m	47 d	19 d	14.5 d
15 m	71 d	29 d	22 d
20 m	95 d	39 d	29.5 d
30 m	142 d	58 d	45 d
60 m	284 d	116 d	90 d

3.5 Recording and Acquiring Data

	Recording mode			
	Instantaneous value	MAX/MIN/AVE	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
Number of save data	10237	4387	3412	
Recording interval (interval)				
1 s	2.5 h	1 h	50 m	
2 s	5.5 h	2 h	1.5 h	
5 s	14 h	6 h	4.5 h	
10 s	1 d	12 h	9 h	
15 s	1.5 d	18 h	14 h	
20 s	2 d	1 d	18.5 h	
30 s	3.5 d	1.5 d	1 d	
1 m	7 d	3 d	2 d	
2 m	14 d	6 d	4.5 d	
5 m	36 d	15 d	11.5 d	
10 m	71 d	30 d	23.5 d	
15 m	107 d	46 d	36 d	
20 m	142 d	61 d	47 d	
30 m	213 d	91 d	71 d	
60 m	427 d	183 d	142 d	

In the case of 1P3W/ 3P3W 1 Circuit measurement

102

3.5.2 Acquiring Recorded Data

You can acquire (collect) the recorded data in the computer and save them as files.

The recorded data is saved in CSV text file format in the folder specified in 듕 [Target Folder] in the [Start/Stop Recording] dialog box. Appendix 2 "Recording folder configuration for Smart Site Utility" (page 304) There are two ways to acquire recorded data: manual acquisition, which causes data to be acquired once, and regular acquisition, which causes data to be automatically acquired at a regular interval. Additionally, there are two types of data acquisition: data acquisition for short-term data and data acquisition for long-term data. You can acquire data manually in two ways. Data acquisition (for short term data) This method assumes that the computer and communication modules are permanently connected. Previously uncollected data are acquired one by one. When the number of uncollected data is less than 400, this method is faster. Data acquisition (for long term data) This method assumes that the computer and modules are not permanently connected. Data from a measurement module installed in the field are acquired before stopping to record. The contents of the internal memory of the measurement module are transferred in blocks to the computer. The search for uncollected data is then performed in the computer and files are created. There is a certain overhead, but because there is no data search processing in the measurement module itself, the method is suitable for large amounts of data. When the number of uncollected data is 400 or more, this method is faster. 3 Important When you use Smart Site Utility for a long period, set the computer so that it does not enter standby mode or hibernate. If the computer enters either standby or hibernation status, Smart Site Utility cannot communicate between modules and monitoring and recorded data for measurement values cannot be collected. For details on the setting method, see Appendix 8 "Canceling Standby and Hibernation Functions" (page 313) When collecting data from Model 2354, if the CF card is not installed in Model 2354 correctly, you cannot carry out data acquisition from Smart Site Utility. Collect once the CF card is installed in Model 2354, and the cover is closed. In Model 2354, data is saved to the CF card once about every 30 seconds. Make sure there is at least 30 seconds free space to perform data collection from Smart Site Utility from the data file saved on the CF card.

103

Manual acquisition

Procedure

1. Select [Record] on the menu bar, and then select [Data Acquisition (For Short Term Data)] or [Data Acquisition (For Long Term Data)].

🖏 Smart Site Utility - [Standard]			
File(F) Monitor(M)	Record(R) Alarm(A) Tool(T) Help(H)		
19 5	Open Recorded Data(Smart Site Viewer)		
MAP List	Start/Stop Recording	ita Auto	
Module List Layou	Periodic Data Acquisition Setting	-	
⊡ <u>,</u> PC	Data Acquisition(For short term data)		
🖻 📲 🚺 COM IC	Data Acquisition(For long term data)		
ID: ID:	Time Correction	-	

2.

When data acquisition starts, a message appears in the bottom right of the screen. (This message will close automatically when the process is finished.)

When wishing to stop data acquisition before the process is finished, click **[Cancel]**.

Communication log 0:00:20	6 🛛 🗶
COM Module	Status
COM ID: 03 (2353)	09/12/2006 16:44:12 Collecting data

The illustration shows the case when [Data Acquisition (For Short Term Data)] was selected.

Periodic acquisition

You can specify an interval and have data acquisition performed automatically.

In systems using Air Module, periodic acquisition is recommended, because bulk acquisition after measurement will take a long time.

Procedure

1. Select [Record] on the menu bar, and then select [Periodic Data Acquisition Setting].



2

Display the [Periodic Data Acquisition Setting] dialog box. Set the data acquisition type, acquisition interval, and whether to display a window while acquiring the data.

Periodic Data Acquisition Setting
Data acquisition C Not Acquire (Acquisition at one time(For short term data) C Memory Block Acquisition(For long term data.)
Acquiring Recorded Data Periodically Hour 1 Min 0 Sec
C Acquiring Recorded Data at a Specified Time A Specified Time Hour O Minute Add Delete
☐ The data collection window is not displayed. Please check, when the interval of collection is short. However, cancellation of collection becomes impossible.
OK Cancel



Acquiring Recorded Data Periodically

Select [Acquiring Recorded Data Periodically], and then set the acquisition interval.

\diamond

Acquiring Recorded Data at a Specified Time

Select [Acquiring Recorded Data at a Specified Time], set the acquisition time, and then click [Add]. There is no maximum for the frequency set for acquisition time. When you want to delete a set acquisition time, select the time and then click [Delete].



You can switch regular collection ON/ OFF using the [Collect Regularly] button on the toolbar. If you click the [Data] button, the procedure for manual acquisition ([Data Acquisition (For Short Term Data)]) is activated.





When you finish making settings, click [Setting]. During periodic acquisition operation, the time until the next acquisition is shown on the status bar at the bottom of the screen.

Next periodic acquisition18:12:11 | 18:07:27 |

Hints

The settings for periodic acquisition and the time of uncollected data are retained also when shutting down the Smart Site Utility. This makes the following actions possible.

- Avoiding to start Smart Site Utility during working hours when other operations are to be performed.
- Starting Smart Site Utility outside of working hours to carry out periodic acquisition.

3.5.3 Stopping Data Recording

When recording is stopped, the recording file is temporarily closed. This is added to the next time recording starts. Additions can be made even if the module is added or deleted, but when changes are made to the settings in which the number of measurement items for each module increases or decreases (a change of the recording mode, CH ON/OFF, etc), additions cannot be made.

Procedure

1. You can stop monitoring during monitoring by clicking the [Stop Monitoring] button.

Record(R)	Alarm(A)	Tool(T) I
G COM	D Stop	Mon List



Click the [Rec] button on the toolbar to open the [Start/Stop Recording] dialog box.





You can also open the dialog box from [Record] - [Start/Stop Recording] on the menu bar.

The [Start and Stop recording] dialog box appears.

Start and stop recording
Recording File Name REC0707231455 .hrp Save directory C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility Ref
Basic Settings Applied Settings 2354 Specific Settings
Recording method Rec. interval Rec. interval Recording mode NST MAX/MIN/AVE
Start recording method Start recording immediately. Start recording at set time.
Start recording time
year I month I day hour min
Stop recording method Stop recording stop time Stop recording time year month day hour min
Stop Close

Click the [Stop] button.

A confirmation message about stopping the recording process appears.

When there is uncollected data

SmartS	iteUtility	X	J
٩	Is record st Please click	n-acquired data. topped after acquire data? [Yes], when you stop, after acquisition. [No], when you stop immediately.	
	Yes	No Cancel	

When [Yes] is selected, recording stops after acquiring the data. When [No] is selected, recording stops without acquiring uncollected data. When [Cancel] is selected, recording is not stopped.

Smar	rtSiteUtilit	у	X
		and close recording u want to stop reco	
	Yes	No]

When [Yes] is selected, recording stops.

4. Recording stops.



Important

Collect as many data as possible before clicking [Stop]. After stopping the recording function, you can only acquire data once more. After that, no further data acquisition is possible.

3.6 Time Correction

With the time correction function, you can synchronize the time in the module with the computer.

Procedure

1. Select [Record] - [Time Correction] to open the Time correction window.



Time correction		
The time of a module is corrected at the time of a PC		
Correct time immediately Time correction		
Correct time at the time specified A Specified Time Hour OO Min Add Delete		
OK Cancel		

2.

To correct time immediately, click [Time correction].

3. Select [Correct time at the time specified] to correct the time to the time you specify.

Add specified time Set the time to correct and then click [Add].

Delete specified time To delete a time, select the time you want to delete and then click [Delete].

4. When you finish making settings, click [OK].

Note

- Lack of data could occur when the recording interval is less than 10 seconds, and when the time interval for time correction is too long.
- When performing time correction at the specified time, after setting the computer time, it is corrected when it enters the time correction execution area shown in the figure below.





When time is set automatically

Next time, the internal clock for the communication module is automatically set by the computer's clock.

- When setting transmission to the communication module
- When recording starts

3.7 Read the recorded data

You can read the recorded data, tables and graphs in Smart Site Viewer.

- You can print graphs.
- Graph data can be saved in Microsoft Excel or saved as CSV file.

3.7.1 Reading the recorded data

Procedure



2.

Select [File] – [Open record file] from the menu bar in Smart Site Viewer . Select the record file (*.hrp file) to read and click [Open].

3.7 Read the recorded data

3. [Advanced setting screen] for selecting measurement items will appear.

Select count2 / 28 Member Model commer		Table and graph (Max.1	16 items) are displayed.]	
ID Model commer	ł			
01-01-01 Power consume		Measurement item	Attribute	Searching down conditions for items on display Search down by Member ID (xx-yy-zz)
i or or or or or ower consum	ation of PC	U1(AVE)	Average value	O Display All
01-01-02 Power consump	otion of PC	I1(AVE)	Average value	
🗹 01-01-03 Power consum	tion of PC	P(AVE)	Average value	C Value range of upper digit (xx) 1 ⊻ · 1 ⊻
01-01-04 Power consump	otion of PC	PF(AVE)	Average value	Value range of middle digit (yy) 1 💌 - 63 💌
D 01-01-05 Power consump	otion of PC	FREQ(AVE)	Average value	
D1-01-06 Power consump	otion of PC	U1(MAX)	Maximum val	4 Search down by model comment
D 01-01-07 Power consump	otion of PC	I1(MAX)	Maximum val	Display only item with the following labels
D 01-01-08 Power consump	otion of PC	P(MAX)	Maximum val	
D 01-01-09 Power consump	otion of PC	PF(MAX)	Maximum val	5 Search down by Measurement Items
D1-01-10 Power consump	otion of PC	FREQ(MAX)	Maximum val	Display only item with the following labels
D 01-01-11 Power consump	otion of PC	U1(MIN)	Minimum value	
D1-01-12 Power consump	otion of PC	11(MIN)	Minimum value	
D 01-01-13 Power consump	otion of PC	P(MIN)	Minimum value	6 Search down by Attribute
01-01-14 Power consump	otion of PC	PF(MIN)	Minimum value	Display All
	ation of PC	FREQ(MIN)	Minimum value	

You can read the recorded data in [Graph] or [Graph and Table] when the following setting item is set and clicked [Open], record data can be read.

	Setting item	Contents
1	Measurement item list	 Check the measurment items you want to read. [Graph and Table] will be shown when you select 16 or less items. [Table] will be shown when you select 17 or more items. Up to 600 items can be selected. When you select the [Select] menu, the following can be carried out. (1) Clear all selections. (2) Additional selection/clear selection of selection range When you select the [Align] menu, the following can be carried out. (1) Align by Member ID/model type/measured item/attribute. (2) Move the selected item up or down.
2	Display range	 Select the display range for the data. [Specified date] [from/until] [1 to 6 days/ 1 week/ 1 month/ current month] will be displayed. However, the data count that can be displayed is up to 86400 data per measurement item.
	sele	the [Searching down conditions for measurement items on display] for easier ction of measured items to output. Only measurement items which meet all the ditions of each group condition will be displayed.

-		
	Searching down conditions	Contents
3	Search down by Member ID	 Only the upper ID and middle ID of the Member ID which is within the specified range will be displayed.
4	Search down by Model type	 Only items containing characters inputted into the model comment will be dis- played.
5	Search down by measurement item	 Only items containing characters inputted into the measurement items' names will be displayed.
6	Search down by attribute	 Only attributes of the measurement items which are items of specified models will be displayed. The following types can be specified. Instant value/average value/maximum value/ minimum value/ integrated value/ logic value/ display all

112

\diamond

Viewing steps when view is saved

Settings for measured items to be displayed and graph display can be saved as [View]. It is convenient to save measured items which are viewed frequently as view.

When view is saved, [View selection screen] will appear first.

View selection screen	
Select view and display range	
View: Test1	
Display range: 09/05/2003	Vuntil V 1day V
< <to item="" list="" screen<="" th=""><th>Open Cancel</th></to>	Open Cancel

Select [View] and [Display range] then press [Open] to read data.

The following diagram shows the flow of displaying data.

View View View is not saved	iew is saved	
Advanced setting screen	View selection View advanced settings	
Graph screen		

3.7.2 Screen Organization of Smart Site Viewer

Screen organization for reading data.



Displays table/ graph/ alarm

Common menu items		Contents			
	Paste in Microsoft Excel	 Paste the displayed data to Microsoft Excel. 			
	Send to CSV file	 Send the displayed data to CSV file. 			
File	Renew data periodically	 Read record files at regular intervals and renew table, graph and alarm. 			
	Print graph	Prints graph.			
	Create report format file	Makes the format file for reports.			
Report	Automatic report creating	 Automatically makes reports at periodical intervals or at speci- fied dates. 			
	Manual report creating	 Makes reports at specified dates. Used as a test for automatic report making. 			
Tool	Option	 Sets options (measured value display settings and integrated value display settings). 			

115

3.7.3 Main Functions of "Table"

🖦 Smart Site Viewer C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\sample_e.hrp - [Table] File(<u>F</u>) Report(<u>R</u>) Tool(T) Help(H) 💌 to 1day • Display Item Select view Alarm Reload Data Maintenan Table Graph ce View • $\ll |||$ \blacktriangleright >> 09/05/2003 ٠ Member ID 01-01-01 01-01-02 01-01-03 01-01-04 01-01-05 01-01-16 01-32-01 01-32-02 Power consumpti. Power consumpti.. Power consumpti.. Power consumpti. Power consumpti.. Ambient temperat. Model type ower consumpti. Ambient temperat.. P(AVE) U1(AVE) I1(AVE) FREQ(AVE) WP+ Ambient temperat Measurement items PF(AVE) Pt dummy resista. Unit W Hz Wh С C А Average 100 5827 1.548787 115.2539 0.7467883 60 13368 3 841795 27.7 5.6 Maximum 5.5 0.4452941 0.7074507 59,90683 1.060313 Minimum 99.93777 31.80939 26.3 72151.95 569.2065 517.6254 43133.8 1381.853 19341.9 41455.61 3962 Integrate 712 719 719 719 719 719 719 719 Test 9/05/03 00:02:00 100.5537 0.7114342 1.06905 26.9 5.5 0970 00.04:00 100.509 0.4486019 32.08877 0.7116836 60.00455 1.069626 26.9 09/0/ 13 00:06:00 100.5057 0.7116209 1.06979 26.9 5.5 03 00:08:00 59.96341 09/0 100 4891 0.4662815 60648 0.7172409 1.120216 5.5 03 00:10:00 6 9 09/05 100 5086 0.4542626 ...5731 0.713433 J 01158 1.08577 5.5 100.5217 1121 60.01519 09/05 03 00:12:00 0.448873 0.7116814 1.070403 26.9 100.5192 0.4484577 32 5.5 09/05 03 00:14:00 7936 0.7116317 60.01481 1.069312 26.9 32.13164 09/05 03 00:16:00 100.51 0.447957 0.7114325 60.01539 1.067721 26.9 5.5 03 00:18:00 100.521 0.4479973 32.0 866 0.7114463 60.01941 1.067955 5.5 09/05 26.9 03 00:20:00 100.5007 0.448593 32.07 396 0.7115392 59.9475 1.069299 5.5 09/05 26.9 09/05 03 00:22:00 100.5078 0.449241 32.13 58 0.711805 59.98653 1.0713 5.5 26.9 09/05 03 00:24:00 100.5115 0.4489069 32.112 25 0.7117032 59,9991 1.07/408 26.9 5.5 09/05 03.00:26:00 100 5325 0.4480998 32 051 5 0 7114907 60.03814 1/168388 26.9 55 5.5 5.5 09/05 03 00:28:00 100.5243 0.4479158 32.03281 0.7114233 60.0159 1.067761 26.9 100.5074 32.0614 0.7115104 59,99818 1.068716 09/05 03 00:30:00 0.4483366 26.9 1.069258 5.5 0.4484373 60.02317 09/05 03 00:32:00 100.5247 32.0777 0.7115888 26.9 Displays column number, Member ID, When you double click the maximum Minimum value is model type, measurement item, unit and shown in green and or minimum value with a mouse, the all data of average value, maximum value, cursor will jump to the start of the relmaximum value is minimum value, integrated value. The inshown in red. evant cell. tegrated value will be displayed only for integrated type measurement items.

Displays the major functions of [Table]

Useful functions for Table

The following keys can be used to scroll tables and copy data to the clipboard.

Press the [Ctrl] and [Home] keys simultaneously.	Moves cursor to the top left corner of the table.
Press the [Ctrl] and [End] keys simultaneously.	Moves cursor to the bottom right corner of the table.
[Home] key	Scrolls to the left side of the table.
[<mark>End</mark>] key	Scrolls to the right side of the table.
Press the [Ctrl] and [c] keys simultaneously.	Copies the value of the cell currently selected to the clipboard.

3.7.4 Main Functions of "Graph"

Displays the main features of [Graph].



Moves the time axis of the graph or the A/B cursor with the scroll bar.

Displays the statistics information of data on display or the location and value of the A/B cursor in the [Statistics information] tab. Shows the line type of each CH graph and displays/ hides the graph in the [CH setting] tab.

Statistics	Information
-------------------	-------------

You can enlarge graph

Cursor A 09/01/2003 00:02:00 Cursor B 09/01/2003 00:02:00 🗌 Statistical calculation between A-B cursors								
Measurement item	Model type	Cursor A	Cursor B	Maximum	Minimum	Average	-	
P(AVE)	Power consumption of PC	31.99053	31.99053	09/01/03 09:56:00 121.7262	09/01/03 00:02:00 31.99053	62.48886		
CH1(RMS)(AVE)	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	0.12518	0.12518	09/01/03 15:28:00 0.21274	09/01/03 02:06:00 0.12247	0.1249532		
Ambient temperature	Ambient temperature measurement	27.5	27.5	09/01/03 19:32:00 28.5	09/01/03 09:10:00 26.6	27.46944		
							-	
						•	- I	
F	P(AVE) CH1(RMS)(AVE)	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC 31.99053 CH1(RMS)(AVE) 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 0.12518	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC 31.99053 31.99053 CH1(RMS)(AVE) 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 0.12518 0.12518	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC 31.99053 31.99053 09/01/03 09:56:00 121.7262 CH1(RMS)(AVE) 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 0.12518 0.12518 09/01/03 15:28:00 0.21274	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC 31.99053 31.99053 9/01/03 09:56:00 121.7262 09/01/03 00:02:00 31.99053 CH1[RMS](AVE) 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 0.12518 0.12518 0.9/01/03 15:28:00 0.21274 09/01/03 02:06:00 0.12247	P(AVE) Power consumption of PC 31.99053 31.99053 09/01/03 09:56:00 121.7262 09/01/03 00:02:00 31.99053 62.48886 CH1(RMS)(AVE) 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 0.12518 0.12518 09/01/03 15:28:00 0.21274 09/01/03 02:06:00 0.12247 0.1249532	

Statistics information CH Setting

Displays the time of the A/B cursor location, measurement item per CH, model type, data of the cursor location, average value, maximum value, integrated value and unit in the [Statistics Information] tab.

Carries out calculation on the maximum value, minimum value, average value and integrated value between the A/B cursors when [Statistical calculation between A-B Cursors] is selected.

Integrated value will be displayed only for integrated type measurement items.

Procedure

- 1. Drag the mouse over the scope to enlarge with the left button to box it with the box cursor.
- 2. Open up the pop-up menu with a right click and select [Expand selection scope].





Click [Save scale] to save the scale.

5

You can save up to 5 scales. Attempting to save another file will delete the earliest scale.



Graph line type and display

Display On/Off	Color	Thickn	iess	СН	Measurement item	Bar graph display		
V		1	•	CH1	P(AVE)			
V		1	-	CH2	CH1 (RMS) (AVE)			
V		1	•	СНЗ	CH1			
Statistics information CH Setting								

Specifies the ON/OFF display, line color and thickness, use of bar graph for each CH with the [CH setting] tab.

118 3.7 Read the recorded data



The following can be carried out with [Graph setting]

[Common] tab

Common Time axis Y axis Comparison

- Practice automatic setting
- 2 Display grid
- 3 Graph background color 🛛
- 4 Copy graph to clipboard

- **1 Practice automatic setting** Automatically sets scales for both the time axis and Y axis.
- 2 Display grid Displays/hides grids.
- **3 Graph background color** Changes the background colors of the graph.
- 4 Copy graph to clipboard Copies graph to the clipboard. You can copy the graph to Word document etc.

[Time axis] tab

C	ommon	Time axis Y axis Comparison
1	Practic	e automatic setting for time axis
2	Expand	I between A and B
3	Time a	ixis scale
	_	🔺 1 minute 💽 💌
4	Specif	y display scope
	09	/05/2003 10:00:00 📑
		09/05/2003 11:00:00 📑
		Practice
5	Specif	y AB cursor location
	А	09/05/2003 10:00:00 🗦
	В	09/05/2003 10:30:00 📑
		Practice
6	Move	to graph display location
	۲	Move to assignment time
		09/05/2003 00:02:00 📑
	0	Move to Cursor A
	0	Move to Cursor B Practice

- **1 Practice automatic setting for time axis** Automatically sets scale for time axis only.
- 2 Expand between A and B Expands distance between A and B cursors.
- **3 Time axis scale** Changes the scale of the time axis.

4 Specify display scope Specifies the display scope for the time axis direction. Press [Practice] to reflect the setting.

5 Specify of AB cursor location Specifies the location of the cursor.

Press [Practice] to reflect the setting.

6 Move to graph display location Specifies the starting location of the graph display. Press [Practice] to reflect the setting.

[Y axis] tab

Common Time axis Y axis Comparison	
1 Practice automatic setting for all Y axis	
2 Number of axis 3	
Axis1 Axis2 Axis3 Axis comment Axis1	
4 Display CH	
 5 Y axis scale 20 ▼ 6 Practice automatic setting for Y axis 	
7 Specify display scope Practice	,
8 Yaxis grid Fine Rough Standard	1
9	
Maximum 100 Minimum Practice • Shade to display area outside scope • Draw lines to indicate limits	

1 Practice automatic setting for all Y axis Automatically sets scales for all the Y axis.

2 Number of axis

To separate the Y axis according to each CH, set a number higher than 1 for the axis count. Up to 16 axes or the number of the display CH counts can be set.

3 Axis comment

Sets comment for each axis.

4 Display CH

Sets the CH used in each axis.

5 Y axis scale

Sets the Y axis scale for each axis.

6 Practice automatic setting for Y axis Automatically sets the scale for the current Y axis.

7 Specify display scope

Specifies the display scope of the Y axis. Click on [Practice] to reflect Setting.

8 Y axis grid

Sets the interval between the Y axis grids.

9 Display integrated graph

When this setting is enabled, all the graphs for all the CH selected in [CH display] will not be displayed individually but will be displayed as a combined graph.

10 Logic display

Graphically displays the CH selected in [Display CH] as logic.

* [Display integrated graph] and [Logic display] cannot be used simultaneously.

11 Display upper and lower limits

Compares and displays past data when the display item counts (CH count) on

Displays the upper and lower limits on the graph as lines or shadings.

[Comparison] tab



1 Compare data

display are 8 CH or less.

When this setting is enabled, specified data to be compared will be displayed on the table or graph.

2 Comparison data

Specifies the data to be compared. Date can be selected from [date to be specified]/ [The day before]/ [Last week]/ [1 month ago]/ [1 year ago].



Alarm mark

Alarm mark will show when there is an alarm. The types of alarm mark are differentiated by colors.

Red A normal alarm is present.	
Yellow Waveform data is present.	
White	A normal alarm and waveform data are present at the same time.



Right click the alarm mark to change the display. [Model type] and [Measurement item name] of all simultaneous alarms will appear in the sub menu so select the sub menu you wish to display.

Display waveform	Select the alarm and display the waveform data.
	Choose alarm and display list of [Alarm]. You can use to con- firm advanced information.

120

121



You can print graphs.

You can print graphs on A3, A4 and B4 paper. Select [File] – [Print graph] from the menu bar.

Example of graph printing



3.7.5 Main Functions of "Alarm"

Displays the main features of [Alarm].

File(<u>F</u>	Smart Site Viewer C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\sample_e.hrp - [Alarm]								
	Fable 🔛 Graph	Alarm 1day	• to •	Reload Data	Display Item	Maintenan ce View	èelect view	•	Graph setup
No.	Date	Model type	Measurement item	Measurement value	Upper value	Lower value	Unit Kin	4	Added information
	09/01/03 09:18:00	Power consumption of PC	P	107.3861	80	0	W Alar	m generation	
	2 09/01/03 12:24:00	Power consumption of PC	P	47.44815	80	0	W Alar	m o <mark>l</mark> ear	
- 🗕 :	3 09/01/03 13:16:00	Power consumption of PC	P	117.1518	80	0	W Alar	m neration	
	09/01/03 14:18:00	Power consumption of PC	P	70.31251	80	0	W Alar	n r	
!	5 09/01/03 14:24:00	Power consumption of PC	P	113.6283	80	0	W Alar	m.c. neration	
f	09/01/03 15:25:06	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH1		-	-	- Wa	/efi m trigger	Trigger factor: Analog
	7 09/01/03 15:28:14	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH1				- Wa	/efi m trigger	Trigger factor: Analog
{	8 09/01/03 15:50:34	Ambient temperature measurement	CH1	28.1	28	25		m.c. neration	
		Ambient temperature measurement	CH1	28	28	25		m c ear	
1(09/01/03 15:59:00	Ambient temperature measurement			-		 Pov 		Recovery time 10/03 16:00:0
1		Ambient temperature measurement					- Pov	er illure	Recovery time 10/03 16:17:3
		Ambient temperature measurement					 Pov 	er illure	Recovery time 10/03 16:19:5
		2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH1		-		- Wa	/efi m trigger	Trigger factor: Analog
		2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH1						Trigger factor: Analog
		2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH1	-	-	-		/efi m trigger	
		Ambient temperature measurement						er illure	Recovery time 10/03 17:58:3
11	7 09/01/03 19:54:00	Power consumption of PC	P	32.34484	80	0	W Alar	m c ear	

measurement item, upper limit value, lower limit value, unit, type, and added information. You can rearrange the items by click-		lected and right-clicked, the menu appears.
	Display waveform data	When waveform data is present in the select- ed alarm, waveform data appears. It cannot be selected for the other alarms.
ing the title (the place where "No." etc. are displayed).	Display alarm mark	A graph showing the times when an alarm oc- curred appears.

3.8 Acquiring Batches of Waveform Data

You can acquire batches of Model 2321 waveform data that is included in the modules list during recording.

Note This can be used for firmware after version 2.36.
When Model 2321 is included in the [Module List], the [Wave] button appears in the toolbar.

Click the [Wave] button.



Procedure

File(F) Display(V)					
Date: 3/28/2	2008 🔽 🔽	Open Waveform	Batch Trigge		
Occur time	Model comment	Measurement item	Trigger factor		
14:19:27	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level		
14:19:19	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level		
14:19:14	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level		
14:19:06	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level		
14:19:01	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level		

For details on using the Waveform Selection Screen, see 3.9 "Displaying Waveform Data" (page 124).

2. When [Batch Trigger] is clicked, a trigger is attached to all Model 2321 in the module list.

Restrictions

- 1. Because the trigger command is sent to each Model 2321 one at a time, you cannot perform time synchronization for waveform acquisition between each module.
- 2. When waveform data has been acquired in all memories but not collected, you cannot collect waveform data with the batch trigger.
- 3. When acquiring waveforms, waveform data with other triggers attached cannot be acquired with the batch trigger.
- 4. Triggers are not attached to unused channels.

2

Waveform data is automatically collected from the oldest time.

For details on displaying the waveform data, see 3.9 "Displaying Waveform Data" (page 124).

3.9 Displaying Waveform Data

3.9.1 How to Display Waveform Data

You can display waveform data by using the following method.



Waveform data can be displayed from Smart Site Viewer's "Graph". 3.7.4 "Main Functions of "Graph"" (page 116)



Waveform data can be displayed from Smart Site Viewer's "Alarm".
3.9.4 "Displaying Multiple Waveform Data" (page 130)



Waveform data can be displayed by clicking items in 9768 "Alarm Log".



Waveform data can be displayed from 9768 "Waveform Selection".

✤ 3.9.4 "Displaying Multiple Waveform Data" (page 130)

3.9.2 Using the Waveform Selection Screen

When 2321 is included in the [Module List], the [Wave] button appears in the toolbar. Click the [Wave] button to display the Waveform Selection Screen.

Wave			
Waveform Se File(F) Display Date: 3/28/2	(V)	Open Waveform 4	6 5 Batch Trigge
Occur time	Model comment	Measurement item	Trigger factor
14:19:27	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level
14:19:27 14:19:19	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2 CH2	Level
14:19:19	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level

	item	Description
1	Date	Select the waveform date displayed in the list.
2	[Open Waveform]	Open the waveform selected from the list with Smart Site Wave Viewer. You can even display the waveform by double-clicking the cell.
3	[▼]	Open the previous waveform (older) to the waveform currently displayed in Smart Site Viewer.
4	[▲]	Open the next waveform (newer) to the waveform currently displayed in Smart Site Viewer.
5	[Batch Trigger]	Attach triggers to all Model 2321 registered to the current MAP, for functions that can only be used during recording.
6	[×]	Close the Waveform Selection Screen.



Outputting a waveform acquisition time file

Select the waveform selection $\left[\text{File} \right]$ to save the waveform acquisition time list in Excel file format.

File(F) Display	(V)		
Paste to Mich Output to CS	_	Open Waveform	Batch Trigge
Occur time	Model comment	Measurement item	Trigger factor
14:19:27	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level
14:19:19	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level
14:19:14	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level
14:19:06	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level
14:19:01	2321 WAVEFORM MODULE	CH2	Level

Paste to Microsoft Excel	Save waveform acquisition time that occurred on that day in XLS format.
Output to CSV file	Select an optional period and save as a CSV file.



Set operations for Smart Site Viewer

You can set operations for Smart Site Wave Viewer.

File(F) Display	(V)		
	/eform display(SSWv)Settings 🔸	\checkmark Display automatically after acquired wa	aveform data Batch Trigge
Date: Cha	racter size	 Display to the front always 	batch ingge
Occur time	Ivioaei comment	Measurement item	Trigger factor
14:19:27	2321 WAVEFORM MODUL	E CH2	Level
14:19:19	2321 WAVEFORM MODUL	E CH2	Level
14:19:14	2321 WAVEFORM MODUL	E CH2	Level
14:19:06	2321 WAVEFORM MODUL	E CH2	Level
14:19:01	2321 WAVEFORM MODUL	E CH2	Level

Automatically display col- lected waveform data	Select to always display the latest waveform data with Smart Site Wave Viewer
Pin on top	Select to always display Smart Site Wave Viewer at the front.

127





Main Functions

	Menu item	Tool Bar	Description
	Open	1	Open the file. Opens waveform data files with the dedi- cated. mem format extension.
	Save All		Save waveforms in all sections in a text file.
	Save Between Cursors		Save waveforms for cursor sections in a text file.
File	Print	4	Print the displayed waveform.
	Print Preview	-	Display a print preview.
	Printer Settings	_	Make printer settings.
	Exit	F	Exit the Smart Site Wave Viewer.

3.9 Displaying Waveform Data

	Menu item	Tool Bar	Description		
	Tool Bar	_	Switch between showing or hiding the tool bar.		
	Status Bar	-	Switch between showing or hiding the status bar.		
Display	Waveform Control Panel	N	Switch between showing or hiding the [Waveform Con- trol Panel] screen. You can make the following settings on the [Waveform Control Panel] screen. • Enlarge/Reduce and Position waveforms (analog waveforms only) • Show/Hide waveforms • Change waveform colors • Waveform control panel screen> Waveform control panel screen>		
	Trace		Switch between showing or hiding the [Trace] dialog box. In the [Trace] dialog box, you can check the 2 cur- sor locations for time value and time line, as well as volt- age values and variations for all channels. <trace box="" dialog=""> Trace $A : \frac{1}{92} = \frac{1}{9} \cdot A : \frac{1}{999} = \frac{1}{9} \cdot A : \frac{1}{999} = \frac{1}{9} \cdot A : \frac{1}{999} = \frac{1}{9} \cdot A : \frac{1}{9} \cdot B : : \frac{1}{9} : \frac{1}{9} \cdot B : \frac{1}{9}$</trace>		
	Reduce and Enlarge	Q Q Zoom 1:2	Enlarge or Reduce the displayed waveform.		
	Jump	_	Change the waveform display position to [Trigger Position], [Cursor A] or [Cursor B] positions.		
	Timetable record	-	Select the display format for the scale label for the horizontal axis from the following. [DIV/Seconds/ Points/Relative Time/Time]		
	Type of grid	-	Select the type of horizontal axis grid from the following. [None/Standard/ Detailed]		
	Title display	-	Switch between showing or hiding the Title.		
	Legend display	_	Switch between showing or hiding the legend display.		
	Gauge display	_	Switch between showing or hiding the Gauge display.		
	Specified value	_	Return display settings to their specified values.		
Help	SSWv version information	_	Display version information for Smart Site Wave Viewer.		



Converting and saving waveform data as a text file (File saving function)

You can convert waveform data into a text file for all sections or the cursor sections, and then save. Use the file saving function to save as a text file when you want to edit waveform data by using a spreadsheet program etc.

Save	? 🔀
1 Save in: 📋 My Documents 📃 🗢 🗈 👩	* III *
File name: Wv532101_133216	Open
Save as type: CSV(Comma Separated)	Cancel
2Thin Out 1 🕂 Save data num : 20000	
3Time Notation Sec	<< Adv.
5Newline Code LF 👤	

When saving a file, make the following settings.

item		Description		
1	File type	Select from the types in the column on the right.	[CSV (comma delimited) /Text (space delimited)/Text (tab delimited)]	
2	Narrowing	When [1] is set, you can save it by performing pixel skipping on the waveform data. Set the value for thinning out the data for what sampling interval.		
3	Time axis format	Select the type of time axis format from the fol- lowing.	[Seconds/Time/Relative time /Points]	
4	Open after conversion	When selected, after saving the file, it is automatically opened by an application associated with CSV files.		
5	Line feed code	Select the line feed code from [LF/CR+LF]. Click the [Advanced Settings] button to display the setting items.		

Procedure

1. Select [Saving Location].

2. Enter the [File name], and set the items from the table above.

3. Click the [Save] button to save the file. (If you do not want to save, click [Cancel])

3.9.4 Displaying Multiple Waveform Data

With Smart Site Viewer you can display multiple waveform data simultaneously from the Smart Site Viewer Alarm screen or the Waveform Selection screen.

Procedure

- Display Smart Site Viewer or the Waveform Selection screen.
 Select the waveform you want to display with the SHIFT and CTRL keys. The selected data opens in the illustration.
 For Smart Site Viewer, when you right-click on the selected waveform and [Waveform Data Display] is selected, the waveform appears. For the Waveform Selection screen, when you click [Open Waveform] the waveform appears.
 - You can save the waveform data displayed in CSV format.
 - When displaying waveform data with a different number of acquired data at the same time, the lowest data is unified and displayed.

Z Click [Open V	Vaveform] button.		ck the selected waveforms a waveform data]	nd select
aveform Selection e(F) Display(V) Date: 3/28/2008 Open Way		Sinart Site Viewer, C:VProgram Files\SmartSiteUtility\sample File(F) Report(R) Help(H) < Table Sceph Table Sceph	003 Nenew	
Court Model comment Measurement if 19:27 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 19:18 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 19:19 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 19:06 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 19:06 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 19:01 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 18:38 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 18:39 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:30 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:31 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:42 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:32 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:40 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:41 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 17:42 2321 WAVEFORM MODULE CH2 <td< th=""><th>al al al al al al al al al al al al al a</th><th>No. Date Model type Measur. Me</th><th>L. Uppe Lowe Unit Kind Waved Waved Waved Waved Waved Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave</th><th>Added information Display waveform data Display alarm mark and fractor: Analog over factor: Analog</th></td<>	al al al al al al al al al al al al al a	No. Date Model type Measur. Me	L. Uppe Lowe Unit Kind Waved Waved Waved Waved Waved Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave Wave	Added information Display waveform data Display alarm mark and fractor: Analog over factor: Analog
	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1.25ms 2.5ms 3.75ms 5ms		
	CH Position Zor CHI[V] 50% 10 CHI[V] 50% 12 CHI[V] 50% 12 CHI[V] 50% 16 CHI[V] 50% 16 CHI[V] 50% 18 CHI[V] 50% 10 CHI[V] 50% 16 CHI[V	.0 07-23-07 09:28:59.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:01.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:03.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:05.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:05.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:07.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:07.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-23-07 09:27:07.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-39-07 09:27:07.0073 [23]-[01] (2 .0 07-		

Display method of waveforms in [Waveform Selection]screen

Display method of waveforms in [Smart Site Viewer]

3.9 Displaying Waveform Data

Operation (Advanced)

4.1 Creating the Layout

For information on how to easily monitor measurements, see 3.3.3 "Setting the Monitor" (page 86).

Here, we will explain how to make a slick and professional "layout".

4.1.1 Creating the Layout

You can create a layout screen for a monitoring system like the diagram below by using the layout parts in Layout.

Layout link button

Moves the screen to a layout that has been previously registered in the layout list.

Measurement graphic

Displays measured values as a bar graph. Displays measured values in the form of a bar graph for which you have set maximum and minimum values, orientation, and other parameters.



Send buttons These buttons send commands to the modules.

Module alarm states can be displayed as a series of on/off indicators.

You can select either a color- or graphic-based display format.



 Image created for the background

134 4.1 Creating the Layout

The flow for creating the layout screen is as follows.



(1) Deciding on the screen size

Decide on the screen size to be used for monitoring system status.

Use the mouse to set the position and size of the screen for Smart Site Utility Pro. You can display the entire screen in Smart Site Utility Pro. If you are not displaying all screens, go to step 4.1.1 (2) (Page 136)

The layout opens on the entire screen (Full Screen) You can display the layout on the entire screen.

Procedure

1. Right-click the layout, and select [Display Entire Screen].

Save Layout	
Display Full Screen	
Edit Screen	Þ
Change background image	
Background color	
Add Layout Parts	Þ
Grid Distance for Layout Parts	۲
Displaying Module Explorer	
Displaying Tool Window	
Clear Layout	▶



Display the layout on the entire screen.

Note

To return to the previous size, select [Display Entire Screen] or press the ESC key.

136

4.1 Creating the Layout

(2) Changing background color

You can change the background color for the layout.

Procedure

1. Right-click the layout, and select [Background Color].

Save Layout	
Display Full Screen	
Edit Screen	Þ
Change background image	
Background color	
Add Layout Parts	۲
Grid Distance for Layout Parts	۲
Displaying Module Explorer	
Displaying Tool Window	
Clear Lavout	



When the [Set Color] screen opens, select the background color and click the [OK] button.


4.1 Creating the Layout

(3) Placing the background image

Set the position and size of the background image you created, and register as the background image.

Procedure

Save Layout Display Full Screen	_			
Edit Screen	_			
Change background image Background color				
Add Layout Parts	Comment			
Grid Distance for Layout Parts	Measurement Label Measurement Graphic			
Clear Layout	ON/OFF indicator			
	Layout Link Button Image			
Click the file you	u want to place	, and then click	[<mark>Open]</mark> .	
Use the mouse	to change the p	osition and siz	e of the ima	ae.
Grab the corner	of the image, f	ix the aspect ra	atio, and cha	inge the si
Once you have	the layout you v	want, right-clicl	k the image.	
Select [Register	the layout you as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image.	the layout you as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background im	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Change Image Change Image Register as background im Edit Screen	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Change Image Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background im Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts	as backgrour	want, right-clicl nd image] to re	k the image. egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	nd image] to re	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	nd image] to re	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	nd image] to re	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	round image, t	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	pround image, t	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	round image] to re pround image, t	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	round image] to re peration No.1 Pump No.2 Pump	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background im Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts	as backgrour	round image] to re round image, to No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump	egister it as	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close	as backgrour	round image] to re pround image, to No Pump Ho 2 Pump Ho 2 Pump Ho 2 Pump Failure Alarm Voter gauge failure Power failure No 1 Pump T Current Ho 1 Pump T Current Ho 1 Pump T Current Ho 1 Pump T Current	he image clo	the backg
Select [Register image.] Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close As it is registere	as backgrour	round image] to re round image, to state No.1 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.2	he image clo	the backg
Select [Register image.] Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close As it is registere	as backgrour	round image] to re round image, to round image, to No.2 Pump No.2	he image clo	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close As it is registere	as backgrour	Cperation No.1 Pump Stafe No.2 Pump No.1 Pump Current No.1 Pump No.1 Pump No.1 Pump Current No.1 Pump No.1 Pump No.1 Pump No.1 Pump No.1 Pump Montol No.1 Pump	he image clo	the backg
Select [Register image. Change Image Register as background in Edit Screen Auto Adjust Size Copy Layout Parts Close As it is registere	as backgrour	Coperation No.1 Pump State No.2 Pump No.1 Pump No.1 Pump Failure No.1 Pump Vater gauge failure Power failurer No.1 Pump Ro.1 Pump No.1 Pump Ro.2 Pump Vater gauge failure No.1 Pump R Current No.1 Pump T Current No.2 Pump T Current No.1 Pump T Current No.2 Pump T Current No.2 Pump T Current No.2 Pump T Current Vater level Ro.1 Pump Ranual / Au	he image clo	the backg

138

4.1 Creating the Layout

(4) Placing the layout parts

You can place the layout parts on the background image.



Placing comments

You can display optional comments in the layout.

Procedure





2.

Enter the comment and then click [OK].



3.

Use the mouse to place the comment.



For more details on the right-click menu for comments, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151).

139

Placing measurement labels

You can place "Measurement Labels" without borders in the layout.

NOTE
The difference between the Monitoring screen and the Measurement labels is as follows.Measurement labels do not have borders.
INIEasurement labels do not have borders.
Measurement labels display measurement item units, and the Monitoring
• Measurement labels display measurement item units, and the Monitoring
screen displays module units.

Procedure

.ayout		
isplay Full Screen dit Screen	•	
Phange background image Packground color		
Add Layout Parts	Comment	
àrid Distance for Layout Parts	Monitor Window	
Displaying Module Explorer	Measurement Label	
Displaying Tool Window	Measurement Graphic	
Clear Layout	 ON/OFF indicator Trend Graph 	
	Layout Link Button Image	

2.

An additional window for Measurement labels opens. You can select from all of the module measurement items included in the module list. Select the measurement item to display, and then click [OK].

Layout - Measurement item settings	×
Please select a measurememt item to display.	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	•
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Inst) ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Mean)	^
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Peak)	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Bottom) ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(p-p)	

3. Us

Ē

Use the mouse to place the Measurement label.



For more details on the right-click menu for measurement labels, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151).

140 4.1 Creating the Layout

Placing measurement graphics

You can place "Measurement Graphics" in the layout.

Procedure

 Right-click the layout, and select [Add Layout Parts] - [Measurement Graphic].



2.

An additional window for measurement graphics opens. You can select from all of the module measurement items included in the module list.

Select the measurement item to display, and then click [OK].

Layout - Measurement item settings	×
Please select a measurememt item to display.	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	•
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Inst) ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Mean)	^
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Peak)	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Bottom) ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	
ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(o-o)	

3. Use the mouse to change the position and size of the measurement graphic.



For more details on the right-click menu for measurement graphics, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151).



Procedure

1. Right-click on the layout and select [Add Layout Parts] - [ON/OFF Indicator].



2. The measurement items window opens. You can select from all of the module measurement items included in the module list. Select the measurement item to display, and then click [OK].

Layo	out - Measurement item settings	×
	Please select a measurememt item to display.	
	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	-
	[ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Inst) [ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Mean)	^
	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Peak)	
	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(Bottom)	
	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	
	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(p-p)	



Use the mouse to place the ON/OFF indicators.



For more details on the right-click menu for ON/OFF indicators, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151).



Placing Trend Graph

You can place Trend Graph in the layout.

Procedure



1

Right-click on the layout and select [Add Layout Parts] - [Trend Graph].



2.

The display items selection window of trend graph opens.

		ent item			
006.9	t count 0 /	15			Searching down conditions for items on display
٦	D	Model comment	Measurement item	Property	Search down by ID(xx+yy #zz)
	1-04 #01	2332 POWER METER MODULE	U1	Instant value	Display All
	1-04 #02	2332 POWER METER MODULE	U2	Instant value	· Display All
	1-04 #03	2332 POWER METER MODULE	SindenP_No.1P_RI	Instant value	○ Value range of upper digit (xx)
	1-04 #04	2332 POWER METER MODULE	SindenP_No.1P_TI	Instant value	Value range of middle digit (yy)
	1-04 #05	2332 POWER METER MODULE	SindenP_No.2P_RI	Instant value	
	1-04 #06	2332 POWER METER MODULE	SindenP_No.2P_TI	Instant value	Search down by model comment
1	1-04 #09	2332 POWER METER MODULE	P1	Instant value	Display only item with the following labels
	1-04 #10	2332 POWER METER MODULE	P2	Instant value	
	1-04 #12	2332 POWER METER MODULE	Q1	Instant value	
1	1-04 #13	2332 POWER METER MODULE	Q2	Instant value	Search down by Measurement Items
	1-04 #15	2332 POWER METER MODULE	PF1	Instant value	Display only item with the following labels
	1-04 #16	2332 POWER METER MODULE	PF2	Instant value	
	1-04 #18	2332 POWER METER MODULE	FREQ	Instant value	6
1	1-04 #19	2332 POWER METER MODULE	WP+1	Instant value	Search down by property
ť.	1-04 #20	2332 POWER METER MODULE	WP+2	Instant value	Display All

Select the measurement item to display, and then click [OK]. Up to 16 items can be shown by the trend graph.

	Setting item	Description		
1	Select	Select(S) Align(A) Check selection range	 Checks/unchecks multiple items selected by dragging (shown in blue). When there are 16 or fewer items in the list, allows you to select/clear all items. When there are 16 or fewer items which meet the property in the list, allows you to select these items at once. 	

	Setting item	Description		
2	Align	Align (A) Sort by ID Sort by model type Sort by measurement item Sort by property Move selected item up Alt+Up Move selected item down Alt+Down		

Use the [Searching down conditions for measurement items on display] for easier selection of measured items to output. Only measurement items which meet all the conditions of each group condition will be displayed.

	Setting item	Description		
3	Search down by ID (xx-yy #zz)	Only the upper ID and middle ID of the Member ID which is within the specified range will be displayed.		
4	Search down by model comment	Only items containing characters inputted into the model comment will be dis- played.		
5	Search down by Measurement Items	Only items containing characters inputted into the measurement itemsÅf names will be displayed.		
6	Search down by property	Only properties of the measurement items which are items of specified models will be displayed. The following properties can be specified. Instant value/average value/maximum value/ minimum value/ integrated value/ logic value/ display all		



3.



For more details on the right-click menu for trend graph, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151)



- The trend graph is updated every second, using the monitor data. If wireless connec-
- tion conditions are poor, the measurement values may not be displayed properly. The trend graph can show up to 16 items and up to one hour's worth of data. When one hour is exceeded, old data will progressively disappear from view.

4.1 Creating the Layout

Placing the layout link button

Use the following steps to place the layout link button.

Procedure

1. Right-click the layout, and select [Add Layout Parts] - [Layout Link Button].



2.

Select the layout link target in the link button additional window, and then click [OK].



When you place the link button, save the layout again.



A

For more details on the right-click menu for layout link button, see 4.1.3 (2) (Page 151).

144

145



Use the following steps to place the send button.

Procedure

1. Right-click the layout, and select [Add Layout Parts] - [Comm Button].

Save Layout		1
Display Full Screen Edit Screen	•	
Change background image Background color		
Add Layout Parts	•	Comment
Grid Distance for Layout Parts	•	Monitor Window
Displaying Module Explorer		Measurement Label
Displaying Tool Window		Measurement Graphic
Clear Layout	۲	ON/OFF indicator Trend Graph
	-	Layout Link Button
		Image
		Display Object
		Comm Button

2.

Right-click on the newly added button and select [Communication button settings].

Communication button setting	s
Edit Screen	•
Text Display Position	•
 Auto Adjust Size 	
Font	
Character Color	
Background Color	



The [Communication button settings] dialog box will be displayed.



Setting item		Description
1	1 Displayed text • Changes the text displayed in the button.	
2	2 Command • Sets the command to send to the measurement module.	
3	Comm target	 Selects the module to which to send the command.

146 4.1 Creating the Layout

(5) Locking the Layout

You can lock the layout screen to prohibit screen editing for all of the layout parts.

Procedure

,	Right-click the layout, and select [Edit Screen].	
	Select [Deny All].	
	Save Layout	
	Display Full Screen Edit Screen → → Allow All	
	Display Full Screen	
	Display Full Screen Edit Screen Allow All Change background image	
	Display Full Screen Edit Screen Allow All Deny All Deny All Deny All Add Layout Parts Add Layout Parts 	

(6) Saving the layout

When you have finished placing layout parts, save the Layout.

Procedure

1. Right-click the layout, and select [Save Layout].

Save Layout	
Display Full Screen Edit Screen	
Change background image Background color	
Add Layout Parts Grid Distance for Layout Parts	
Displaying Module Explorer Displaying Tool Window	
Clear Layout	

2. When the save screen opens, enter the "Name to save as".

3. If you use a shortcut key for the screen, set the shortcut key.

4. Click [Save].

Save Layout	×
It names and the state of layout is saved.	
The list of layout names saved	
Top View	
Name to save as	
Shortcut key (Nothing)	
Save Cancel	

When the layout is saved, the names already saved in the [Layout List] appear.

Module List Layout List	
Restore Layout	
Layout Top View Screen 1	(An example of saving the layout as "Screen 1")



(7) Deleting the layout

Use the following steps to delete the layout.

Procedure



Module List	Layout List		
	Resto	re Layout	
Layout Top View Screen 1 Screen 2 Restore			
Save			



(8) Switching layouts with the layout link button

When you want to monitor multiple layouts, you can place a [Layout Link] button in the layout to switch back and forth between screens.

	When the layout is only 1 screen, you do not need a [Layout Link] button.		
At Th Yo Yo Di: Yo	Ote bout Top View he [Top view] for the layout list is a special layout. bu can display a dedicated button in the tool bar for moving to the Top view. bu can switch to the Top view screen by clicking the Top view button. Isplaying the Top view bu can display the Top view button by selecting the Top view check box from the ayout list.		
	Module List Layout List Restore Layout Layout Top View Screen 1 Screen 2		
	Display Top View Button Data Auto Top View		

149



Using the Module Explorer

The Module Explorer allows you to use previously configured module settings to easily configure additional modules.

Procedure

1. Right-click on the layout and select [Display Module Explorer].





The Module Explorer will be displayed.

💑 Module Explorer (For setup Drag & D	rop) 📃 🗖 🔀	No.1 Pump		
III▼ I. ⊡ III PC	ID: 04 (2332 POWER METER MODULE) Number of meas	No.2 Pump		
COM ID: 01 (Sinden pump station)	200	No.1 Pump	-	
ID: 01 (234) IN OT MODULE)	SindenP_No.1P_RL	No.2 Pump		
ID: 04 (2332 POWER METER MOD COM ID: 02 (Tokiwagi pump station)	SindenP_No.2P_RI	Unusual high water level		
ID: 01 (2341 INPUT MODULE)	SindenP_No.2P_TI P1	Water gauge failure		
ID: 03 (2005 INSTRUMENTATION	Drag and	Power failurer		
COM ID: 03 (Goka pump station)	drop here			A
ID: 02 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) ID: 03 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION	PF2 FREQ	No.1 Pump T Current		A
- D: 04 (2332 POWER METER MOD - COM ID: 04 (Koizumi pump station)	WP+1 WP+2	No.2 Pump R Current		A
ID: 01 (2341 INPUT MODULE) ID: 02 (2342 OLITPUT MODULE)		No.2 Pump T Current		A
		Water level		М

To apply settings, drag and drop them onto the desired layout component.

4.1.2 Switching layouts

You can use either of the following methods to switch between layouts.

Procedure



4.1.3 Right-Click Menus for Layouts and Layout Parts

The right-click menus for the layouts and the layout parts appear.

(1) The right-click menu in layouts

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in layouts.

Right-click menu	Description
Save Layout	 Save the layout. (Page 146)
Display Entire Screen	Open the layout on the entire screen (Full Screen).
Edit Screen	 Set screen movement for all monitor screens, as well as allow/deny permissions for editing all layout parts on the screen.
Change Background Image	View the background image in the layout.
Add Layout Part	Add layout parts.
Grid Distance for Layout Parts	Set the grid for quantifying the amount of movement for parts that make up the layout.By setting the grid, you can line up the different layout parts.
Clear Layout	 Clear the layout. Use [Clear Background Image] to clear the background. Use [Clear Monitor and Layout Parts] to clear all of the Monitoring screen and Layout parts. Use [Clear All] to clear the entire layout.
Exit Smart Site Utility	Exit the Smart Site Utility.

(2) Right-Click Menu for Layout Parts



Right-Click Menu for Comments

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in Comments.

Right-click menu	Description
Change Comment	Change the contents of the comment.
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the comment.
Text Display Position	 Set the text display position.
Auto Adjust Size	 Automatically adjusts the size.
Font	Change the font of the comment.
Character Color	 Change the character color of the comment.
Background Color	 Change the background color of the comment.
Copy Layout Parts	 Create a copy of the comment. *After copying, the new comment inherits the comment's attributes (contents, text display position, size, font, character color, and background color).
Close	Close the comment.



Right-Click Menu for Measurement Labels

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in Measurement Labels.

Right-click menu	Description
Unit Display	Set whether or not to use a unit display.
Change display measurement item	Change the measurement item displayed.
Module settings	Change alarm settings etc. for the module.
Edit Screen	• Set allow or deny permissions for editing the measurement label.
Text Display Position	 Set the text display position.
Auto Adjust Size	 Automatically adjusts the size.
Font	Change the font of the measurement label.
Measurement Colors	Change the character color of the measurement label.
Background Color	Change the background color of the measurement label.
Copy Layout Parts	• Create a copy of the measurement label. *After copying, the new Measurement label inherits the Mea- surement label's attributes (Presence of unit display, display items, module settings, text display position, size, font, mea- surement colors, and background color).
Close	Close the measurement label.

~

Right-Click Menu for Measurement Graphics

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in Measurement Graphics.

Right-click menu	Description
Graphic settings * ¹	 Set the display range, upper and lower limit display, as well as the gauge display.
Change display measurement item	 Change the measurement item displayed.
Module settings	 Change alarm settings etc. for the module.
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the measurement graphic.
Copy Layout Parts	 Create a copy of the measurement graphic. *After copying, the new measurement graphic inherits the Measurement label's attributes (Graphic settings, display items, module settings).
Close	Close the measurement graphic.

*¹: Graphic settings

You can set the display range, upper and lower limit display, as well as the gauge display in measurement graphic settings.

Procedure

7. Right-click the Measurement graphic, and select [Graphic settings].

2. Set the maximum and minimum values within the display range.

- **3.** You can set the upper and lower limit display.
- **4.** You can set the gauge display.

5. Press the Update button to update the measurement graphic display.

153



Right-click menu for the ON/OFF indicator You can find the following items on the right-click menu for the ON/OFF indicator.

Right-click menu	Description
ON/OFF indicator settings * ¹	 Set the image, color, and style of the borderline.
Change display measurement item	 Change the measurement item displayed.
Module settings	 Change alarm settings etc. for the module.
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the ON/OFF indicator.
Auto Adjust Size	 Automatically adjusts the size.
Copy Layout Parts	 Create a copy of the ON/OFF indicator. *After copying, the new ON/OFF indicator inherits the ON/OFF indicator's attributes (Image settings, display items, and module settings).
Close	Close the measurement ON/OFF indicator.

*1: Setting ON/OFF indicators

You can set the style of the background color, image, and borderline with the ON/OFF indicator.

Procedure

- 1 Right-click on the ON/OFF indicator, and select [ON/OFF Indicator Settings].
- 2. You can set the image and color at ON/OFF.
- З. You can set the borderline style.

4. Press the [OK] button to change the ON/OFF measurement display.

Right-Click Menu for Trend Graph

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in trend graph.

Right-click menu	Description
Change display measurement item	Change the displayed measurement items.
Setting of graph *1	Set the detail of graph.
Alignment of trend graph	 Aligns trend graphs on the Layout screen with the edge of the screen. The size of the trend graphs will be auto- matically adjusted.
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the trend graph.
Copy Layout Parts	 Copies a trend graph. *The trend graph's attributes (graph settings, display items, display position, and size) will be applied to the newly created trend graph.
Close	Close the trend graph.

*1 : Setting of trend graph

You can set details of the time axis, Y axis, and the display, etc. by the graph setting.

Procedure

Right-click on the trend graph, and select [Setting of graph].

2. You can set Common, Time axis, and Y axis in the trend graph.

For details on this function, see 3.7.4"Main Functions of "Graph"" - "The following can be carried out with [Graph setting]" (page 118). (In the trend graph, some functions may not be used.)

З.

You can set the display settings in the graph.
 Selected items are displayed in the graph.



155



Right-Click Menu for Images

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in Images.

Right-click menu	Description			
Change image	Read the image.			
Register as background image	Registers the image as the background image.			
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the image. 			
Auto Adjust Size	Restore it to the size when reading.			
Copy Layout Parts	 Create a copy of the image. *After copying, the new image inherits the image's attributes (Image, sized). 			
Close	Close the image.			

Right-click Menu for Layout Link Button

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in Layout Link Button.

Right-click menu	Description
Change link target	Change the layout link target for the button.
Edit Screen	 Set allow or deny permissions for editing the layout link button.
Text Display Position	Set the text display position.
Auto Adjust Size	 Automatically adjusts the size.
Font	 Change the font of the layout link button.
Character Color	Change the character color of the layout link button.
Background Color	Change the background color of the layout link button.
Copy Layout Parts	 Create a copy of the layout link button. *After copying, the new layout link button inherits the layout link button's attributes (link target, text display position, size, font, character color, and background color).
Close	Close the ilayout link button.



Right-click Menu for Send Button

You can find the following items in the right-click menu in send Button.

Right-click menu	Description
Configure Send Button	 Sets the button name, command to send, and target module.
Edit Screen	 Enables/disables editing of the comment screen.
Set Text Display Position	 Sets the text display position.
Automatically Adjust Size	 Automatically adjusts the size.
Change Font	 Changes the font used to display the send button.
Change Text Color	 Changes the text color used to display the send button.
Change Background Color	 Changes the background color of the send button.
Copy Layout Component	 Creates a copy of the send button. *The copied button will inherit the attributes of the send button (communications and display settings).
Close	Closes the send button.

156

4.2 Report Creating Function

This section explains how to create various reports.

- Data collected with the Smart Site Utility can be used to create daily and monthly reports.
- Daily and monthly reports can be output as Microsoft Excel files in 1-month-units.
- A maximum of 10 report files can be created.
- Since the latest data and the past data can be displayed on 1 sheet, data can be compared briefly.
- Excel 2000, 2002, 2003, 2007, and 2010 are supported.
- For creating daily and monthly reports, a format file to be used as a template must first be created in Microsoft Excel.
- After report making, you can perform Microsoft Excel macro.

General procedure

1.	Create the format file.	♦ 4.2.1 (page 158)
2.	Test the output and edit the format file as necessary.	♦ 4.2.2 (page 168)
З.	Create reports automatically.	✤ 4.2.3 (page 170)

4.2.1 Creating a Format File

An example for a format file and a sample output report are shown below. This section explains the procedure for creating the format file, using the examples shown.
See the [Report] folder in the application folder (such as C:\Program Files\Smart-SiteUtility or similar).

Sample format file

Excel template example		Commer	nt tag	
	< <c01-01-01>></c01-01-01>	< <c01-01-02>></c01-01-02>	< <c01-01-16>></c01-01-16>	< <c01-32-01>></c01-32-01>
Date tag				
< <date>></date>	<<01-01-01>>	<<01-01-02>>	<<01-01-16>>	<<01-32-01>>
1 < <t0:00-1:00>></t0:00-1:00>				
2 < <t1:00-2:00>></t1:00-2:00>		[Mei	mber ID]	
3 < <t2:00-3:00>></t2:00-3:00>			ed by system 📙	
4 < <t3:00-4:00>></t3:00-4:00>		conf	iguration	
5 < <t4:00-5:00>></t4:00-5:00>				
6 < <t5:00-6:00>></t5:00-6:00>			1	
7 < <t6:00-7:00>></t6:00-7:00>	•			
8 < <t7:00-8:00>></t7:00-8:00>	Time tag		a values for mem	
9 < <t8:00-9:00>> 10 <<t9:00-10:00>></t9:00-10:00></t8:00-9:00>		_	-01-16], 5:00 - 6:	
11 < <t10:00-11:00>></t10:00-11:00>		period ar	re output to this	cell.
12 < <t11:00-12:00>></t11:00-12:00>				
13 < <t12:00-13:00>></t12:00-13:00>				
14 < <t13:00-14:00>></t13:00-14:00>				
15 < <t14:00-15:00>></t14:00-15:00>				
16 < <t15:00-16:00>></t15:00-16:00>				
17 < <t16:00-17:00>></t16:00-17:00>	The o	display can be	\	
18 < <t17:00-18:00>></t17:00-18:00>		olled by setting		
19 < <t18:00-19:00>> 20 <<t19:00-20:00>></t19:00-20:00></t18:00-19:00>		neters. (In this		
20 << T19:00 - 20:00// 21 << T20:00 - 21:00>>		when the sum is		
22 < <t21:00-22:00>></t21:00-22:00>	(0 , a	blank is shown.	/	
23 < <t22:00-23:00>></t22:00-23:00>		[
24 < <t23:00-24:00>></t23:00-24:00>				
Total	0.0	0.Q	0	0.0
Maximum	0.0	0.0 0.0	0	0.0
Minimum	0.0	00	Calculation can l	De 0.0
Average		р	erformed using E	xcel
This kind of template can	also be used.		formulas.	
< <date>></date>	Temperature	Humidity		dth and cell
	<<01-32-01>>	<<01-32-02>>		settings are
< <t10:00>></t10:00>				ed from the
< <t18:00>></t18:00>			ter	nplate.
< <t21:00>></t21:00>				
Temperature at 16:00	Chara	cter string is	Create r	report for
< <t16:00,01-32-01>></t16:00,01-32-01>		layed as is.		and humidity
			at 10:00, 1	8:00, 21:00.
	report for			
temp	erature at			



Sample report

PC J1(AVE) 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	Power consumption of PC WP+ 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	Ambient temperature measurement Ambient temperature 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	temperature 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.2	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.2	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32 32	27.5 27.5 27.5
100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.2	0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32 32	27. 27.
100.6 100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.4 0.5 1.2	32 32	27.
100.6 100.5 100.2 100.1	0.4 0.5 1.2	32	
100.5 100.2 100.1	0.5 1.2		27.
100.2 100.1	1.2	32	
100.1		-•	26.8
	4.4	90	27.4
100 1	1.4	105	27.
100.1	1.5	107	27.
100.3	0.8	59	27.3
100.2	1.2	90	27.
100.2	1.4	101	27.
100.1	1.5	108	27.
100.1	1.5	110	27.
100.1	1.4	105	27.9
100.1		109	28.2
100.1	1.3	97	27.
100.6	0.5	32	27.3
100.6		32	27.1
100.6	0.5	32	26.9
100.6	0.5	32	27.0
2409.1		1500	659.3
100.6	1.5	110	28.2
100.1	0.4	32	26.
100.4	0.9	62	27.
so be used.			
nperature			
27.4	5.5		
ŀ		Ambient Pt dummy mperature resistance	AmbientPt dummy resistance27.45.527.95.5

Temperature at 16:00 27.7 159



Tag types Strings enclosed in "<<" and ">>" (tags) written to the format file allow you to modify the output to an Excel worksheet. The table below lists the available tag types

Tag types and their use in reports

Тад	Example	Output item	Effective direction [*]	Display format [type]	See
Dayly report:					
< <date>></date>	< <date>></date>	Report output date	Single cell	Date	P.178
< <t id="" member="" time,="">></t>	< <t2:00,01-01-02>></t2:00,01-01-02>	Setting value		Value	P.178
< <t time="">></t>	< <t1:00>></t1:00>	Time	Single cell + right		P.178
< <t -="" time="">></t>	< <t1:00-2:00>></t1:00-2:00>	Time		string	P.179
Monthly report:					
< <mdate>></mdate>	< <mdate>></mdate>	1st of month	Single cell	Date	P.180
< <d date="">></d>	< <d3>></d3>	Date	Single cell + right	Value	P.180
< <w>></w>	< <w>></w>	Day of week	Single cell + down	Character string	P.180
< <max id="" member="">></max>	< <max01-01-01>></max01-01-01>	Maximum value		Value	P.180
< <max id,<br="" member="">interval (minutes)>></max>	< <max01-01-01,30>></max01-01-01,30>	Maximum value in specified interval			P.181
< <maxt id="" member="">></maxt>	< <maxt01-01-01>></maxt01-01-01>	Time of maximum value		Character string	P.181
< <maxt id,<br="" member="">interval (minutes)>></maxt>	< <maxt01-01-01,30>></maxt01-01-01,30>	Time of maximum value in specified interval			P.182
< <at id="" member="" time,="">></at>	< <at10:00,01-01-01>></at10:00,01-01-01>	Measurement value at given time		Value	P.182
Daily/Monthly commo	n items:				
< <c id="" member="">></c>	< <c01-01-01>></c01-01-01>	Comment	Single cell	Character string	P.178
< <member id="">></member>	<<01-01-01>>	Measurement value	Single cell + down	Value	P.178

*The effective tag direction has 3 states.

Single cell	Based on the tag information, the value is output only to the cell for which the tag is written.	
Single cell + right	In addition to the single cell write, data are also written to the position where right-oriented tags and down-oriented tags intersect. This allows easy creation of tabular data.	
Single cell + down		

< <date>></date>	Single cell	Singi	e cell + dowr <<01-01-		
	< <t10:00>></t10:00>				
<mark>Single c</mark>	ell + right		+	also v	urement value is vritten to point
				and d	right-oriented own-oriented ntersect.

Create the formatting for the report. The explanations in this section use Microsoft Excel 2000 as an example. In Excel 2002 and 2003, you can create a format file using similar procedures.

4.2 Report Creating Function



Steps to make daily report format file

First, the simple steps on how to make a daily format file of record data will be explained.

Procedure

162

1. Start Smart Site Viewer and select [Report]-[Make report format file...].





Make report format file screen will appear.

	ect count5 / 18 Member	Model comment	Measurement item	Attribute	Searching down conditions for items on display
7	01-01-01	Power consumption of PC	U1(AVE)	Average value	Display All
7		Power consumption of PC	I1(AVE)	Average value	Dishida Mil
7	01-01-03	Power consumption of PC	P(AVE)	Average value	✓ Value range of upper digit (xx)
	01-01-04	Power consumption of PC	PF(AVE)	Average value	Value range of middle digit (yy)
7	01-01-05	Power consumption of PC	FREQ(AVE)	Average value	
1	01-01-06	Power consumption of PC	U1(MAX)	Maximum val	Search down by model comment
1	01-01-07	Power consumption of PC	II(MAX)	Maximum val	Display only item with the following labels
-	01-01-08	Power consumption of PC	P(MAX)	Maximum val	
-	01-01-09	Power consumption of PC	PF(MAX)	Maximum val	6 Search down by Measurement Items
-	01-01-10	Power consumption of PC	FREQ(MAX)	Maximum val	Display only item with the following labels
1	01-01-11	Power consumption of PC	U1(MIN)	Minimum value	
-	01-01-12	Power consumption of PC	I1(MIN)	Minimum value	7
-	01-01-13	Power consumption of PC	P(MIN)	Minimum value	Search down by Attribute
	01-01-14	Power consumption of PC	PF(MIN)	Minimum value	Display All
1	01-01-15	Power consumption of PC	FREQ(MIN)	Minimum value	
1	01.01.10	n / (ne	un.	<u> </u>	1
	Maka daila ra	eport format file			

3. Set the measurement items to output as a report and format file information.

	Setting items	Contents
1	Measured item list	 Check the measurement items to output as a report. The following can be carried out when the [Select] menu is selected. (1) Clear all selections (2) Additional selection/ clear selection of selection range The following can be carried out when the [Align] menu is selected. (1) Align by Member ID/ model type/ measurement item/ attribute. (2) Move selected item up or down.
2	Daily report format file	To make the daily report format file, check here to set the for- mat file name and interval. Intervals can be set for example, at [60 minute intervals for original data at 10 minute intervals].
3	Monthly report format file	To make the monthly report format file, check here to set the format file name.

Use the [Searching down conditions for measurement items on display] for easier selection of measurement items to output. Only measurement items which meet all the conditions of each group condition will be

displayed.

Se	earching down conditions	Contents
4	Search down by Member ID	Only the upper ID and middle ID of the Member ID which is within the specified range will be displayed.
5	Search down by Model type	Only items containing characters inputted into the model comment will be displayed.
6	Search down by measurement item	Only items containing characters inputted into the measurement items' names will be displayed.
7	Search down by attribute	Only attributes of the measurement items which are items of specified models will be displayed. The following types can be specified. Instant value/average value/maximum value/ minimum value/ integrated value/ logic value/ display all

4. Click [Make format file]. Automatically creates format file.

Example of daily report format file

Ele Edit View Insert	Format Tools Data Window	r Help		Type a question for help	· _ 6
	δ • 9• 0 , Σ• <u>0</u> 0	🕡 🔛 Arial 🗸 🗸	11 • B I U = = =	图 \$ % , *** # 谭 谭	3 - A
A2 + A					_
A	В	C	D	E	F
Daily report example.	Contents of the 4th and 5th	rows are actually the same	as that of rows 2 and 3. Del	ete rows 1-3 after reading.	-
	Power consumption of PC	Power consumption of PC	Power consumption of PC	Ambient temperature measurement	
	U1(AVE)	I1(AVE)	WP+	Ambient temperature	
	< <c01-01-01>></c01-01-01>	< <c01-01-02>></c01-01-02>	< <c01-01-16>></c01-01-16>	< <c01-32-01>></c01-32-01>	
	<<01-01-01>>	<<01-01-02>>	<<01-01-16>>	<<01-32-01>>	
< <t00:00-01:00>></t00:00-01:00>				1	
< <t01:00-02:00>></t01:00-02:00>					
< <t02:00-03:00>></t02:00-03:00>					
< <t03:00-04:00>></t03:00-04:00>	1	1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1	
) < <t04:00-05:00>></t04:00-05:00>				1.0.	
< <t05:00-06:00>></t05:00-06:00>					
< <t06:00-07:00>></t06:00-07:00>		1		1	
3 < <t07:00-08:00>></t07:00-08:00>					
< <t08:00-09:00>></t08:00-09:00>		14			
< <t09:00-10:00>></t09:00-10:00>		10		1	
< <t10:00-11:00>></t10:00-11:00>					
< <t11:00-12:00>></t11:00-12:00>	5 mm	1. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
< <t12:00-13:00>></t12:00-13:00>					
< <t13:00-14:00>></t13:00-14:00>					
< <t14:00-15:00>></t14:00-15:00>				1	
< <t15:00-16:00>></t15:00-16:00>					
< <t16:00-17:00>></t16:00-17:00>		14			
< <t17:00-18:00>></t17:00-18:00>					
< <t18:00-19:00>></t18:00-19:00>					
< <t19:00-20:00>></t19:00-20:00>	-				
< <t20:00-21:00>></t20:00-21:00>		11			
< <t21:00-22:00>></t21:00-22:00>					
< <t22:00-23:00>></t22:00-23:00>					
< <t23:00-24:00>></t23:00-24:00>	-				
)					

Refer to the format file outputed and make use of other tags as well to create an optional daily/monthly report format file.

Tags listed in "Tag types and their use in reports" (page 160) have a display format. If the display format is not matched properly, values may not be displayed correctly. Make the setting in Excel under [Format cells] - [Number] - [Category].

	crosoft Excel - TestRepo File Edit View Insert		Window Help		
: 🔟		• ") • Σ • 🕝 🚆	Arial	• 11 • B I	Ū ≣ ≣ :
	<u>C6</u> ▼ <i>f</i> ×		D		
-	A B	С	D	E	F
1 2					
2		ZZC01.01.015	< <c01-01-02>></c01-01-02>	ZZC01 01 1855	< <c01.22< td=""></c01.22<>
3		<<01-01-012	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<<01-01-1022	<<001-32-
		Format Cells		?	×=====================================
4	< <date>> 🗲</date>		Font Border Patte		
5	1 < <t0:00-1:00< td=""><td></td><td>-ont Border Patte -Sample</td><td>erns Protection </td><td></td></t0:00-1:00<>		-ont Border Patte -Sample	erns Protection	
6	2 < <t1:00-2:00< td=""><td>Sategory:</td><td>Sample</td><td></td><td></td></t1:00-2:00<>	Sategory:	Sample		
7	3 < <t2:00-3:00:< td=""><td>Number</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t2:00-3:00:<>	Number			
8	4 < <t3:00-4:00:< td=""><td>Currency Accounting</td><td><u>Type:</u> *3/14/2001</td><td></td><td></td></t3:00-4:00:<>	Currency Accounting	<u>Type:</u> *3/14/2001		
9	5 < <t4:00-5:00< td=""><td>Date Time</td><td>*Wednesday, March 14</td><td>4, 2001</td><td></td></t4:00-5:00<>	Date Time	*Wednesday, March 14	4, 2001	
10	6 < <t5:00-6:00< td=""><td>Percentage</td><td>3/14 3/14/01</td><td></td><td></td></t5:00-6:00<>	Percentage	3/14 3/14/01		
11 12	7 < <t6:00-7:00: 8 <<t7:00-8:00:< td=""><td>Fraction</td><td>03/14/01</td><td></td><td></td></t7:00-8:00:<></t6:00-7:00: 	Fraction	03/14/01		
13	9 < <t8:00-9:00< td=""><td>Text</td><td>14-Mar 14-Mar-01</td><td>-</td><td></td></t8:00-9:00<>	Text	14-Mar 14-Mar-01	-	
14	10 < <t9:00-10:00< td=""><td>Special Custom</td><td>Locale (location):</td><td></td><td></td></t9:00-10:00<>	Special Custom	Locale (location):		
15	11 < <t10:00-11:1< td=""><td>,</td><td>English (United States)</td><td>•</td><td></td></t10:00-11:1<>	,	English (United States)	•	
16	12 < <t11:00-12:0< td=""><td></td><td>,</td><td>_</td><td></td></t11:00-12:0<>		,	_	
17	13 < <t12:00-13:1< td=""><td>Date formats display date a</td><td></td><td></td><td>or</td></t12:00-13:1<>	Date formats display date a			or
18	14 < <t13:00-14:1< td=""><td>items that have an asterisk with the operating system.</td><td>(*), applied formats do no</td><td>ot switch date orders</td><td></td></t13:00-14:1<>	items that have an asterisk with the operating system.	(*), applied formats do no	ot switch date orders	
19	15 < <t14:00-15:< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t14:00-15:<>				
20	16 < <t15:00-16:< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t15:00-16:<>				
21	17 < <t16:00-17:1< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>K Cancel</td><td></td></t16:00-17:1<>			K Cancel	
22	18 < <t17:00-18:6< td=""><td></td><td>l</td><td>1</td><td></td></t17:00-18:6<>		l	1	

164

165



To make a format file before starting the recording

Sometimes users may wish to make a format file before starting the recording (for example, when there is no record data). In this case, the format file will have to be created manually.

Procedure

1. Check Member ID corresponding to the item to output.

Select [File] – [Export] – [Output Module List to a CSV file] in the Smart Site Utility.

File(F)	Monitor(M)	Record(R)	Alarm(A)	Tool(T)	He	lp(H)		
Oper	n MAP editor				_		<i>(</i>	J
Displ	ay Module Lis	t			1	Mon List	Rec	D
	Module List			•				
Char	nge Module Lis	st		•	ы			
Data	Acquisition fr	rom around t	he module l	ist	Ч			
Adva	anced Setting:	s						
Mod	ule Informatio	n List						
Expo	rt			×	C	output Module Lis	t to a CSV file	
Quit	Smart Site Ut	ility						

2. [The composition of module list is outputted to a CSV file] dialogue box will appear.

The composition of module list is outputted to a CSV file.				
Please choose the CSV file to output. (ID,Comment,Member ID for Report)				
Recording Mode Setting				
 Follow the present setting of each measurement module 				
Output as INST recording				
Output as MAX/MIN/AVE recording				
O utput as INST + MAX/MIN/AVE recording				
Output File Name				
F:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\config.csv Refer				
Output				

Select [Recording Mode Setting]

Record mode selection	Explanation
Follow the present settings of each measurement module	Select when record operation for measurement module has started.
Output as INST recording	Select when record operation on all measurement modules is carried out on a common setting. Select when recording instant value.
Output as MAX/ MIN/ AVE recording	Select when record operation on all measurement modules is carried out on a common setting. Select when recording MAX. MIN, AVE.
Output as INST + MAX/ MIN/ AVE recording	Select when record operation on all measured items' modules is carried out on a common setting. Select when recording instant value + MAX, MIN, AVE.

3. Input file name to output and click on the [Output] button to output the CSV file.

4. The following diagram shows an example of a CSV file. Member ID is shown as <<XX-XX>>.

Retrieves the member ID of the measurement item to output as a report, and inputs onto an excel sheet so that it may correspond to the location to output. All other tags are also written.

	Nicrosoft Excel -	config.esv			
:@	Eile Edit View	Insert Form	at <u>T</u> ools	Data W	indow Ł
10	6666	121-1-1	9 + 8	Σ + ≙↓	1 🛄 🎯
	A1 +	f∗ COM I	ID		
	A	В	C	D	E
1	COM ID	1			
2	MODULE ID	1			
3	Model Comment	2301 HUMIDIT	LA WODR	LE	
4	<<01-01-01>>	CH1			
5	<<01-01-02>>	CH2			
6					
7	COM ID	1			
8	MODULE ID	2			
9	Model Comment	2302 Pt MOD	ULE		

Example of inputting onto an Excel sheet

Retrieve the member ID from the exported CSV file or from [Table] window (screen above), follow [Image to output] and write onto the format file.

Image to output

	U1(AVE)	I1(AVE)
1:00	1 00.5521	0.4483249
2:00	100.5086	0.4481325
3:00	1 00.5058	0.4488249

Format

	<<01-01-01>>	<<01-01-02>>
< <t1:00>></t1:00>		
< <t2:00>></t2:00>		
< <t3:00>></t3:00>		





Select [Template (*.xlt)] for [File type] and save and close format file.

6. Carry out the same steps for making a format file for the monthly report, if necessary.

"Monthly report format" (page 175)

4.2.2 Confirm output test and format file

Procedure

Select [Manual report making] from the [Report] menu. 2. Manual report setting screen will appear. Set the respective contents for [General] tab and [Reports 1 to 10] tab. You can output up to 10 report files. [General] tab Create report General 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Record file for report creating C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\sample_e.hrp Production Start Date 09/01/2003 • Data Start Date 09/01/2003 1 Production Stop Date 09/05/2003 Data Stop Date 09/05/2003 -[Reports 1 to 10] tab Create report General 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 🔽 Creates report 🔽 Daily format file C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\Report\DailyReport.xlt Reference... Number of excel sheets in use 1 -Monthly report format file C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\Report\MonthlyReport.xlt Reference... Number of excel sheets in use 1 -Saved folder H:\data Reference... Name of saved file test Y20xxMxx.xls Adjusts cell width automatically 6 Confirmation of output item 8 Practice Macro [UserFunc] of format file Create Close

	Setting items	Contents
1	Start date, End date	Set the range of the report output date. This is a common setting for all reports to be outputted.
2	Reports 1 to 10 tab	Set 10 report output settings for each tab.
3	Output report	To output a report, first click here.
4	Daily report format file, Monthly report format file	Set the format file to use as a daily report or monthly report. Up to 5 sheets can be used in a format file.
5	Saved folder, Name of saved file	Input the folder of the report and the saved file name. For example, when the saved file is named as "test", the name of a report in Apr 2007 will be testY2007M04.xls.
6	Automatic cell width alignment	Click here to automatically align the cell width of the report file (Excel file) to fit the length of the cell characters.
7	Perform macro task on format file	If the macro function [UserFunc] is present during file formatting, clicking here will start the macro task once the report making is completed.
8	Confirmation of output item	Verifies the accuracy of the report output items after each setting is carried out.

3. Click [Confirmation of output item] after setting each content setting to verify the accuracy of the report output items.

Confirm rep	Confirm report output items Number of items 5 🛛 🛛 🔀						
Member ID	Model type	Measurement Item					
01-01-01	Power consumption of PC	U1 (AVE)					
01-01-02	Power consumption of PC	II (AVE)					
01-01-16	Power consumption of PC	WP+					
01-32-01	Ambient temperature measurement	СН1					
01-32-02	Ambient temperature measurement	CH2					
		ОК					

Click [Make] to test output a report.

Repeats editing and test output of the format file until the file is properly formatted.



4.

Please close the format file before carrying out report output.

4.2.3 Auto Report Output

Using the completed report format file, reports can be created automatically as follows.

Procedure

 Verify that the indication [Recording] is shown for the Smart Site Utility. Also verify that the [Auto] button has been clicked to update reports periodically.



 Select [Report] - [Automatic report creating] - [Report is created periodically].

🔤 SmartSiteViewer C:¥Program Files¥SmartSiteUtility¥sample.hrp = [Graph]					
File(<u>F</u>)	Report(R) Tool(T) Help(H)				
Tat		Create report format file	1day 💌 to 💌		
	Automatic report creating		Report is created periodically		
		Manual report creating	Newest report is made immediately		

3. The [Automatic report creating] dialog box appears.

С	reate report	×
	General 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Record file for report creating C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\sample_e.hrp	
	Production Start Date 09/05/2003 Data Start Date 09/01/2003 Data Stop Date 09/05/2003	
	Timing for report creating Periodic interval Hour Minute 	
	A Specified Time	

eate report 🛛 🔀
General 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Creates report
✓ Daily format file
F:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\Report\DailyReport.xlt Reference
Number of excel sheets in use 1
Manthly report for
Number of excel sheets in use 1
Saved folder
H:\data Reference
Name of saved file Y20xxMxx.xls
Adjusts cell width automatically
Confirmation of output item
Create Close
 ✓ Monthly report format file F:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\Report\MonthlyReport.xlt Reference Number of excel sheets in use 1 ✓ Saved folder H:\data Reference Name of saved file test Y20xxMxx.xls Confirmation of output item Practice Macro [UserFunc] of format file

[Periodic interval] or [Assign time] can be chosen as [Timing for report creating]. If [Assign time] is chosen, a report will be resumed when a specified time passes after a report creation.

- A setup of the other format file etc is the same as that of manual report creation.
- Procedure, step 4.2.2 "Confirm output test and format file" (page 168) procedure step 3.

The [Create] button is clicked, the automatic report output is started.

4.

5.

The hourglass symbol appears, and a report is created automatically. (This process may take several minutes.) When the hourglass symbol disappears, verify that the [Creating regular report] indication is shown.



The [Creating regular report] indication is normally blue, but when a report is being written using Excel, the indication changes to red.



While the [Auto Report] indication is red, do not start up Excel.

6. To continue creating reports after terminating the application, start Smart Site Utility and Smart Site Viewer. When Smart Site Utility is set to [Auto] (see procedure step1. (page 170)) and Smart Site Viewer is set to [Creating regular report] (see procedure step5. (page 172)), report creation will be resumed automatically.


Daily report format: graph format is also available.

	< <c01-01-01>></c01-01-01>	< <c01-01-02>></c01-01-02>	< <c01-01-16>></c01-01-16>	< <c01-32-01>></c01-32-01>	Watt Hour	
					Daily Chart	
	<<01-01-01>>	<<01-01-02>>	<<01-01-16>>	<<01-32-01>>		
< <date>></date>						
1 < <t0:00-1:00>></t0:00-1:00>					1 1.2	
2 < <t1:00-2:00>></t1:00-2:00>						
3 < <t2:00-3:00>></t2:00-3:00>						
4 < <t3:00-4:00>></t3:00-4:00>						
5 < <t4:00-5:00>></t4:00-5:00>					Watt Hour (Wh) 0 - - 1 1 6 - - - 1 1 7 - - - - 1 1 7 -	
6 < <t5:00-6:00>></t5:00-6:00>						
7 < <t6:00-7:00>></t6:00-7:00>						
8 < <t7:00-8:00>></t7:00-8:00>						
9 < <t8:00-9:00>></t8:00-9:00>	,					
10 < <t9:00-10:00></t9:00-10:00>	»					
11 < <t10:00-11:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0.2</td><td></td></t10:00-11:00<>	>>				0.2	
12 < <t11:00-12:00< td=""><td> >></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t11:00-12:00<>	>>					
13 < <t12:00-13:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23</td><td></td></t12:00-13:00<>	>>				1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23	
14 < <t13:00-14:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t13:00-14:00<>	>>					
15 < <t14:00-15:00< td=""><td> >></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Time</td><td></td></t14:00-15:00<>	>>				Time	
16 < <t15:00-16:00< td=""><td> >></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t15:00-16:00<>	>>					
17 < <t16:00-17:00< td=""><td> >></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t16:00-17:00<>	>>					
18 < <t17:00-18:00< td=""><td> >></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t17:00-18:00<>	>>					
19 < <t18:00-19:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t18:00-19:00<>	>>					
20 < <t19:00-20:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t19:00-20:00<>	>>					
21 < <t20:00-21:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t20:00-21:00<>	>>					
22 < <t21:00-22:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t21:00-22:00<>	>>					
23 < <t22:00-23:00< td=""><td>>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t22:00-23:00<>	>>					
24 < <t23:00-24:00< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t23:00-24:00<>						
Total	0.0					
Maximum	0.0					
Minimum	0.0	0.0	0	0.0		
Average						

4.2 Report Creating Function



Automatically generated daily report

	Power consumption of	Power consumption of	Power consumption of	Ambient temperature
	PC	PC	PC	measurement
	U1(AVE)	I1(AVE)	WP+	Ambient
2003/9/3				temperature
1 01:00	100.6	0.4	32	27.3
2 02:00	100.6	0.4	32	27.3
3 03:00	100.6	0.5	32	27.3
4 04:00	100.6	0.4	32	27.4
5 05:00	100.5	0.5	32	27.4
6 06:00	100.6	0.5	32	27.3
7 07:00	100.5	0.5	32	27.4
8 08:00	100.5	0.5	32	27.4
9 09:00	100.3	0.5	32	27.2
10 10:00	100.1	1.0	72	27.5
11 11:00	99.9	1.4	106	27.7
12 12:00	99.9	1.4	102	27.7
13 13:00	100.1	1.1	80	27.3
14 14:00	99.9	1.4	105	27.7
15 15:00	99.9	1.4	106	27.8
16 16:00	100.0	1.4	104	27.9
17 17:00	100.0	1.4	105	27.6
18 18:00	100.0	1.5	108	27.9
19 19:00	99.9	1.5	108	28.2
20 20:00	100.0	1.4	106	27.9
21 21:00	100.4	0.5	37	27.3
22 22:00	100.5	0.5	32	27.4
23 23:00	100.5	0.4	32	27.4
24 24:00	100.5	0.4	32	27.4
Total	2406.4	20.9	1526	660.7
Maximum	100.6	1.5	108	28.2
Minimum	99.9	0.4	32	27.2
Average	100.3	0.9	64	27.5



174

Monthly report format

Excel template example	Comment ta	ag Max	kimum value (e	every 60 minut	es) Maximum value
Date tag (for monthly report) < <mdate>></mdate>	< <c01-01-16>></c01-01-16>	Integrated power value	Time	Temperature at 10:00	Temperature of the day
Date < <w>></w>	<<01-01-16>> <	<max01-01- 16,60>> Time of</max01-01- 	< <maxt01- 01-16,60>></maxt01- 	< <at10:00,01 -32-01>></at10:00,01 	01>> 32-01>>
Day of the week tag	[Member ID]	maximum (every minute		nperature It 10:00	Time of maximum value
< <d3>> <<d4>> <<d5>> <<d6>></d6></d5></d4></d3>					
< <d7>> <<d8>> <<d9>></d9></d8></d7>	Date tag (for monthly report)		Time of r easurement v is entered intersect	alue for the da at date tag	y Time of maximum measurement value
< > > > >			Intersect		for the day is entered at date tag intersection point
< <d14>> <<d15>> <<d15>> <<d16>></d16></d15></d15></d14>		<u></u>	Ń		
< <d17>> <<d18>> <<d19>> <<d20>></d20></d19></d18></d17>	every 60	measuremen minutes for t at date tag int	he day is	maximum	l power value was n in 60-minute m 15:00 - 16:00,
< <d21>> <<d22>> <<d23>> <<d23>></d23></d23></d22></d21>					is indicated
< <d25>> <<d26>> <<d27>> <<d28>></d28></d27></d26></d25>	Day of the we entered at dat	te tag		Dat	ta for 10:00 of that day
< <d28 <="" td=""> <<d29>> <<d30>> <<d31>></d31></d30></d29></d28>		point		i	s entered at date tag intersection point
Total, Maximum	0.0	0.0			0.0



Output example

exan	nple	J					
Sep 2	003	Power consumption of PC	Integrated power value	Time	Temperature at 10:00	Temperature of the day	Time
Date	Week day	WPT	МАХ	Time	Ambient temperature	MAX	Time
1	Mon	1499.7	109.5	17:00	27.4	28.5	19:33
2	Tue	773.1	32.2	11:00	27.0	28.0	17:54
3	Wed	1526.3	108.5	19:00	27.5	28.3	14:10
4	Thu	1603.2	108.9	12:00	27.5	27.9	19:02
5	Fri				27.2		
6	Sat						
7	Sun						
8	Mon						
9	Tue						
10	Wed						
11	Thu						
12	Fri						
13	Sat						
14	Sun						
15	Mon						
16	Tue						
17	Wed						
18	Thu						
19	Fri						
20	Sat						
21	Sun						
22	Mon						
23	Tue						
24	Wed						
25	Thu						
26	Fri						
27	Sat						
28	Sun						
29	Mon						
30	Tue						

176

4.2.4 Precautions for Report Creation

General precautions

- Report files for one month will become one Excel file.
- Excel sheets are lined up from left in date order, with the monthly report being the rightmost sheet.
- Output file names use the format "Header + Y20xxMxx.xls", thereby providing information about the year and month in the file name.
- Report format files employ the Excel template file type (extension .xlt).
- Sheets containing only a graph cannot be output as a report.
- If an error occurs during automatic report creation, the error is not indicated. The next report will be created and the output will include also the data from the time of the error.
- For cells which are not blank except for a tag, the value will be displayed as is.
- Up to 300 lines of tags can be entered in a sheet.
- The auto report setting is saved for each recording file separately. When the recording file was changed, you should make the auto report settings again.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Question	Answer	Reference
Do not know member ID	To know the member ID, Smart Site Viewer must be started. First, record some test data and perform data acquisition. Then load the recorded data, and the member ID will be displayed.	4.2.1 "Creating a Format File" (page 158)
	1. Is format file closed? While the format file is being edited, an attempt by the software to write to the Excel file will result in an error, and no report is output.	
Report is not output	2. Is the number of Excel worksheets used by the format file correct?When multiple sheets are used as format, the number of Excel worksheets must be set to exactly the correct number.	Procedure Step [4] (Page 169)
Values are not output correctly	Is the "Format cell" setting in Excel correct? If the "Format cell" setting is different, a value may be output as another value. Make the setting in Excel un- der [Format cells] - [Format number] - [Category].	
Data in auto report do not	1. During recording with Smart Site Utility, is [Auto] en- abled? The daily and monthly reports are created from the record- ing files. Make sure that the recording files are periodically acquired.	Procedure Step 1. (page 170)
increase	2. Is the [Auto Report] indication shown in Smart Site Viewer? If this indication is not shown, the report will not be automatically created. Initiate report output as described in 4.2.1 "Creating a Format File" (page 158).	✤ 4.2.1 "Creating a Format File" (page 158)
Previous settings for [Save directory] etc. are lost	Was recording stopped? Set the items again and start the auto report function. To prevent losing the settings, do not stop recording unless module settings have to changed.	♦ 4.2.3 "Auto Report Output" (page 170)



- Tag details
 Tag details are explained below.
 In a tag, the string enclosed in "<<" and ">>" is not case-sensitive. You can use either upper case or lower case characters. The format for member ID information is "xx-xx-xx" (where xx is two digits). ٠

Daily/monthly report tags

(Page 158) to (Page 159), (Page 175) to (Page 176)

< <c id="" member="">></c>	
Tag string	< <c01-01-01>></c01-01-01>
Display format	Character string
Effective direction	Single cell
Description	Outputs the comment string for the specified member ID to the cell containing the tag.

<<Member ID>>

Tag string	<<01-01-02>>
Display format	Numeric value
Effective direction	Single cell + down
Description	Outputs the measurement item name to the cell containing the tag, and passes member ID information to cells below. If the column beneath this cell intersects with a blank cell containing a date tag (< <d3>> etc.) or time tag (<<t10:00>> etc.), the measurement value is output to that cell. If there is no measurement value, nothing is output to the cell. Make settings for effective numeric values with [Format cells].</t10:00></d3>

Daily report only tags

(Page 158) to (Page 159)

<<Date>>

Tag string	< <date>></date>
Display format	Date
Effective direction	Single cell
Description	Specifies the report output date for the cell containing the tag. Make settings for the display format with [Format cells].

<<T time, member ID>>

Tag string	< <t2:00,01-01-02>></t2:00,01-01-02>
Display format	Numeric value
Effective direction	Single cell
Description	Outputs the measurement value for the specified time and specified member ID to the cell containing the tag.

<<T time>>

Tag string	< <t1:00>></t1:00>
Display format	Character string/time
Effective direction	Single cell + right

< <t time="">></t>	
Description	 Outputs the specified time to the cell containing the tag, and passes the time information to cells at right. If the row to the right of this cell intersects with a cell containing a member ID tag, the measurement value for the respective measurement item is output to that cell. If you select [Format cells] - [Number] - [Time] in Excel, 24:00 is displayed as 0:00.
< <t -="" time="">></t>	
Tag string	< <t1:00-2:00>></t1:00-2:00>
Display format	Character string/time
Effective direction	Single cell + right
Description	 Outputs the second time setting to the cell containing the tag, and passes the second time information to cells at right. If the row to the right of this cell intersects with a cell containing a member ID tag, the member ID and measurement value for the respective measurement item is output to that cell. If the measurement value output to the intersecting cell is an instantaneous value, the instantaneous value for the second time is used. If the measurement value is an average, maximum, minimum, or integrated value, the average, maximum, minimum, or integrated value for the interval between the first time and the second time is output. If there are no data for the intersecting cell, the cell will be blank. Example <<t1:00-2:00>> tag and member ID tag for instantaneous value for 1-hour period from 1:00 to 2:00 is output. The integrated value for 1:00:00 sharp is not included.</t1:00-2:00>

4.2 Report Creating Function

Monthly report only tags(Page 175) to (Page 176)

< <mdate>></mdate>	
Tag string	< <mdate>></mdate>
Display format	Date
Effective direction	Single cell
Description	Data for the first day of the month are output to the cell con- taining the tag. To output for example [2004/10], make the setting in Excel with [Format cells] - [Number].

< <d date="">></d>		
Tag string Display format Effective direction Description	< <d3>> Numeric value Single cell + right • Outputs a numeric value corresponding to the date to the cell containing the tag, and passes the date informa- tion to cells at right. • If the row to the right of this cell intersects with a cell having the effective direction [Single cell + down], the measurement value for the cell of that date is output.</d3>	
< <w>></w>		
Tag string< <w>>Display formatCharacter stringEffective directionSingle cell + downDescription• Outputs the [Day of the week] information to the containing the tag, and passes the information to containing the tag.• For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<d3 [mon,="" cell,="" day="" etc.),="" for="" format="" i="" is="" month="" of="" sat].<="" th="" that="" the="" thu,="" tue,="" using="" wed,="" week="" written=""></d3></w>		
< <max id="" member="">></max>		
Tag string Display format Effective direction Description	< <max01-01-01>> Numeric value Single cell + down • Outputs the [Maximum value] information to the cell containing the tag, and passes the information to cells below. • For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<d3>> etc.), the maximum value for that day and the specified member ID is output.</d3></max01-01-01>	

member ID is output. This is convenient for displaying only maximum values out of the recorded instantaneous values in the report. •

<<Max member ID, interval (minutes)>>

Tag string
Display format
Effective direction
Description

<<Max01-01-01,30>>

Numeric value

Single cell+ down

- Outputs the [Maximum value] information to the cell containing the tag, and passes the information to cells below.
- For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<D3>> etc.), the day is divided into a number of intervals, and the measurement value for interval with the highest value is output.
- This is convenient for displaying the maximum value of an interval such as using integrated values in the report.
- For instantaneous values, the tag operates in the same way as <<Max member ID>>.
- For average, maximum, minimum, or integrated values, first the average, maximum, minimum, or integrated value for each interval is determined, and then the maximum value out of these is output.
- The interval period includes the end time but not the start time.

<<MaxT member ID>>

Tag string	< <maxt01-01-01>></maxt01-01-01>
Display format	Character string/time
Effective direction	Single cell + down
Description	 Outputs the [Time] information to the cell containing the tag, and passes the information (about the time when maximum value occurred for that day) to cells below.

- ow. For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<D3>> ٠ etc.), the time of the maximum value for that day is output.
- If you select [Format cells] [Number] [Time] in Excel, 24:00 is displayed as 0:00.
- By using this tag next to the <<Max member ID>> tag, the maximum value and the time of occurrence can be displayed side by side.

Tag string	< <maxt01-01.01,30>></maxt01-01.01,30>
Display format	Character string/time
Effective direction	Single cell + down
Description	 Outputs the [Time] information to the cell containing the tag, and passes the information (about the time when maximum value occurred in an interval for that day) to cells below. For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<d3>></d3>

- For intersecting blank cells with a date tag (<<D3>> etc.), the day is divided into a number of intervals, and the end time of the interval with the highest value is output.
- This is convenient for displaying the maximum value of integrated values in the report.
- For instantaneous values, the tag operates in the same way as <<MaxT member ID>>.
- For average, maximum, minimum, or integrated values, first the average, maximum, minimum, or integrated value for each interval is determined, and then the end time of the interval with the maximum value is output.
- The interval period includes the end time but not the start time.
- By using this tag next to the <<Max member ID, interval>> tag, the maximum value for an interval and the end time of the interval can be displayed side by side.

<<AT time, member ID>>

Tag string Display format Effective direction Description

<<AT10:00,01-01-01>>

Numeric value

- Single cell + down
- Outputs the measurement item name to the cell containing the tag, and passes member ID and time information to cells below.
- If the column beneath this cell intersects with a blank cell containing a date tag (<<D3>> etc.), the specified time for that day is output to that cell.
- For example, this is convenient to include the temperature at exactly 10:00 for the day in a monthly report.

182

4.3 Calculating Measured Values (PC Calculation Module)

This section describes how to calculate measured values from different measurement modules using a computer, display monitor values, and save recorded data. For example, you can use this functionality to measure electric energy on each floor with a 2331 POWER MODULE and display the total electric energy value obtained by adding together individual floor readings. Calculated measured values are treated as a virtual module known as the PC calculation module. This module supports all the 9768 functionality that can be used with other (physical) measurement modules.

4.3.1 Enabling PC Calculation Modules

To use a PC calculation module, you must first configure the software to enable it.

Procedure

1. Select [Advanced Settings...] on the [File] menu.

🖦 Smart Site Utility - [Standard] 🛛 S				
File(<u>F</u>)	Monitor(<u>M</u>)	Record(<u>R</u>)	Alarm(<u>A</u>)	Tool
Open MAP editor				
Show Module List				
Edit Module List 🔹 🕨				
Switch Module List 🔹 🕨				
Data Acquisition from multiple module lists				
Advanced Settings				

From the MAP editor, select [Advanced Settings...] on the [MAP editor] menu.





Select the [Module Settings] tab and select the [Display PC calculation modules] checkbox.

Advanced Settings	×
Communication Module settings	1
Show PC calculation module The PC calculation module has a function which is used to calculate on the PC by setting the four arithmetic expression. It is used to calculate the measurement items between different modules.	
a is used to canoniate the measurement items between uniterent modules.	
OK Cancel	

4.3.2 Adding a PC Calculation Module

Right-click on [Computer] in the module list to display the pop-up menu and click [PC calculation module].



囝

From the MAP editor, drag the [PC calculation module] from the module icon on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the [PC] icon.



Up to 8 calculated values can be set for a single PC calculation module. If you wish to set 9 or more calculated values, add additional PC calculation modules.

4.3.3 Configuring PC Calculation Modules

Select [PC calculation module] on the module list and open the calculation module's settings screen from the contextual menu.

Example dialog box when configuring equations

PC Calculation MODULE CH1 CH2 CH4 CH5 CH6 CH7 CH8 Measurement item Alarm (Com • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
<mark>3</mark> 🔽 Use			
Calcula	tion Setting -		
Calcula	tion formula	setting 💌	
Settin	g of identifier	r that shows measurement item in calculation formula.	
	Identifier	Corresponding measurement item	-
5	M1	ID: 10-01 #08 (WP+ - 1F Wattage/Light)	
	M2	ID: 20-01 #08 (WP+ - 2F Wattage/Light)	
	M3	ID: 30-01 #08 (WP+ - 2F Wattage/Light)	
	M4		
	M5		
	M6		
	M7	ID: 30-01 #08 (WP+ - 2F Wattage/Light)	
	M8		
	M9		
	1.10		

Example dialog box when calculating the dew point

Calculation Setting				
Calculation Setting				
Dew point calculation				
Setting of measurement item that calculates dew point				
Temperature ID: 52-01 #01 (5F East Temp - 5F East Humidity)				
Humidity ID: 52-01 #02 (5F East Humidity - 5F East Humidity)				

Setting item		Description
1	MODULE ID	 Indicates the PC calculation module's ID number. This setting can only be configured when configuring initial settings in the MAP editor.
2	Model Comment	 Helps identify the module. This information is used to display recorded data in the measured value monitor and Smart Site Viewer, so be sure to enter an easy-to-understand comment. (Comments can be up to 20 characters in length.)
3	Channel use	Selects whether the channel in question will be used.

4.3 Calculating Measured Values (PC Calculation Module)

	Setting item	Description
4	Calculation method	 Select either [Set formula] or [Calculate dew point].
5	Calculation settings	 Sets the identifiers and corresponding measurement items used in the for- mula.
6	Formula	 Enter the formula here. Formulas may consist of identifiers along with the four basic arithmetic operators (+, -, *, and /) and parentheses.
7	Units	 Sets the unit to use for the calculation results (do not include the prefix). Prefixes (such as the "k" and "m" in "kW" and "mA") are set on the [Measurement Item] tab.
8	ent items for dew point calculation	 Sets the temperature and humidity measurement items to use in calculat- ing the dew point.



The settings on the [Measurement Item] and [Alarm (Computer)] tabs are the same as those described in 3.2.10 "Common Tab Settings" (page 76).



PC calculation module data

- Monitor values are calculated whenever any of the measurement items in the corresponding formula is updated, causing the corresponding measured value to be updated. (The times at which data points are gathered are not considered.)
- Recorded data is calculated by aligning the data times for each measurement item and then saved. Consequently, the recording interval is the lowest common multiple of the recording intervals for the measurement modules used in the calculation.

Example: If the module recording intervals are 10 min and 15 min, the recording interval will be 30 min.

• If all measurement items used in the calculation have the same recording mode, recording items will be saved after being calculated for each data attribute.

If even one recording mode differs, processing will search for data attributes in the following order, and only values for the first data attribute to be found will be calculated and saved:

Average value > maximum value > minimum value > instantaneous value/integrated value/logical value

Example 1: DC current measured by measurement module A: M1 DC voltage measured by measurement module B: M2 Formula: M1*M2 (DC power calculation)

When measurement modules A and B are both configured to record average values (max., min., ave. recording):

Recording item saved	Calculation performed
DC power average value	M1 (average value) * M2 (average value)
DC power maximum value	M1 (maximum value) * M2 (maximum value)
DC power minimum value	M1 (minimum value) * M2 (minimum value)

When measurement module A is configured to record instantaneous values, while measurement module B is configured to record average values:

Recording item saved	Calculation performed	
DC power	M1 (instantaneous value) * M2 (average value)	

4.3 Calculating Measured Values (PC Calculation Module)

Example 2:

Electric energy measured by power module A: M1 Electric energy measured by power module B: M2 Electric energy measured by power module C: M3 Formula: M1+M2+M3 (total electric energy)

Recording item saved	Calculation performed			
Total electric energy	M1 (Integrated value) + M2 (Integrated value) + M3 (Integrated value)			

Since the power module's electric energy is an integrated value attribute, the calculation is performed using integrated values only.



4.4 Initializing the measurement module before setting up

The chapter about initial setup in the "Basic" section of this manual described the setup procedure only for the communication module.

Also, the measurement module was automatically recognized from the computer after the communication module and the measurement module were set up on the installation site, and the measurement module was initialized.

3.1 "Initial Settings for the Measurement System" (page 11)

In some instances, measurement modules may also require setup before starting installation.

In this case, the procedure is as follows.



4.4.1 Setting Measurement Module Configuration and Measurement Parameters

Procedure

1. Start the Smart Site Utility, and select [File] - [Open MAP Editor] from the menu bar to open the MAP editor.

	You can also open the	MAP editor by selecting [MAP] from the toolbar.
Ser	ect either	
Same S.	nart Site Itility - [Standard]	📟 Smart Site Utility - [Standard] - [MAP Editor]

🔤 Smart Site Utility - [Standard]	🚧 Smart Site Utility - [Standard] - [MAP Editor]
File(F) Monitor(M) Record(R) Alarm(A) Tool(T) Open MAP editor Display Module List Edit Module List Edit Module List Data Acquisition from around the module list Advanced Settings Module Information List Module Information List Smart Site Utility - [Standard] File(E) Monitor(M) Record(R) Alarm(A) MAP Ist CDM Module List List CDM Module List List CDM Module List List CDM Module List Layout List E	Image: Second

- 2.
 - Connect the communication module to the computer following the procedures in 3.1.2 (page 13), and enter the initial settings for the communication module.
- 3.

Drag the measurement module from the module icon section on the left side of the screen and drop it onto the icon for the communication module to which you want to connect.

The figure below is an example of connecting "2305 Instrumentation Module" with "COM ID:01 LAN Module".



4.4 Initializing the measurement module before setting up

4. When you release the mouse button after dragging, the [Module settings] dialog box appears. Initialize the instrumentation module, and then click [OK].

2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE (COM ID: 01) 2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE MODULE ID 1 -Model Comment 2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE Basic Measurement item Record Alarm (Module) Alarm (Computer) -CH1 🔽 Use Range 500mV -CH2 🔽 Use Range 500mV • οк Cancel

The setting procedure is the same as for 3.2 "Setting the Measurement Parameters (Initial settings for the measurement module)" (page 44).

Prepare the measurement module for the send settings. Prepare the power supply module and the module base for operating the communication module and the measurement module, and then turn on the power.

After that connect the computer to the communication module via LAN.



毎

5.

191

4.4.2 Sending the Measurement Module Settings

The measurement module settings are sent at the same time as the communication settings.

Procedure

1. Select LAN module from the MAP editor, and then right-click. From the menu, click [Transmit Data Setting to Modules...].



When the [Send settings to modules.] dialog box appears, make sure that the [Do not send settings to recording modules.] check box is not selected.



2.

Click [Send] to send the settings to the measurement module and the communication module.



4.4.3 Checking the Communication Status

Install the measurement module in the measurement location, and check the communication status as follows.

3.1.4 "Auto Recognition of Measurement Modules" (page 42)

Procedure

- Check whether the measurement module configuration created with the MAP editor and the actual measurement module configuration are matched.
- 2. In Smart Site Utility, click the [COM] button in the toolbar to open [Confirm communication and module list] dialog box.

🖦 Smart Site Utility - [Stand				
File(F) Mor	nitor(M) R	lecord(R)	Al	
MAP	List	. сом	6	
	_		ie:	

3. The [Confirm measurement modules] column and [If settings on the module are different from those on the PC] for the [Confirm communication and module list] dialog are checked, and then click [Execute] button.

When the [If recording module in the list is not found, delete it from the list] check box is selected, a measurement module will be deleted from the list if it has not been installed.

Adjust to the settings on the PC	Normally, this option should be selected.	
Adjust to the settings on the	Select this option if the measurement module configu- ration was created on the computer but measurement parameters were not set.	
module	Select this option if the measurement module was used before and the parameter settings established previously should be used again.	

193

4.5 Managing Module Lists

This section describes how to manage module lists, for example by creating and deleting module lists.

Create a new module list.

You can create a new module list from [File] - [Edit Module List] - [Create New Module List].

•Smart Site Utility - [Standard]	
ile(<u>F)</u> Monitor(<u>M</u>) Record(<u>R</u>) Alarm(<u>A</u>) To	iool(T) Help(H)
Open MAP editor	
Show Module List	Mon List Rec Data
Edit Module List	Rename Module List
Switch Module List	BackUp Module List
Data Acquisition from multiple module lists	Restore Module List
Advanced Settings	Oreate New Module List
Module Information List Export	Copy and create a new module list Combine Module List
Quit Smart Site Utility	Delete Module List 🔹 🕨



The created module list is automatically saved. The following information is stored. (All settings except for [Tool] settings on the menu)

- Module list (module configuration)
- Module measurement parameters
- Recording operation condition (recording settings and data acquisition settings)
- Measurement value monitor layout settings
- · Alarm settings etc.

[~]

Copy and create a new module list.

You can create a new module list by copying an already created module list.

Procedure

1. Select [File] - [Edit Module List] - [Copy and create a new module list], and select to copy the original module list.

<mark>Smart Site Utility - [Standard]</mark> ile(F) Monitor(M) Record(R) Alarm(A) Too	I(T) Help(H)	
Open MAP editor Show Module List	Mon List Rec Data	Auto
Edit Module List 🔹 🕨	Rename Module List	1
Switch Module List 🕨	BackUp Module List	
Data Acquisition from multiple module lists	Restore Module List	
Advanced Settings	Create New Module List	
Module Information List	Copy and create a new module list 🕨	Select to copy the original module list
Export	Combine Module List	Standard
	Delete Module List	

2. Click [Yes] in the following dialog box.



3. When the name of the module list is entered in the dialog box below and [OK] is clicked, a new module list is created.





Merging module lists You can merge one or more module lists with the current module list.

Smart Site Utility - [Standard]	
ile(<u>F)</u> Monitor(<u>M</u>) Record(<u>R</u>) Alarm(<u>A</u>)	Tool(T) Help(H)
Open MAP editor	
Show Module List	Mon List Rec Data
Edit Module List	🔹 🕨 Rename Module List
Switch Module List	BackUp Module List
Data Acquisition from multiple module lis	
Advanced Settings	Create New Module List
Module Information List Export	Copy and create a new module list Combine Module List
Quit Smart Site Utility	Delete Module List



Select to open

lumber of selec	tions:1	Check All	Clear All
Combine List	Module List Name		
🗖 Do not	Standard2		
🔽 Do	Standard3		
lease select th	e module list that co	mbine with a pre-	sent one
iease select ui		mbine with a pre-	sent one.

The selected module lists will be merged with the current module list. Modules with conflicting COM IDs cannot be merged.



196

From the [File] menu, you can change the name of the module list, switch, and delete.

Initially the module list is saved with the name [Standard].

🖮 Smart Site Utility - [Standard]						
File(<u>F</u>)	Monitor(<u>M</u>)	Record(<u>R</u>)	Alarm(<u>A</u>)	Tool(T)	Help(<u>H</u>)	
Open	MAP editor					
Show	Module List				Mon List	
Edit N	lodule List			- • 🔲		
Switch	n Module List			>	Standard	
Data	Acquisition fr	om multiple	module lists		Standard2	



Backing up and restoring module lists

You can back up and restore module lists.

🖏 Smart Site Utility – [Standard]	
File(<u>F)</u> Monitor(<u>M</u>) Record(<u>R</u>) Alarm(<u>A</u>) Tool(<u>T</u>) Help(<u>H</u>)	
Open MAP editor	Ł
	Data
Edit Module List 🔹 🕨 Rename Module List	- E
Switch Module List	
Data Acquisition from multiple module lists Restore Module List	
You can restore the selected module list or all module lists. You can back up the current modul all module lists.	le list or

Important

 When acquiring recording data for multiple module lists, from the [File] menu select [Data Acquisition from around the module list]. (In normal data collection, only the displayed module lists are collected.)



4.6 Other Functions

4.6.1 Displaying the Communication Status

ID: 05 (2301 HUMIDITY

ID: 23 (2343 RS LINK M

You can check data transmission times and measure the wireless signal reception condition.

Procedure



The [communication status] dialog box for the selected communication module appears.

Displaying the Communication Status..

COM ID: 03 (2351 AIR MOD	ULE) communi	cation status
Communication statistics Successful tries Errors Times re-sending Times re-sended MAX (ms) of completion		Check radio wave conditions. MAX intensity (dBm) MIN intensity (dBm) AVE intensity (dBm) Judgment Start
MIN (ms) of completion AVE (ms) of completion MAX (ms) of delivery MIN (ms) of delivery AVE (ms) of delivery	0 0 0 0 0 Reset	Close

statistics	This lets you check retry and error conditions as well as transmission times. The display is automatically updated every 500 ms. While monitoring mea- surement values (see 3.5 (page 91)), it lets you check the overall communi- cation condition. [delivery] : Time required for the first received packet to arrive [completion]: Time required until all packets are received. (Time of delivery < Time of completion) During wireless communication, a certain amount of resending is normal, but if the [Times re-sending] count is very high (about 40 percent), settings should be revised.
Check radio wave conditions (Use 2351 Air Module)	When you click the [Start] button, the wireless signal strength is measured 10 times, and the result is displayed on a 3-step scale.

1<u>99</u>

4.6.2 Setting the Administrator Mode

This function allows users who know the password to change various settings. Users who do not know the password can only monitor measurements.

Procedure

1. Select [Tool] - [Operation/Administrator Mode Switching Settings].

File(F)	Monitor(M) Re	cord(R)	Alarm(A)	Tool(T)	Help(H)
Li	st	D Mon	mon Lis	t Dat	a	

2.

The [Operation/Administrator Mode Switching Settings] dialog box opens.

After selecting [Use operation/administrator mode switch], enter the password in two places and then click [OK].

Operation/Administrator Mode Switch		
A change setup in operation/administrator mode is performed		
C Not use operation/administrator mode switch		
Use operation/administrator mode switch		
Administrator password: *****		
The check input of a password:		
OK Cancel		

Operation mode	This mode is for when users who do not know the password use Smart Site Utility. Measurements can only be monitored.
Administrator mode	This mode is for users (administrators) who know the password use Smart Site Utility. The users are allowed to use the full range of Smart Site Utility functions such as various setting changes etc.



4.6.3 Checking Module Information

You can check the version etc. of the communication and measurement modules at the same time.

Procedure

1. Select [File] - [Module Information List].

File(F)	Monitor(M)	Record(R)	Alarm(A)	Tool(T)
Ope	n MAP editor			
Disp	lay Module Lis	it i		
Edit	Module List			•
Char	Change Module List 🕨 🕨			
Data Acquisition from around the module list				
Advanced Settings				
Module Information List				
Export •			+	
Quit Smart Site Utility				

2.

The [Module Information List] dialog box opens.

COM Module Total	The total number of communication modules in the entire system.
MEAS Module Total	The total number of measurement modules in the entire system.

You can view information on each module by selecting the "COM Module" or "Measurement Module" tab.

Module Information List 🛛 🛛 🔀			
Measure	ement Module Output Excel		COM Module Total: 1 MEAS Module Total: 2
Model	Model Comment	Version	Number of connected modules
2353	2353 LAN MODULE	2.35	2
	Measure Model	Measurement Module Output Excel Model Model Comment	Measurement Module Output Excel Model Model Comment Version

ID	 The ID set on the settings screen. Communication module: COM ID Measurement module: COM ID - MODULE ID
Model	The type of module.
Model comment	The module name set on the settings screen.
Version	The module version.
Number of connected modules	The number of measurement modules connected to the communication module. (Communication module only)

4.6.4 Acquires all memory data for the measurement module, and saves it as a CSV file

You can acquire all the data in the memory in the measurement module, and save it as a CSV file.

Important

- The CSV file saved here is unrelated to the file recorded by data recording and
- data acquisition functions (see 3.5 (page 86)).This CSV file cannot be viewed by Smart Site Viewer.

Procedure

- **1.** Select the module from the module list.
- 2. Right-click to access the pop-up menu, and select [Acquire all data in memory].

Module List Layout List		
⊡~ <u> </u> PC		
🖻 📲 COM ID: 88 (2353 LAN MODULE)	
ID: 01 (* ID: 02 ()	2331 POWER METER MODULE S	ettings
ID: 03 ()	Open Monitor	
ID: 05 (Acquire all the data in the memo	ry
ID: 23 (2	343 RS LINK MODULE)	

	When selecting the neasurement module	Only data for the module is acquired.
۱ د	When selecting the communication module	All data for all measurement modules below it is acquired.



The screen when communication module is selected

Acquire all the data in the memory				
The record data is acquired from the memory of all measurement modules under the selected communication module,and it is saved as a text file (CSV format) for every module. [Example The file name of COM ID:12 and MODULE ID:34 is set to Theader name 1234 (sv1) Please specify the save directory and the header name. * Caution This text file cannot be read by Smart Site Viewer. Save directory				
C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility	Ref			
Header name data Start	Cancel			

The screen when measurement module is selected

Acquire all the data in the memory				
The record data is acquired from the memory of the measurement module, and it is saved as a text file (CSV format). Please specify the file name to save. * Caution This text file cannot be read by Smart Site Viewer. File name				
C:\Program Files\SmartSiteUtility\data1.csv		Ref		
[Start	Cancel		

4.6.5 Advanced Communication Settings

Depending on the communication environment, there are times when you may want to make fine timeout time and retransmission frequency settings. (Especially for wireless systems)

Also, when accessing the Internet using a broadband router, and the initial settings when setting up are LAN, switch to WAN when operating. Perform the following to enable editing for these settings.

Displaying the settings screen

From [File] on the menu bar, select [Advanced Settings...].

File(F)	Monitor(M)	Record(R)	Alarm(A)	Tool(T)
Oper	n MAP editor			
Displ	ay Module Lis	t		
Edit I	Module List			•
Char	nge Module Lis	st		•
Data Acquisition from around the module list				
Adva	anced Setting	s		

For the MAP editor, from [MAP Editor] select [Advanced Settings...].



To enable editing of detailed settings for communication

Select [Enable editing of detailed settings for communication by communication module settings].

When this is selected, you can edit detailed settings such as the timeout period and the retransmission frequency on the communication module's settings screen.



3.1.2 "Setting the LAN system" (page 13)

205

To enable switching between the setup communication settings (LAN) and the operating communication settings (WAN)

Complete initial LAN settings before switching from LAN to WAN, according to the steps in 3.1.2 "Setting the LAN system" (page 13).

1. Open the settings screen from MAP editor. Select [Communicate via Internet using broadband router port forwarding].



2.

Set WAN on the communication module's setting screen.

✤ 3.1.2 "Setting the LAN system" (page 13)

Contact your network administrator regarding IP address and Port No. settings while referring to the diagram below.



З.

206

To switch the settings at setup (LAN) to the settings during operation (WAN), open the Setting screen from the Main screen, and switch to the current operational settings box.



For various functions on the main screen, it communicates with the communication module by the settings (IP address) that correspond to the switched settings.

Alarm Function

5.1 Overview

The alarm function is a function that emits an alarm signal and saves alarm information when measurements for the measurement module exceed the threshold range or measurements for the I/O module (logic) correspond to the setting conditions.

Alarm evaluation is performed with the computer or module. What evaluation depends on all kinds of functions (following table). Therefore, the function for evaluating alarms by computer cannot be achieved without a computer.

Function to evaluate alarms by computer	Function to evaluate alarms by module
 You can perform the following while monitoring measurements by Smart Site Utility. Display alarm logs Information about alarm generations and releases are displayed on Smart Site Utility. When an alarm occurs, you can also have a pop up display. \$ 5.2.3 (page 211) Alarm signal output for 2342 Output Module An alarm signal is output from the optional 2342 registered in the module list. \$ 5.2.4 (page 213) 	 Saving alarm data Alarm data is saved in the measurement module's internal memory.*¹ 5.3.1 (page 217) Alarm signal output An alarm signal is output from the mea- surement module's alarm output port.*² 5.3.1 (page 217),5.3.2 (page 222) Sending emails The 2353 LAN MODULE and 2354 MEM- ORY MODULE can send email notifica- tions when alarms occur or are cancelled.*¹ The 9768-02 LAN module email option is required in order to send email notifications. 9 (page 283)

*1: Not including 2343 RS Link Module

*2: Not including the 2306 Multi-Funfthion,2332 Power Meter Module , 2341 Input Module, and 2343 RS Link Module.

Note

When evaluating alarms by computer, it is not possible to evaluate alarms for measurement data while a communication error occurs between the computer and the communication module.

5.2 Function to evaluate alarms by computer

To evaluate alarms by computer, you need to set alarm settings (computer) beforehand for the measurement item you want to evaluate.

For an explanation of the [Alarm Settings (Computer)] see 3.2.10"Common Tab Settings" -4(Page 79).

5.2.1 Alarm operation settings

Set operations when an alarm is generated.

Procedure

Select [Alarm] - [Alarm Operation Settings].

The settings dialog box for alarm operations opens.



item	Description
1	 Check the chekbox in order to chek automatically when an alarm is released.
2	 Check the chekbox so that an alarm log pop up appears when an alarm occurs.
3	 Check the chekbox in order to emit a sound when an alarm occurs, and set the sound file.
4	 Check the chekbox so that a new alarm will be generated when the alarm is not released and the specified time passes after the alarm is checked, and set the time until the alarm occurs again.
Alarm Operation Settings	×
---	---
Measurement Communication Alarm Mask Even if it passes for 5 1 minutes or more, when communication does not recover, it is considered a communication error (Minute Range: 1 to 1440)	
6 Emit a sound when communication error Sound file Test Ref	
CHECK Automatically, when an alarm is released When an alarm occurs, alarm log pop up appears OK Cancel	

item	Description
5	Set the time until it is considered a communication error.
6	 Check the chekbox in order to emit a sound when a communication error occurs, and set the sound file.

Alarm Operation Settings										
Measurement Communication Alarm Mask										
The time zone which is not considered as alarm generatin: ※Inputs by 24-hour										
7 🔽 01:00 🛨 - 06:59	- 00:00 -	- 00:00 -								
	× 00:00 ×	- 00:00 -								
	× 00:00 ×	- 00:00								
□ 00:00 - 00:00		- 00:00 -								
□ 00:00 = 00:00	▼ 00:00 ▼	- 00:00 -								
CHECK Automatically, when an alaym is released										
CHECK Automatically, when an alarm is released When an alarm occurs, alarm log pop up appears OK Cancel										

item	Description
7	Sets the period during which to suppress alarms.

Note

- The valid time input range is 00:00 to 23:59.
- The minimum input unit is 1 min.

5.2.2 Start alarm operation

From the tool bar, click [Mon], and start the alarm evaluation by computer.



When an alarm is triggered, the monitor display changes for the measurement value in which the alarm occurs.

When an alarm sound is set

When an alarm occurs, an alarm sound is emitted from the computer. When you want to remove an alarm sound, click the relevant alarm in [Alarm Log]. When all alarms are set to "Checking Complete", the alarm sound is released.

Note

Alarms cannot be evaluated for measurement data when a communication error occurs between the computer and the communication module.

5.2.3 Displaying the Alarm Log

Information about alarm generations and communication errors are displayed on Smart Site Utility.

• Select [Alarm] - [Display Alarm Logs] to display the alarm logs.

Record(R)	Alarm(A) Tool(T)	Help(H)
.	Display Alarm Lo	ogs 🛛 👃 🚺
СОМ	Alarm Operation	_
List	Application func	tion 🕨

- When an alarm occurs, you can also have a pop up display.
- 5.2.1 "Alarm operation settings" (page 208)
- When an alarm is evaluated by monitoring values while monitoring measurement data for the measurement module installation from the computer, if the threshold value is exceeded the [Alarm Log] appears.
- When a communication error occurs between the computer and the communication module during monitoring, the error is displayed in [Alarm Log].



212 5.2 Function to evaluate alarms by computer

Unchecked alarms are displayed in yellow. The alarm is released when it is clicked, and the date is entered at the checking time. Also, when a "Trigger occurs", you can view waveform data by double-clicking.

File(F) Displa	iy(∀)						
Date: 10/0)4/2006	•		All alarms:	7 Unchecked a	larms: 2 CHECK	All
Occur time	Release time	Model Comment	Measurement Item	Information 7	Description 6	Checking time	2
13:50:20 -	-	2321 WAVEFORM	CH1	Trigger Factor: Analog	Trigger	-	
13:50:20	- 2	2321 WAVEFORM	CH1	Trigger Factor: Analog	Trigger		
13:49:11		2321 WAVEFORM	2305-1	2.069V(Lower: Upper:0.022)	Measurement Alarm		
13:48:12	±1	2305 INSTUMENT	2305-1	0.371V(Lower: Upper:0.022)	Measurement Alarm	10/04 13:48:41	
12:01:59	10/04 12:03:04	2305 INSTUMENT			Trigger	-0	
12:00:10	10/04 12:00:30	2353 LAN MODULE			Trigger		
11:55:00	10/04 11:56:00	2353 LAN MODULE			Triager	10/04 11:55:51	

Example of displaying the [Alarm Log] dialog box

	item	Description						
1	Date	Date when the alarm occurred.						
2	Occur time, Release time	 The time when the alarm occurs and when it was released. 						
3	ID	 When an alarm occurs The [COM ID for the communication module] - [MODULE ID for the measurement module] open. Example: When [01] - [02] appear, data for the measurement module of MOD-ULE ID:02 that exists on the same CAN bus as the communication module for COM ID:01 was evaluated as an alarm. When a communication error occurs The COM ID for the communication module in which the communication error occurred appears. * By default the ID is set to not appear. 						
4	Model comment	 When an alarm occurs Displays the model comment set to the measurement module. When a communication error occurs The model comment for the communication module in which the communication error occurred appears. 						
5	Measurement Item	Displays the CH comment set to the measurement module.						
6	Description	 When an alarm occurs, a [Measurement alarm] appears. When a communication error occurs, a [Communication error] appears. When a trigger occurs, a [Trigger occurs] appears. 						
7	Information	 Displays the setting values of alarm and instantaneous data at the time of alarm event. The trigger factor appears when a trigger occurs. 						
8	Checking time	 After checking the display contents of the alarm log, click the checked row, and the checking date and time are committed to memory. 						
9	Check All	Click [Check All] to confirm that all the alarms of that day are checked.						

5.2.4 An alarm signal occurs from 2342 Output Module

When an alarm occurs, you can output an alarm signal from optional 2342 registered in the module list.

When monitoring measurement data for the measurement module at the installation location by computer, when an alarm evaluated at a monitoring value exceeds the threshold value, an alarm signal is output from 2342 Output Module connected to the computer.



Settings

Procedure

Set the alarm for the measurement items for each module.
 \$3.2.4 (page 50)

2. From the tool bar, select [Alarm] - [Application function] - [Alarm output function to 2342 Output Module].

Alarm(A) Tool(T) Help(H)	
Display Alarm Logs	& Ø
Alarm Operation Settings	Data Auto
Application function	Alarm output function to 2342 OUTPUT MODULE

3. The setting screen for the alarm output function opens.

Al	arm out	put function to 2342 OUTPUT MODULE Setting		
		Function explanation When a measurement item changes into an alarm state, an alarm state An output will be canceled if CHECK of the target measurement item When two or more measurement items are assigned to one output d Please set up the measurement item for alarm, and the measurement	is performed on an alarm log window. (ÖFF) destination CH, it becomes OR output (either is ON output in an a	larm state)
Г				
		Measurement item for alarm	An output CH of 2342	
	▶* 1	<u> </u>]	-
			When you delete a line, select a line and push the Del	ete key.
		ок	Cancel	

4.

214

Select the measurement item for the target alarm. Displays all the measurement items for modules that exist in the module list.

Alarm output function to 2342 OUTPUT MODU	ULE Setting			×
Function explanation When a measurement item changes into ar An output will be canceled if CHECK of the When two or more measurement items are Please set up the measurement item for ala	target measurement item assigned to one output o	is performed on an alar lestination CH, it becor	rm log window. (ÖFF) nes OR output (either is ON output in an alarm s	tate)
Measurement item for alarm		An output CH of 2342		
1 ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH	· · ·		•	
10: 03-01 [222] WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH ID: 03-01 [232] WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH ID: 03-01 [232] WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH	11(Mean) 11(Peak) 11(Bottom) 11(RMS) 11(p-p) 11(Ap)			
		When you	u delete a line, select a line and push the Delete ke	y.
_	ОК	Cancel		

215

5.

Select the CH of the 2342 that will output the alarm. You can select the CH which becomes "PC control mode" in the Model 2342 CH output setting.

		Function explanation When a measurement item changes into an alarm state, an ala An output will be canceled if CHECK of the target measuremen When two or more measurement items are assigned to one ou Please set up the measurement item for alarm, and the measure	t item i: Itput de	s performed on an alarm log window. (0FF) estination CH, it becomes OR output (either is ON output in an alarn
		Measurement item for alarm		An output CH of 2342
Þ	1	ID: 03-01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) - CH1(RMS)	-	ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH1 🗾 💌
*	2			ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH1 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH2 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH3 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH4 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH5 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH7 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH7 ID: 03-06 (2342 OUTPUT MODULE) - CH8
_			_	When you delete a line, select a line and push the Delete
		OK		Cancel

6. Repeat 4 and 5 to set multiple alarms.

7. When output settings for all alarms are complete, click [OK].

Beginning of mission

Procedure

1. From the tool bar, click [Mon], and start the alarm evaluation by computer.



Monitor 2342 Output Module at the same time.



When an alarm occurs, the CH for the output module specified in [Output Destination] changes.

< 2321				< 2342					
OHI (Mean) OHI (Mean) OHI (Peak) OHI (Buttor OHI (Buttor OHI (Buttor OHI (Buttor OHI (Buttor	0.038 _v 0.031 _v	CH2 CH2(Mean) CH2(Mean) CH2(Peak) CH2(Peak) CH2(Peak) CH2(Peak) CH2(Po) CH2(FMs) CH2(F) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(CF) CH2(AD) CH2(AD		< 2342 OFF H1 CH3 CH4 CH5 CH6 CH6 CH7 CH8		The	display t	urns rec	1.
CH A(1-4		CH B(1-4) ••••	•						
Alarm Log									le l
ファイル(<u>F</u>)	表示\型/								
Date: 10/		-			All al	arms: 2	Unchecked ala		CHECK AII
		vlodel Comment	Measuren	nent Item	Informati			Description	Checking tim
10:23:35		321	CH1 (RMS)				Upper:0.02)	Alarm	10 (05 10 5
09:08:38	2	305	2305-1		0.024 V (L	.ower:	Upper:0.022)	Alarm	10/05 10:24:0
If you click a	unchecked alarm,	, it becomes checked. And t	he alarm(outp	out) is release	d.				

З.

When the alarm is clicked (checked) on the [Alarm log] screen, the output module output destination CH is turned OFF. If [Check All] is clicked on the [Alarm Log] screen, the output destination of all currently generated CH is turned "OFF".

Note

Alarms cannot be evaluated for measurement data when a communication error occurs between the computer and the communication module.

5.3 Function to evaluate alarms by module

5.3.1 An alarm data is saved or an alarm signal is output by the measurement module

- The measurement module has an alarm evaluation function. (Not including 2343 RS Link Module)
- Alarm data is saved in the internal memory of the measurement module, and the computer can extract the data later.
- After evaluating the alarm, the measurement module with an alarm output port can output the control signal (alarm output signal).
- The 2353 LAN MODULE and 2354 MEMORY MODULE can send email notifications when alarms occur or are cancelled (except for the 2343 RS LINK MODULE). The 9768-02 LAN module email option is required in order to send email notifications.





Settings

As an example, an alarm is evaluated by 2305 Instrumentation Module, and we show the set-up steps to save data in the internal memory.

Procedure

1. Right-click in the measurement module which holds the alarm you want to evaluate from the module list, and select [Module settings].

Module List Layout List		
□	M MODULE) E) MODULE) ENTATION MODU 2305 INSTRUME Open Monitor	INTATION MODULE Settings

2. The [Measurement Module Settings] dialog box opens. Click the [Basic] tab and check that the [Use] is selected for the CH to be measured.

Basic	Measurement	item Record Alarm (Module) Alarm (Co
⊂CH1		
	🔽 Use	Range Current 💌
CH2		
	🔽 Use	Range Current 💌

219

3. Click [Alarm (Module)].

2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE (COM ID	: 03 MODULE ID: 05)		
2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE MODU	LE ID 5 🚽		
Model Comment			
2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE			
Basic Measurement item Record Alarm (Mo			
When you want to use the module's built-in all During recording, an alarm log is saved in a mo		isurement item.	
	Joule's memory.		
4 Measurement item Comment	Lower	Upper	
		100 L	
CH1			
	Upper 100	L	
0.			
			1
6, Alarm port out	put Do not output	•	
	,		
7 — Send	Close		

4. When the \Box for the CH (measurement item) for alarm evaluations is selected, an alarm evaluation can be performed for that CH. A CH comment is displayed in the measurement item.

5.

Enter the [Lower limit] and the [Upper limit]. The entered value acts as the threshold for alarm evaluation.

6. Select [Alarm port output].

Set whether or not to output the alarm evaluation result to the alarm port and the LED measurement module.

(Settings are common for all measurement items.)

Do not output	Nothing is output.	
Save Alarm Status	When the alarm evaluation result is outside the range, it continues to output until it is cleared*. *: Hold down the [ALARM RESET] switch on the commucation module for more than one second to clear. For 2342, you can clear (ON → OFF) by clicking the monitor screen.	
Update at each sampling	The evaluation result is output every second.	

7. Click [Send] to send the settings.

If you click [Close] before clicking the [Send] button, the settings are not saved.

This completes the settings. Use the same step to set alarm evaluations for other measurement modules.

Operational step example for alarm evaluation and alarm signal output

In the following diagram shows an operational step example for [Save Alarm Status] and [Update at each sampling]. (In this example the upper limit for the measurement is exceeded)



Beginning of operation

Procedure

From the tool bar, click [Rec] to start recording for the module.



When an alarm occurs and it is released, alarm data is saved in the module's internal memory. Also, a control signal is output from the alarm output port by the alarm evaluation result.

5.3.2 An alarm signal is output by using the 2342 Output Module's evaluation function

- 2342 Output Module monitor and evaluate alarms for measurement values for other modules connected on the same CAN bus, and can output a control signal.
- Because the CAN cable can be extended up to 100m, the control signal can be output in locations remote from the measurement location.
- Model 2342 has 8CH output ports, and each CH operates independently.
- Use the 2342 Output Module when you want to evaluate module* data without an alarm output terminal and output a control signal.



*:2332 Power Meter Module and 2341 Input Module

Settings

As an example, measurements for CH1 for 2305 Instrumentation Module (MODULE ID:05) are shown, and an alarm is evaluated with CH2 for 2342 Output Module, and we show the set-up steps to perform control output.

Procedure

 Right-click in the measurement module you want to measure from the module list, and select [Module settings].





3.

Right-click in the 2342 Output Module from the module list, and select [Module settings].



4.

Click the CH tab you are using (in this example CH2), to open the Setting screen. Select [Use].



5. Select [Logic].

Active Lo	When an alarm occurs, Lo is output from the port. When an alarm is released, Hi is output.
Active Hi	When an alarm occurs, Hi is output from the port. When an alarm is released, Lo is output.

6. Edit the [Comment].

- Use to classify CH.
- Because it is used by the measurements monitor and the recorded data display with Smart Site Viewer, enter an easily understandable comment. (40 characters or less)

7. Set the [Output Reset Setting].

Select if you want to be unable to release the alarm output with the communication module's [ALARM RESET] switch. This is a function to prevent miss operation.

8. Select [Alarm Mode].

9. Select [Monitoring module].

Because the MODULE ID and the model comment for measurement modules that are present on the same CAN bus as Model 2342 are displayed as a list, you can select the module you want to monitor. In the example in this paragraph [ID: 05 (Cool temperature water generator)]) was selected. *Change the contents of the list for [Measurement Item].

Monitoring module
ID: 05 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODUL
ID: 01 (2321 WAVEFORM MODULE) ID: 02 (2302 Pt MODULE) ID: 03 (2301 HUMIDITY MODULE) ID: 04 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE)
ID: 04 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE)
ID: 05 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE) ID: 07 (2305 INSTRUMENTATION MODULE)

10.

Select the [Measurement Item].

In [Monitoring Module] select which measurement item to monitor from the specified module.

* When 2341 Input Module is specified in [Monitoring Module], this setting item is not displayed.

Measurement item	
CH1	•
CH1	
CH2	

<Supplementary>

- When monitoring data for 2341 INPUT MODULE, select alarm evaluation CH and CH for logic (OR,AND).

In the example diagram, when an alarm occurs (ON) for either CH1 or CH3 for 2341 INPUT MODULE, an alarm signal is output from Model 2342.

Alarm Settings								
				Мо	nitoring	СН		
C AND	CH1	CH2	СНЗ	CH4	CH5	CH6	CH7	CH8
Filter width 1 sec		Γ	•	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	

5.3 Function to evaluate alarms by module

11. Enter the [Upper] and the [Lower].

The entered value acts as the threshold for alarm evaluation.

12. Select [Filter width].

If this function is not used, it does not matter if it is [OFF]. For details on this function, see "2342 Output Module Filtering Function" (page 228)



13.

226

Select [Alarm port output].

You can select [Continuous] or [Refresh at each sampling].

	 Once an alarm occurs, until the [ALARM RESET] switch on the communication module is held down, the status of the port output and the LED is saved.
Continuous	 After holding down the [ALARM RESET] switch and then releasing, when the alarm evaluation result changes from OFF → ON, the status of the port output and the LED changes. (Enters alarm output status)
Refresh at each sampling	The evaluation result is output every second.

14. Select [Alarm Priority CH].

If this function is not used, it does not matter if nothing is selected.

For details on this function, see "2342 Output Module Alarm Priority CH" (page 229)

15.

Click [Send] to send the settings.

If you click [Close] before clicking the [Send] button, the settings are not saved.

This completes the settings. When the settings are sent, 2342 Output Module starts evaluation operations. Use the same step to set alarm evaluations for other CH.

Operational step example for alarm evaluation and alarm signal output

In the following diagram shows an operational step example for [Continuous] and [Refresh at each sampling]. (In this example the upper limit for the measurement is exceeded)



2342 Output Module Filtering Function

- This function does not output an alarm signal when measurements for the monitored module reach an abnormal value due to the influence of unexpected noise etc.
- When the alarm evaluation result for the specified time for the filter is the same, the alarm evaluation result as well as the terminal output change.
- When [OFF] is selected, the evaluation result for every second is reflected in the alarm evaluation result.

The following diagram shows the operational concept. (An example when Model 2342 CH1 to 4 monitor the same measurements)



2342 Output Module Alarm Priority CH

- The [Alarm Priority CH] setting allows you to specify channels which have high priority with regard to the alarm. When alarm evaluation in any such channel results in the ON (alarm activated) state, the alarm output of other channels is disabled.
- For example, this can be used when not wanting to have alarm output from CH2 while there is alarm output from CH1^{*1}.
- Do not use this function when wishing to use the alarm output of each channel independently.

As shown in the table below, the default priority setting as CH1 (highest) to channel 8 (lowest).

Priority	Model 2342 channel	Selectable channel	
Highost	CH1	None	
Highest	CH2	CH1	
	CH3	CH1 to 2 (multiple selection possible)	
	CH4	CH1 to 3 (multiple selection possible)	
	CH5	CH1 to 4 (multiple selection possible)	
	CH6	CH1 to 5 (multiple selection possible)	
Lowest	CH7	CH1 to 6 (multiple selection possible)	
201000	CH8	CH1 to 7 (multiple selection possible)	

*1: In such a case, select CH1 (which has higher priority) as the [Alarm Priority CH] setting for CH2.

Some operation examples are shown below. (Among CH1 to CH8 of the Model 2342, this function is used for CH1 to 4 and CH8.)

[Alarm Priority CH] not selected



[Alarm Priority CH] selected



Example using 2342 Output Module

Usage example 1

• Using CH1 of the Model 2341, relay contact status is to be monitored. (Short-circuit monitoring)

When the short-circuit signal is input to the Model 2341, CH1 of the Model 2342 should output a Lo active signal each second. Output reset should be locked.

Using CH2 of the Model 2341, relay contact status is to be monitored. (Open-circuit monitoring)

When the open-circuit signal is input to the Model 2341, CH2 of the Model 2342 should output a Hi active signal and maintain this signal.

Required initial settings *1

1. Hardware settings

Set the module ID (Model 2341, Model 2342).

2.

Software settings (Smart Site Utility) Use the setup screen for each module.

[Model 2341]

Setting item	CH1	CH2	CH3 to CH8
Use	Selected	Selected	Not selected
Logic	Active Lo	Active Hi	-

[Model 2342]

Setting item	CH1	CH2	CH3 to CH8
Use	Selected	Selected	Not selected
Logic	Active Lo	Active Hi	-
Mode settings	Alarm Mode	Alarm Mode	-
Monitor module	Model 2341 ID	Model 2341 ID	-
Alarm settings	OR or AND	OR or AND	-
Measurement item	CH1	CH2	-
Filter width	OFF	OFF	-
Alarm port output	Refresh at every sampling	Continuous	-
Output reset settings	Selected	Not selected	-

*1: Refer to the documentation of the respective module for information on cable types and connections and mounting to the module base.

Usage example 2

- Using CH1 of the Model 2342, the Lo active signal is to be controlled from the computer. (Output reset should be locked.)
- Using CH2 of the Model 2342, CH1 (temperature) of the PT MODULE is to be monitored each second.
 (When a status occurs in which it goes outside the 0 to 20 °C range three times con-
- tinuously, a Hi alarm signal is output.)
 Using CH3 of the Model 2342, CH1 (temperature) of the 2303 TC Module is to be monitored each second. (When a status occurs in which it goes outside the 0 to 40 °C range, a Low alarm
- signal is output.)
 Using CH4 of the Model 2342, CH1 (temperature) of the 2303 TC Module is to be monitored each second.
 (When a status occurs in which it goes outside the 0 to 30 °C range, a Low alarm signal is output.)

However, if the CH3 alarm has been activated, the CH4 signal is to be suppressed.)

Required initial settings *1

1

. Hardware settings

Set the module ID (Models 2302, 2303, 2342).

2

Z. Software settings (Smart Site Utility)

Use the setup screen for each module.

[Models 2302, 2303]

Setting item	CH1	CH2
Use	Selected	Not selected
Other settings	Optional *2	-

[Model 2342]

Setting item	CH1	CH2	СНЗ	CH4	CH5 to CH8
Use	Selected	Selected	Selected	Selected	Not selected
Logic	Active Lo	Active Hi	Active Lo	Active Lo	-
Mode settings	PC Control Mode	Alarm Mode	Alarm Mode	Alarm Mode	-
Monitoring module	-	Model 2302 ID	Model 2303 ID	Model 2303 ID	-
Measurement item	-	CH1	CH1	CH1	-
Upper	-	20	40	30	-
Lower	-	0	0	0	-
Filter width	-	3 s	OFF	OFF	-
Alarm port output	*3	Refresh at every sampling	Refresh at every sampling	Refresh at every sampling	-
Output Reset Settings	Selected	Not selected	Not selected	Not selected	-
Alarm Priority CH	-	Not selected	Not selected	CH3 selected	-

*1: Refer to the documentation of the respective module for information on cable types and connections and mounting to the module base.
*2: Setting not related to Model 2342 control system.
*3: Fixed to [Save Alarm Status].

234 5.3 Function to evaluate alarms by module

Operation (part Model 2354)



6.1 Overview

The 2354 Memory Module is a communication module equipped with a LAN (100BASE-TX or 10BASE-T) port and a CF card slot. You can operate Model 2354 by either of two methods (online/off line). Because the operating steps and actions differ for each, select the most practical method depending on your operating environment. The following explains the features and outlines each operating method.

(1) Online

Usually this is the same as other communication modules, the computer uses Model 9768 and the LAN is always connected with Model 2354.

If, by any chance, communication is interrupted or abnormalities occur in the computer, or if data is not collected by 9768 for a long period due to long periods of inactivity etc., concerns about losing recorded data can be reduced because a higher capacity CF card than the internal memory of each measurement module is used.

We do not give a detailed account in this chapter because the method used is the same as that for other communication modules. See the corresponding item in the table below.

Description	Method	Browse
Equipment setting method	Send the settings from 9768.	 ✤ 3.1 (page 11) 3.2 (page 44)
Start/Stop Recording	 Starting/Stopping recording by communication. 	✤ 3.5.1 (page 91)
Recorded data	 9768 acquires recorded data regularly through communication, and saves it to a computer. 	✤ 3.5.2 (page 103)
CF card	 The CF card is used as a buffer memory for recorded data. When the CF card is full, it automatically deletes from the oldest data. You do not need to replace the CF card. 	_
Using recorded data	 Recorded data that was acquired and saved by computer can be viewed by Smart Site Viewer. 	✤ 3.7 (page 111)

6.1 Overview

236

(2) Off line

You can operate Model 2354 without connecting the computer with a LAN. Use this operation method when you cannot have an always-on LAN connection, and when you want to perform temporary installation in order to perform checks etc.

For details on the operating method, see the explanation from 6.2.

Description	Method
Equipment setting method	 Save the setting file on the CF card by Model 9768. When recording starts, the equipment is automatically set using the setting file saved on the CF card.
Start/Stop Recording]	Using the Model 2354 START/STOP switch.
Recorded data	 Model 2354 collects regularly and saves on to the CF card. Remove the CF card, and read it from a computer. When LAN is connected, you can download from the FTP using Internet Explorer
CF card	 Recorded data is saved on the CF card You can set operations when the CF card is full to "Stop" or "Continue" (automatically deletes from the oldest data). Be sure to replace the CF card regularly when you select "Continue".
Using recorded data	 Data saved on the CF card is converted using Model 9768, and it can be viewed by Smart Site Viewer. Data saved on multiple CF cards can be treated as one piece of recorded data. When set to save in text format on the CF card, files saved in text format can be processed by Excel etc.

Note

- If a CF card is not installed, Model 2354 cannot perform recording operations.
- When either operation method starts recording, Model 2354 creates a new recording file for the CF card When a CF card is used repeatedly, check the free space on the CF card before use, and when there is not enough space on the card, use a new CF card or delete unnecessary recorded files.

6.2 Using Off Line

When using Model 2354 off line, first create the module configuration, and set by using Model 9768. The following is only a general procedure. For detailed procedures, see the explanation

I he following is only a general procedure. For detailed procedures, see the explanation for each item.

General Procedure

1 Start MAP editor.	✤ 3.1.1 (page 12)
2. Add Model 2354. Enter the initial settings for Model 2354.	✤ 3.1.2(Page 16)
3 , Send the settings to Model 2354.	✤ 3.1.3(Page 21)
4. Add a measurement module. Enter the initial settings for the measurement module.	♦ 4.4.1 (page 189)
5. Save the initial settings file to the CF card.	♦ 6.2.2 (page 242)
 6. Install the CF card in Model 2354. 6. Hold down the Model 2354 START/STOP switch until the REC LED flashes yellow, and data logging starts. When there is not enough free space on the CF card, replace it with a new card. When all data logging is complete, hold down the Model 2354 START/STOP switch until the REC LED turns off, and data logging stops. 	Model 2300 Instruc- tion manual "Chapter16 Model 2354"
7. Convert the recorded data.	
8. View the recorded data.	� 3.7 (page 111)

238

Note

- Make sure to perform from the start of this procedure when changing the module configuration or settings, or when changing the recording interval etc.
- When removing the CF card during recording, do not disconnect the power to Model 2354. After powering up the Model 2354, you may not be able to resume normal recording.
- When collecting data from Model 2354, if the CF card is not installed in Model 2354 correctly, you cannot carry out data acquisition from Smart Site Utility
- Collect once the CF card is installed in Model 2354, and the cover is closed.
- When recording by using Model 2354, you need to acquire a CF card (we recommend using a new card) and a commercially available computer and card reader. See the manual supplied with the card reader for the connection method and how to use the card reader.
- The necessary capacity of the CF card changes depending on the operation method, the system configuration, the recording interval, etc. Use a CF card with the optimum capacity. Regarding the necessary capacity, when saving the setting file to the CF card (see 6.2.2 (page 242)), the basic necessary capacity appears. Or, use 6.7 "Recording file size for CF card" (page 259) as a guide.

Important

- Do not leave the CF card removed for more than about ten minutes during recording. Recording data may be missed.
- If it is left in a status in which the CF card is installed but the cover is not closed for about 2 hours, it automatically begins recording data to prevent data from being missed, but there is no guarantee that all of the data will be recorded. Check that the cover is closed securely. Also, please note that the CF card may be damaged if you remove the CF card after forgetting to close the cover when forced saving of recorded data is carried out. Remove the CF card after closing and then opening the cover.
- HIOKI's Optional CF Cards
 - 9726 PCcard 128M
 - 9727 PCcard 256M
 - 9728 PCcard 512M
 - 9729 PCcard 1G

6.2.1 Constructing the System

First, perform system construction of the memory module and the measurement module used for Model 2354. The following example of a system construction diagram is a general explanation only.

For detailed procedures and contents, see 3.1.1 (page 12), 3.1.2(Page 16), 3.1.3(Page 21), 4.4.1 (page 189)



Procedure

Start the MAP editor. \$3.1.1 (page 12)

Select either



6.2 Using Off Line



Smart Site Utility - [Standard] - [MAP Editor]	
	Measurement Module List of COM ID: 01 (235
2332 POWER METER MO 2341 INPUT 2342. 2343 AS LINK OUTP 2343 AS LINK MODULE 2351 AIR 2353 LAN 2353 LAN 2353 LAN 2353 LAN 2353 LAN 2353 LAN 2354 LAN 2354 LAN 2354 LAN	Communication Module Settings
	TTP server settings CDM Port No. 21

Send the settings to Model 2354. Temporarily connect the computer and Model 2354, and send the settings as shown in the following diagram.
 ♦ 3.1.3(Page 21)



Note

- The Model 2354 internal clock is set when it is shipped from the factory, but errors may occur due to the temperature of the operational environment etc. Send the settings before starting operations.
- Although LAN is not normally connected during off line operations, the LAN connects temporarily when sending settings. Be sure to set setting items (within the limits) regarding communication for step 2.

240

4. Add MODULE ID:1 for the [2306] MULTIFUNCTION MODULE (see 4.4.1 (page 189)), and MODULE ID:2 for the [2332] MULTI-CIRCUIT POWER MODULE, and enter the settings.

Because Model 2354 automatically sets the measurement module by using the setting file saved on the CF card (see 6.3.2 (page 250)), you do not need to send settings to the measurement module here.



Note

In particular check the contents of the [Record] tab, the recording interval, recording mode, etc.

The method for recording each measurement module is determined depending on the content of the recording settings entered here.

6.2.2 Saving the Setting to the CF Card

Save the system configuration and settings created in 6.2.1 "Constructing the System" (page 239) to the CF card as a setting file. With this CF card installed in Model 2354, by starting recording, each module in the system is automatically set and you can perform recordings.

Procedure



3. Check the necessary capacity of the CF card.

When using this CF card, the current recording settings [Total file size for 1 day], [Free space on the target drive], and [Number of days to save] appear.

When there is not enough free space on the CF card, the following screen opens and saving cannot be performed.

Select the 2354 in which COM ID: 1 (2354 M	-	Total file size for 1 day	197KB
100m 10. 1 (2004 m		Free space on the target drive	0 MByte
		Number of days to save	0D ay
Target removable drive. H:\0	_	In order to start record, a recordable availability is req more than for two days.	uired
			-
	Updating Drive List	 Please delete an unnecessary and increase an availability or 	

4. Select the Model 2354 in which settings are saved.

In step 2, when [Save setting file for 2354 to CF] is opened from the menu bar, it is registered to the module list, and all Model 2354 are displayed in the list. When opening by right-clicking on the module list, you cannot select any Model 2354 other than the Model 2354 selected.

5. Select the target removable drive.

Here, connect it to the computer, and all removable mass storage devices (CF and USB memory, etc.) are displayed in a list, so select the CF card connected to the computer.

The drive character ("H:" in this example) and the volume label ("CF" in this example) are displayed, so be sure to select the correct one.

6. Click [Save].

For Model 2354 a settings folder "SET" is created in the CF card, and a screen such as the following opens.

SmartSi	teUtility	
Ð	Save setting file	e to H:\
	OK]	

A message such as following is displayed when there is already a "SET" folder in the target destination. Check that the target destination is correct, and click [Yes] to overwrite.

SmartSi	teUtility
1	The folder for a setting file already exists in the specified drive. It is [Yes] when the existing setting folder may be deleted. Please click. Yes No





8.

Insert the CF card in Model 2354, and start recording. For details on inserting the CF card and starting recording, see the "2300 Instruction Manual - Chapter 16 Model 2354"

Note

- When replacing CF cards, you do not need to save the setting file to the CF card.
- Important files may be lost if a mistake is made in the target when saving the setting file. Before saving the setting file, be sure to check the target destination.
- After connecting to the computer, the card reader may not be recognized immediately.

Repeat the operation if the target CF card is not displayed after waiting for a while.

- Before removing the CF card from the card reader, be sure to perform [Eject].
- From Explorer on the computer, right-click the CF card drive, and then select [Eject]. In the worst case scenario, the CF card may be destroyed if it is removed suddenly without performing [Eject], and it will become unusable.


6.3 Viewing Recorded Data (Off line)

When operating Model 2354 off line, you need to convert the recorded data saved on the CF card into a viewable format for the Smart Site Viewer. Also, when Model 2354 is set to "Create a CSV file" (see 3.1.2 (Page 16), you can also view and edit the CSV file saved to the CF card with a spreadsheet program such as Excel etc. (See 6.3.2 (page 250))

The following is only a general procedure. For detailed procedures, see the explanation for each item.

General procedure



6.3.1 Converting Recorded Data

The recording file saved on the CF card cannot be viewed by Smart Site Viewer as it is. Use the following steps to convert the format.

Because converted recording data can be saved in an optional folder with an optional name, you can view it at any time. Also, recorded files that are saved on different CF cards can be added to the computer as the same recorded data

Procedure

1. Connect a card reader to the computer, and insert the CF card.



245

6.3 Viewing Recorded Data (Off line)

2.

From the menu bar, select [Record] - [Convert 2354 recorded file].
 [Convert 2354 recorded file] opens.

🖦 Smart Site Utility - [Standard]	Convert 2354 recorded file
Image: Signart Site Utility - [Standard] File(F) Monitor(M) Record(R) Alarm(A) Tool(T) Help(H) Image: Mark and the standard st	The Record file of 2354 saved at CF is read, and it changes into the Record file which can be perused by Smart Site Viewer. Read settings The folder where the record file of 2354 is saved H:\REC\RECOT0725130037 Refer Range of data to read Range of data to read Recorro824090100 etc. A Range of data to read The reading range 07/25/2007 to 07/25/2007 * The actual data range is acquirable from a record file> Cardia Save settings File name REC070725130037 (Folder) Check recorded file with Viewer
	6. ↓ Open the created recording file with the Viewer after conversion End

3.

Select the folder containing the original recorded file to be read.
 Click the [Browse] button and select the folder where the recorded file is saved.

In the example in the following screen, the "REC\REC070725130037" folder saved on the CF card (H drive) is selected. Select and then click the [OK] button. See Appendix 9 "CF card" (page 317) for the structure of the recorded file saved on the CF card (target file name etc.).

2 🛛
*
-
OK Cancel

246

4. To read only a section of the recorded file, select [Specify the range of data to read], and specify the reading range by clicking the date on the calendar.

When [Acquire range from recorded file] is clicked, the actual date for the saved recording file appears, and so specify within this range.

Read settings The folder where the	record	file of	2354	is save	ed				
H:\REC\REC0707	2513003	37							Refer
The folder name where the record file is saved is REC070824090100 etc.									
Range of data to re	ead —								
🔽 Specify the ra	nge of d	lata to	read						
The reading range	07/25	5/2007	7	•	to	07/2	5/2007	7	•
* The actu acquirable				ly, 20				e from re	ecorded file
	24	25	26	27	28	Fri 29	Sat 30	<u></u>	
Save settings	1	2	3	4	5	- <u>(</u>			
File name	8	9	10	11	12		14		
REC07072513003	7 15	16 23	17	18	1/26	20 27	21 28		Refer
(Folder	29	30	31	1	20	3	4		1
` <u>'</u>	2	Tod	ay: 7	/25/	2007				î
			-			LNECK	recor	ded file	with Viewer

5.

Click the [Browse] button, select the target folder for the recorded data, and set the file name. Enter the target recorded data name when saving as new recorded data.

Also, when making additions to existing recorded data, select the existing recorded data (hrp file). Next, click the [Open] button.



Use the [Check recorded file with Viewer] button to open existing recorded data and check it in the Viewer. When clicked, the selected existing recorded data is opened with the Viewer.

<u>6</u>.

Click [Execute]. The following message appears and the recorded data is converted.

When [Open the created recording file with the Viewer after conversion] is selected, the converted recorded data is opened in the Viewer after conversion is completed normally.

SmartSi	teUtility 🛛 🔀
Ų	Conversion of data was completed.
	ОК

The following message appears when recorded data already exists. Check that the target destination is correct, and click [Yes] to make additions.

imartSi	teUtility
1	Record file REC070725130037.hrp specified to be a preservation place already exists is a postscript added to this file?
	Yes No

7. For Model 2354, when there is not enough free space on the CF card, you can replace it with a new CF card and continue recording. For this kind of operation, when the recorded data is saved on multiple CF cards, repeat the step above for the number of cards needed.

8.

You can view the converted recording file at any time with Smart Site Viewer. For details on using Smart Site Viewer, see 3.7 (page 111).

N	ote
---	-----

The following screen appears when trying to make additions to existing recorded data if the settings etc. for the recorded file on the CF card and the settings for the recording items for the recorded data targeted for additions on the computer differ, and additions are not possible. In this case, specify a new target recording file.

SmartSi	iteUtility	×
	Since the file and composition of a reading place differ from each other, record data cannot be added to a	file.
	ОК	

- When adding to existing recorded data, if you make a mistake in the file targeted for additions, older important files may be overwritten. Before executing additions to recorded data, be sure to check the target for additions.
- After connecting to the computer, the card reader may not be recognized immediately. Repeat the operation if the target CF card is not displayed after waiting for a while.
- Before removing the CF card from the card reader, be sure to perform [Eject]. From Explorer on the computer, right-click the CF card drive, and then select [Eject]. In the worst case scenario, the CF card may be destroyed if it is removed suddenly without performing [Eject], and it will become unusable.



6.3.2 Viewing Recorded data with Excel

When Model 2354 is set to "Create a CSV file" (3.1.2 (Page 16)), you can also view and edit the CSV file saved to the CF card with a spreadsheet program such as Excel etc.

Procedure

1. Connect a card reader to the computer, and insert the CF card.



2.

From Explorer on the computer, open the target folder on the CF card drive. For details on the target recorded file, see Appendix 9 "CF card" (page 317).



3. When the target file is double-clicked, Excel starts. The target file is displayed with a .csv extension and an Excel icon.

When it starts up, Excel opens as shown in the following screen. You can use Excel to analyze the data by creating graphs, calculating measurement items, etc.

In the following example, the recording interval for both the [2306] Multifunction Module (MODULE ID:1), and the [2332] Power Meter Module (MODULE ID:2) is 60 seconds.

Each modules recording mode is as a result of using "Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE vale" recording.



Note

- The CF card recording file saves the recorded data for all measurement modules for one day in one file. For details, see Appendix 9 "CF card" (page 317).
- Because the data number for one day is 86400 when the recording interval is set to one second, it cannot be viewed by Excel. This is due to limitations in the number of lines (vertical) and the number of rows (horizontal), that can be opened by Excel and, for example, you can only open up to 65536 lines and 256 rows in Excel 2002 (XP). Therefore, when the total number of recorded items is more than 256 items, or when the number of records per recording item for one day is 65526 or more (with a 10 line header line), use Smart Site Viewer or a commercially available spreadsheet program that does not have these limitations.
- Please note that when the CF card is removed etc. while it is being accessed (the CF LED is flashing), or a mistake is made in the handling of the CF card when saving a CSV file, the line being saved may be corrupted. However, even in this situation, because saving begins from the corrupted line the next time a CSV is saved, original recorded data is never missed. Also, this has no influence on files recorded in binary format.
- For details on using Excel, see the Excel Help.

251



6.4 Collecting Recorded Data with FTP

Model 2354 has a built-in FTP (File-Transfer-Protocol, RFC959 compliant) server. Recorded data saved on Model 2354 CF cards can be sent to a computer by using the computer's Explorer (or Internet Explorer). In the following example, the Model 2354 IP address is "192.168.1.1", and we used Explorer in Windows XP.

Procedure





When using user authentication

In this example, the User name is "smartsite" and the password is "2354".

LAN (Ethernet) setting	192 . 168 . 1 . 1	COM Port No.	50000 💌			
Subnet mask Default gateway	255 255 255 0	Time Out(ms) Number of retry	3000 🛨	(300 - 60000)		
WAN Settings(Communicate via Internet using broadband router port forwarding)						
IP address or Name]	COM Port No.	50002 🛫	(1 - 65535)		
PING Settings						

2.

Connect the FTP to Model 2354 via Explorer.

In the Explorer [Address column], enter the "ftp://" and Model 2354 IP address, and then press the "Enter" key on the keyboard.



When user authentication is used, the following user identification screen opens, enter the User name and Password, and then click the [Logon] button.

Or, you can connect without displaying the user authentication by entering "Ftp://<User name>:<Password>@" and the Model 2354 IP address as shown in the following screen.



З.

The Model 2354 CF card file list opens when the connection is successful as shown in the following screen. The first folder displayed here is the CF card "/" folder (root folder).



4. The recording folder is collected.

Navigate to the "/REC/" folder, and after selecting the recording folder you want to collect from the folder list, use the mouse to drag and drop the folder to the target destination on the computer (in the example screen the desktop).



Note

- When accessing the CF card within the 2354, FTP transmission may be interrupted. In this case, wait for a while before transmitting again.
- FTP transmission cannot be carried out when the CF card is not properly attached to the 2354. Carry out the FTP transmission by attaching the CF card to the 2354 and closing the cover.
- There is only one connection for Model 2354 FTP server. Multiple computers cannot connect and access at the same time; if you cannot connect please wait for a while and then try again.

In this case, the following screen is displayed in Explorer.

i)	Windows cannot access this folder. Make sure you typed the file name correctly and that you have permission to access the folder
~	Details:
	The connection with the server was reset

- The Model 2354 FTP connection is "Read only". Files cannot be uploaded (copying files to Model 2354), or deleted.
- To use the FTP server function, you need to complete sending communication settings for Model 2354.
- The user name and password distinguish between capital and lower case letters. Also, you cannot use Japanese.
- The password is displayed as asterisks "*".
- COM port No.21 is an FTP protocol port number. Usually, this should not be changed.
- If no operations are made for one minute or more after connecting, the FTP may be disconnected from Model 2354. In this case, reconnect the FTP. Also, there are times when you may not be able to reconnect after being disconnected from the FTP. In that case, wait for about one minute before trying to reconnect.
- The Explorer file update date and time display may not synchronize with the Model 2354 update date and time.
- In Explorer, when data remains in temporary files when the Internet was accessed previously, instead of the newest data the previous data is displayed, and so there are times when you cannot collect the latest recorded file. In that case, connect to the FTP after restarting Explorer once.
- You may not be able to operate normally when using FTP client software other then Windows Explorer if the software uses commands that are not compatible with Model 2354.
- Disconnect the FTP when exchanging Model 2354 CF cards.
- When performing an FTP connection through public lines such as the Internet, there are times when FTP communication may not be allowed in intermediate routers, and you may not be able to connect. Contact your network administrator for more details.

6.5 Sending Recorded Data Automatically by the FTP Client

Model 2354 has a built-in FTP client function . Recorded data (CVS file) can be automatically sent once a day by specifying the destination and so on.

Procedure

1.

Perform communication settings for Model 2354, and send the settings.

Vise	
TFTP server (IP address or name)	
2COM Port No. 21 🚊 (1 – 65535) (Standard 21)	
3 User name 4 Password	
5Server store 6Transfer 00:00	
7 C Active mode C Passive mode	

	Setting item	Description
1	FTP server	Set the IP address or name of FTP server to use the FTP client.
2	COM port	 Set the port number of the FTP server to use the FTP client. 21 port usually used.
3	User name	 Set the user name for attestation to access the FTP server.
4	Password	 Set the password for attestation to access the FTP server.
5	Server store path	Set the destination path of the recorded data (CVS file).
6	Transfer time	Set the time to transfer the recorded data (CVS file) automatically.
7	Transfer mode	 Active mode: The data connection opened by the server from its port to a negotiated client port. Passive mode: The data connection opened by the client from an arbitrary port to a negotiated server port.

2.

The recorded data of the previous day is sent at the forwarding time.



File names are the following compositions, so Recording start time, Date, COM ID can be confirmed.

REC(Recording start time)_Y(Year)_(Month)_D(Day)_(COM ID).CSV

Example: [REC080818112304_Y2008_08_D20_01.CSV]

- Recording start time: 2008-8-8, 11:23:4
- Date: Aug. 20, 2008
- COM ID: 01

The above information can be read from the file name.



6.6 Time Correction by SNTP Client.

Model 2354 has a built-in SNTP client function . Time can be corrected once a day by specifying the server.

Procedure

1. Perform communication settings for Model 2354, and send the settings.

SNTP client settings					
✓ Use					
Time to correct time					
2 🗖 Change time difference with UTC					
C Lead(UTC+) C Lag	(UTC-) Time 09:00				
3 NTP server	(IP address or name)				
4 COM Port No. 123 🔆 (1 − 65535)	(Standard 123)				

	Setting item	Description
1	Time to correct time	Set the time to execute the time correction.
2	Change time difference with Coordinate Universal Time (UTC).	Set the time difference with UTC.
3	NTP server	 Set IP address or the name of the NTP server (time server) to use for the time correction.
4	COM port	 Set the port number of the NTP server to be used in communication with NTP server. 123port is normally used.



Time correction is executed at time to correct time.

6.7 Recording file size for CF card

The size of recorded files saved on Model 2354 CF cards differs depending on the Model 2354 CSV file saving settings (see 3.1.2(Page 16)), the number of CH used for each measurement module, and the recording mode settings. Select a CF card with the optimum capacity based on the operating methods for recording and the recording period.

The following reference material shows the basic recording file size necessary for one day.

When a setting file is saved on the CF card, the necessary file size appears. (see 6.2.2 (page 242))

Note

- If there is less than two days free space on the card, recording cannot be performed. If there is not enough free space, use after replacing with a new CF card or delete unnecessary files.
- Particularly for CSV files, because the size of data changes depending on the recorded measurements, the size may differ largely from the file during actual operation and the numerical values shown here. Also, files saved to the CF card are done in MS-DOS format.
 Even when saving a small file, the size of the file is never smaller than this block size because the area is secured in MS-DOS format for each block for a certain settled size. Therefore, when all necessary file sizes are added, the size that the CF card actually uses increases.
- A binary file is always saved irrespective of the CSV file save settings.



(Reference material) [CF card file size]

File size

Read the file size corresponding to the measurement module settings you are using from the following table, and all numerical values added give the necessary capacity of the CF card for recording for one day as a system.

However, when the recording interval for each measurement module differs due to the CSV file save settings, the numerical value that is simply added differs greatly from the actual numerical value. The numerical value shown when a setting file is saved on the CF card gives a more accurate file size, so use this as the standard.

✤ 6.2.2 (page 242)

Note

Due to the settings for Model 2343, the file size fluctuates greatly, and so the following entries are omitted.

Check the numerical value shown when a setting file is saved on the CF card. 6.2.2 (page 242)

(1) For Models 2301 to 2305 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB) Condition: Using 2 channels

Recording	Instantaneo	ous value only	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	707KB	3,070KB	_	-
2 second	370KB	1,551KB	1,382KB	4,842KB
5 second	167KB	640KB	572KB	1,956KB
10 second	100KB	336KB	302KB	994KB
15 second	77KB	235KB	212KB	674KB
20 second	66KB	184KB	167KB	513KB
30 second	55KB	134KB	122KB	353KB
1 min	43KB	83KB	77KB	193KB
2 min	38KB	58KB	55KB	113KB
5 min	34KB	43KB	41KB	64KB
10 min	33KB	37KB	37KB	48KB
15 min	33KB	36KB	35KB	43KB
20 min	33KB	35KB	34KB	40KB
30 min	32KB	34KB	34KB	38KB
1 hour	32KB	33KB	33KB	35KB

Recording	Instantaneous value only		Instantaneous val	ue + MAX/MIN/AVE
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	2,732KB	9,651KB	-	-
2 second	1,382KB	4,842KB	5,432KB	18MB
5 second	572KB	1,956KB	2,192KB	7,221KB
10 second	302KB	994KB	1,112KB	3,627KB
15 second	212KB	674KB	752KB	2,429KB
20 second	167KB	513KB	572KB	1,830KB
30 second	122KB	353KB	392KB	1,231KB
1 min	77KB	193KB	212KB	631KB
2 min	55KB	113KB	122KB	332KB
5 min	41KB	64KB	68KB	152KB
10 min	37KB	48KB	50KB	92KB
15 min	35KB	43KB	44KB	72KB
20 min	34KB	40KB	41KB	62KB
30 min	34KB	38KB	38KB	52KB
1 hour	33KB	35KB	35KB	42KB

(2) For Model 2306 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB) Condition: Using 8 channels

(3) For Model 2341 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB) Condition: Using 2 channels

Recording	Instantaneous value only		
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	
1 second	370KB	7,289KB	
2 second	201KB	3,661KB	
5 second	100KB	1,484KB	
10 second	66KB	758KB	
15 second	55KB	516KB	
20 second	49KB	395KB	
30 second	43KB	274KB	
1 min	38KB	153KB	
2 min	35KB	93KB	
5 min	33KB	57KB	
10 min	33KB	45KB	
15 min	32KB	40KB	
20 min	32KB	38KB	
30 min	32KB	36KB	
1 hour	32KB	34KB	

(4) For Model 2331 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB)

• Measurement line: Single-phase 2 lines (1 circuit)

Recording	Instantaneous value only		Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	2,057KB	7,457KB	I	_
2 second	1,045KB	3,745KB	3,576KB	12MB
5 second	437KB	1,517KB	1,450KB	4,808KB
10 second	235KB	775KB	741KB	2,420KB
15 second	167KB	527KB	505KB	1,624KB
20 second	133KB	404KB	386KB	1,226KB
30 second	100KB	280KB	268KB	828KB
1 min	66KB	156KB	150KB	430KB
2 min	49KB	94KB	91KB	231KB
5 min	39KB	57KB	56KB	112KB
10 min	35KB	45KB	44KB	72KB
15 min	34KB	41KB	40KB	59KB
20 min	34KB	39KB	38KB	52KB
30 min	33KB	37KB	36KB	46KB
1 hour	33KB	34KB	34KB	39KB

• Measurement line: Single-phase 3 lines, or three phases circuit line (1 circuit)

Recording	Instantaneous value only		Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	2,732KB	9,651KB	-	_
2 second	1,382KB	4,842KB	4,926KB	16MB
5 second	572KB	1,956KB	1,990KB	6,563KB
10 second	302KB	994KB	1,011KB	3,298KB
15 second	212KB	674KB	685KB	2,209KB
20 second	167KB	513KB	521KB	1,665KB
30 second	122KB	353KB	358KB	1,121KB
1 min	77KB	193KB	195KB	577KB
2 min	55KB	113KB	114KB	305KB
5 min	41KB	64KB	65KB	141KB
10 min	37KB	48KB	48KB	87KB
15 min	35KB	43KB	43KB	69KB
20 min	34KB	40KB	40KB	60KB
30 min	34KB	38KB	38KB	51KB
1 hour	33KB	35KB	35KB	41KB

Recording	ding Instantaneous value only		Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	3,407KB	12MB	-	-
2 second	1,720KB	5,939KB	6,276KB	20MB
5 second	707KB	2,395KB	2,530KB	8,318KB
10 second	370KB	1,214KB	1,281KB	4,175KB
15 second	257KB	820KB	865KB	2,794KB
20 second	201KB	623KB	656KB	2,104KB
30 second	145KB	426KB	448KB	1,413KB
1 min	88KB	229KB	240KB	723KB
2 min	60KB	131KB	136KB	378KB
5 min	43KB	72KB	74KB	171KB
10 min	38KB	52KB	53KB	101KB
15 min	36KB	46KB	46KB	78KB
20 min	35KB	42KB	43KB	67KB
30 min	34KB	39KB	39KB	55KB
1 hour	33KB	36KB	36KB	44KB

• Measurement line: Three phases 4 lines (1 circuit)

- (5) For Model 2332 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB) Conditions: Recording items voltage, current, effective power, reactive power, power factor, frequency, active energy
- Measurement line: Single-phase 2 lines (6 circuit)

Recording	Instantaneou	us value only	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	11MB	35MB	37MB	119MB
2 second	5,601KB	18MB	18MB	60MB
5 second	2,260KB	7,289KB	7,525KB	24MB
10 second	1,146KB	3,661KB	3,778KB	12MB
15 second	775KB	2,451KB	2,530KB	8,155KB
20 second	589KB	1,846KB	1,905KB	6,124KB
30 second	403KB	1,242KB	1,281KB	4,094KB
1 min	218KB	637KB	656KB	2,063KB
2 min	125KB	335KB	344KB	1,048KB
5 min	69KB	153KB	157KB	439KB
10 min	51KB	93KB	95KB	235KB
15 min	44KB	73KB	74KB	168KB
20 min	41KB	63KB	63KB	134KB
30 min	38KB	53KB	53KB	100KB
1 hour	35KB	42KB	43KB	66KB

264 6.7 Recording file size for CF card

Recording	Instantaneou	us value only	Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV
1 second	7,457KB	24MB	25MB	82MB
2 second	3,745KB	12MB	13MB	41MB
5 second	1,517KB	4,876KB	5,162KB	16MB
10 second	775KB	2,454KB	2,597KB	8,377KB
15 second	527KB	1,647KB	1,742KB	5,596KB
20 second	403KB	1,243KB	1,315KB	4,205KB
30 second	280KB	840KB	887KB	2,814KB
1 min	156KB	436KB	460KB	1,423KB
2 min	94KB	234KB	246KB	728KB
5 min	57KB	113KB	118KB	311KB
10 min	44KB	73KB	75KB	171KB
15 min	40KB	59KB	61KB	125KB
20 min	38KB	53KB	53KB	102KB
30 min	36KB	46KB	46KB	79KB
1 hour	34KB	39KB	39KB	56KB

• Measurement line: Single-phase 3 lines, or three phases circuit line (3 circuit)

(5) For Model 2321 (File size and units for one day: KB = 1,024 bytes, MB = 1,024 KB)

Conditions: Using 2 analog channels, and using 8 logic channels

• Recording items Inst/Mean/Peak/Bottom/RMS/p-p/Ap/CF

Recording	Instantaneou	Instantaneous value only		Instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE	
interval	Binary only	Binary + CSV	Binary only	Binary + CSV	
1 second	6,107KB	25MB	_	_	
2 second	3,070KB	12MB	11MB	38MB	
5 second	1,247KB	5,061KB	4,487KB	15MB	
10 second	640KB	2,547KB	2,260KB	7,812KB	
15 second	437KB	1,709KB	1,517KB	5,219KB	
20 second	336KB	1,290KB	1,146KB	3,922KB	
30 second	235KB	871KB	775KB	2,626KB	
1 min	133KB	451KB	403KB	1,329KB	
2 min	83KB	242KB	218KB	681KB	
5 min	52KB	116KB	106KB	292KB	
10 min	42KB	74KB	69KB	162KB	
15 min	39KB	60KB	57KB	119KB	
20 min	37KB	53KB	51KB	97KB	
30 min	35KB	46KB	44KB	76KB	
1 hour	34KB	39KB	38KB	54KB	

2f



Period that can be recorded on a 1GB CF card (example)

The following examples describes the period that can be recorded when saving to a 1GB CF card for various system configurations.

Recording	Without saving CSV		Saving CSV	
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	2,732	383	12,383	84
2 second	1,382	758	6,224	168
5 second	572	1,832	2,528	414
10 second	302	3,471	1,296	808
30 second	122	8,588	475	2,206
60 second	77	13,601	270	3,886

(Example 1) Model 2306 (record only instantaneous values)1 (8 channel)

(Example 2) Model 2306 (record only instantaneous values)5 (40 channel)

Recording	Without sa	Without saving CSV		g CSV
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	13,660	76	61,916	16
2 second	6,910	151	31,119	33
5 second	2,860	366	12,641	82
10 second	1,510	694	6,482	161
30 second	610	1,717	2,376	441
60 second	385	2,720	1,349	777

Recording	Without saving CSV		Saving CSV	
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	212	4,943	844	1,243
2 second	122	8,588	454	2,309
5 second	68	15,399	220	4,759
10 second	50	20,932	142	7,362
30 second	38	27,526	90	11,589
60 second	35	29,879	77	13,531

266

Recording	Without sa	aving CSV	Saving CSV	
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	1,060	988	4,218	248
2 second	610	1,717	2,270	461
5 second	340	3,079	1,102	951
10 second	250	4,186	712	1,472
30 second	190	5,505	452	2,317
60 second	175	5,975	387	2,706

(Example 3) Model 2306 (record instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE)5 (40 channel)

(Example 5) Model 2332 (record three phase circuit 3 lines, 3 circuits, instantaneous value + MAX/MIN/AVE)......1 (3 circuits)

Recording	Without saving CSV		Saving CSV	
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	460	2,281	1,883	556
2 second	246	4,265	974	1,076
5 second	118	8,916	428	2,448
10 second	75	14,010	246	4,256
30 second	46	22,626	125	8,380
60 second	39	26,736	95	11,059

Recording	Without saving CSV		Saving CSV	
interval	Size (KB)	Period (days)	Size (KB)	Period (days)
1 second	2,298	456	9,414	111
2 second	1,229	853	4,868	215
5 second	588	1,783	2,141	489
10 second	374	2,802	1,232	851
30 second	232	4,525	626	1,676
60 second	196	5,347	474	2,211

Specifications

Basic specifications

Product medium	CD-R(1)
Supplied accessories	Instruction manual (1)
Software Configuration	Smart Site Utility, Smart Site Viewer, Smart Site Wave Viewer

Computer System Requirements

Hardware	CPU 1 GHz or higher
Operating system	Windows 2000/XP/Vista/7
Memory	512 MB or more
Display	Resolution 1024 x 768 dots, 65536 colors or more
Hard disk	At least 30 MB of free space (for software installation) When .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed, approximately 500 MB alternates are necessary Alternates are necessary for saving recording data (500 MB or more recom- mended)
Interfaces	COM port, LAN
Application	Microsoft Excel 2000/2002/2003/2007/2010 (necessary when using the report editing function)

Function specifications

LAN communication specifications	 Normal operation Uses a proprietary TCP protocol. Connects to port 50000 or 50002 of the communications module. Sending settings from the MAP editor Broadcasts data using a proprietary UDP protocol. The computer opens port 49999, and the communications module sends to port 50001.
RS-232C communication specifications (COM port)	 Uses a proprietary protocol. Communication settings Communication speed: 57,600 bps Parity: None Data bits: 8 Stop bits: 1
Module list creation and switching function	Save communication and measurement module configuration as module list (multiple lists allowed)
Communication module setup functions	 Communication module setup (wireless, wired, LAN) Auto recognition of connected measurement modules Measurement and display of wireless signal condition



Function specifications

Measurement module set-	1. Settings particular to measurement modules
up functions	2. Measurement item settings (setting comments, number of digits to display,
(Smart Site Utility)	and scaling)
	3. Recording settings (recording mode and interval)
	4. Alarm settings (alarm in module and alarm in computer)
Monitor functions	Measurement date is acquired from the measurement module and displayed
	1. Monitoring window (multiple measurement items are displayed in each module)
	2. Measurement label (single measurement item is displayed)
	3. Real-time trend graph (max. 16 measurement items)
	 Layout creation function You can place layout parts and a background image and create a layout
Alarm functions	You can perform alarm evaluations for measurements by the monitoring func- tion
	1. Display alarm logs Display occurrence/release information, pop up display when alarm occurs
	2. Alarm sound occurs When an alarm occurs, a warning sound (sound file) is emitted from computer
	3. Alarm signal output for 2342 Output Module
	When an alarm occurs, an alarm signal is output to optional Model 2342
	 Waveform display Waveforms can be displayed from the trigger alarm logs (Model 2321 waveform data)
Recorded function	Collect recorded data and alarm information from the measurement module, and save it to a file. Recording modes : Instantaneous value/MAX,MIN,AVE/Instantaneous value,
	MAX,MIN,AVE Recording interval settings: 1/2/5/10/15/20/30 s, 1/2/5/10/15/20/30/60 m File format: Each measurement module is saved as a CSV file every day
	1. Start/Stop recording for measurement module
	2. Manual acquistion and automatic acquistion function
	3. Collects automatically from around the module list
Recorded data viewing function	 Recorded data is displayed as a "Table", a "Graph", and an "Alarm". 1. Graph functions Auto setting, zoom selected range, time axis, Y axis setting, CH setting, grid, cursor interval processing,Graph function, Alarm position display,
	printing, and copying to clipboard
	2. Table function Output to CSV file, Paste to Microsoft Excel
	 Alarm function Waveform data display, links to the alarm position of the graph
	 View function You can save and restore the display method as a view
	5. Comparison function
Report creation function	Create a report file in Microsoft Excel format from the format file and the record- ed data created beforehand
	1. Manual report creation function
	2. Automatic report creation function
	3. Format file creation function



Function specifications

Measured value	Measured values from different measurement modules can be calculated on a
calculation function	computer and displayed as monitor values or saved as recorded data.
(PC calculation module)	1. Calculations can be configured to use either the four basic arithmetic
	operations or dew point calculation.

Basic specifications

Option 1.	9768-01 Server/Client Option
2.	9768-02 LAN Modle Mail Option
3.	9768-03 Modbus Server Option

9768-01 Server/ Client Option



Server/ Client functions to set the server to Smart Site Utility, and the client to Smart Site Client are available as an option. With this option, users can monitor the monitor value of the 2300 module connected to the server from another computer.

Up to 10 computers can be monitored simultaneously.

The following software are available in the CD-R of the 9768-01 Server/Client option.



Server option software

A software to add a server function to the Smart Site Utility.



This software can only be installed in a computer installed with the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro. Install the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro first.



Client software "Smart Site Client"

A software to communicate with the server to carry out measurement value monitoring. It also allows record files to be read. The following two softwares will be installed when Smart Site Client is installed.

Smart Site Client : A monitor software to display monitor values acquired by the Smart Site Utility (Server). Up to 10 computers can be monitored simultaneously.

The Smart Site Client is a software imposing restrictions on the functions of the Smart Site Utility. The operating methods for executable functions are exactly the same as the Smart Site Utility. Except for module settings for the 2300, individual settings for each of the function are possible for every client.

Smart Site Viewer : A software to read record data acquired by the Smart Site Utility.

The Smart Site Viewer equips the same functions as the software for the 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO. For details on how to use it, refer to 3.7.1 "Reading the recorded data" (page 111).

8.1 Install the Server Option software

NOTE

The 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro needs to be installed in the computer to be installed. Please install the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro first. \$\log\$ 1.2 "Installation" (page 4)

Procedure

1. Insert the 9768-01 Server/ Client Option CD-R into the computer, and open up setup. exe in the CD-R's Server folder.

Run installation as an administrator.

2. The following screen will appear when the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro is not installed in the computer. Press [OK] to end the installation.

😽 9768-01 Server Opt	tion	2
In order to use a server funct be installed.	tion, 4.2 or more-version 9768 Smar	t Site Utility Pro needs to

Once the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro has been installed, open up setup.exe again.

З.

Follow the installation steps on the screen until the following screen to show that installation is complete appears.



8.2 Install the Client Software Smart Site Client

Procedure

2.

1. Insert the 9768-01 Server/Client Option CD-R into the computer, and open up setup.exe in the CD-R's Client folder.

Run installation as an administrator.

If .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed on the computer, the following screen appears.

♦ If .NET Framework 2.0 is already installed, proceed to 5. (page 275).

🐞 9768-01 Smart Site Client Setup	×
For the following components:	
.NET Framework 2.0	-
Please read the following license agreement. Press the page down key to see the rest of the agreement.	5
MICROSOFT SOFTWARE SUPPLEMENTAL LICENSE TERMS MICROSOFT .NET FRAMEWORK 2.0 MICROSOFT WINDOWS INSTALLER 2.0 MICROSOFT WINDOWS INSTALLER 3.1 Microsoft Corporation (or based on where you live, one of its affiliates) licenses this supplement to you. If you are licensed to use Microsoft Windows operating system software (the "software"), you may use this supplement. You may not use it if you do not have a license for the software. You may use a copy of this supplement with each validly licensed copy of the software.	
View EULA for printing	
Do you accept the terms of the pending License Agreement?	•
If you choose Don't Accept, install will close. To install you must accept this agreement.	
Accept Don't Accept	

3. Press [Accept] to install the .NET Framework 2.0.

4. When the installation of .NET Framework 2.0 is complete, the Smart Site Client installation screen will appear.
 Proceed to 5. (page 275).

When the Smart Site Client installation screen is not displayed but the following screen is displayed, press [Yes] to restart the computer.

9768 -	01 Smart Site Client Setup	X
Ö	Setup must reboot before proceeding.	
Choose Y	'es' to reboot now or 'No' to manually reboot later. Is>>YesNo	

After restarting, installation continues again.

When the following message appears and installation does not resume, open up setup.exe again.

When setup.exe is opened up again, the Smart Site Client installation screen will appear.



5.

Install the Smart Site Client.

Press [Next] and follow the steps on the screen to carry out the installation.



6. When the following screen appears, installation is complete.



8.3 Construct the Monitoring System

A monitoring system which uses the server/ client function can be constructed.



Set the computer on the server side (Smart Site Utility)

- (1) Carry out all system construction to allow communication and measurement with the 2300 module using the Smart Site Utility on the server side computer.
- (2) In order to carry out measurement value monitoring using the client, start the measurement value monitoring with the Smart Site Utility on the server side.
- (3) To carry out setting on the client side, the IP address of the computer on the server side or the computer name (name on the network) is required. Please check the IP address or the computer name.



Set the computer on the client side (Smart Site Client)

In order to carry out the measurement value monitoring using the Smart Site Client, it is necessary to communicate with the server's Smart Site Utility and acquire the module list.

Procedure

- Start up the Smart Site Client.
 Click [All programs] [HIOKI] [Smart Site Client] [Smart Site Client] on the Start menu.
- 2. The [Get module list] screen automatically appears after the Smart Site Client is installed and started up for the first time.

Acquire Module List
Communication with a server is performed and a setup of a module list is acquired. Please click [start] after specifying a server name.
Server Settings Server Name(Enter IP address or PCName) 172.20.10.74
Detailed Settings Change settings(usually unnecessary)
Port No. 50000 🚔 Receiving Timeout 10 🚔 Sec
The updating method of a layout setup
When there is the same layout name in a server, settings of this computer is overwritten by settings of a server.
Communication status
Start End

Setting items		Contents
Server name		• Input the IP address of the computer where the 9768-01 Server/Client Option has been installed or the computer name.
Detailed settings	Port No.	 Set the port number to be used in communication with the server. 5000 port is normally used.
	Receiving Timeout	 Set the receiving timeout time for communication with the server. Adjust the time when communication (receiving) takes a longer time due to restrictions on the path of communication with the server.
Overwrite layout settings		 Layout information is also retrieved when the module list setting is retrieved from the server. When [Overwrite layout settings] is enabled (when is checked), the layout of the client side will be overwritten by the layout of the server side if two files of the same name appear on both the server/client computers. *In particular, in cases when the module structure on the server side is changed, etc., measurement value monitoring may not be available with the layout setting on the client side. In this case, enable the function [Overwrite layout settings].

- **3.** Under [Server name], set the IP address of the server computer or the computer name (name on the network).
- **4.** When it is necessary to change the setting of the server's communication port, enable [Detailed Settings] (when \Box is checked)and set the port number and receiving timeout time.
- 5. Press [Start] to communicate with the server and start acquiring the module list (the server settings will be saved automatically). During communication, the following communication status will be displayed.

Communication status A module list name is under acquisition]
End	
Communication status 15/37 M000_010_001.xml is under acquisition]
End]

6.

When acquisition of the module list is completed, the unit will automatically change to a module list which is the same as the server's list and display the following message.

Click [OK] to return to the main screen.



The following messages will appear when communication with the server has failed. Check the following items and restart again.

- IP address of the server (computer name), port number
- Is the Smart Site Utility on the server computer opened?
- Is the server function addition software of the 9768-01 Server/Client Option installed ٠ on the server computer?

SmartSi	iteClient	×
1	Acquisition of a module list went wrong, Please check a server name and a port number. Or the number of SmartSiteClient linked to the server may be over use restri	ctions.



Execute measurement value monitoring.

The steps for executing the measurement value monitoring are the same as the Smart Site Utility.

Refer to 3.3 "Monitoring Measurement Values" (page 80).

8.4 Read record data in multiple computers

The record data acquired with the Smart Site Utility can be read in multiple computers.

Procedure

- 1. Set the upper folder where the record data is saved in the server computer to a shared folder on the network.
- 2. Copy the [Record file (files with extension .hrp)] and [Record folder] from the shared folder on the network to the hard disk of the computer on the client side.

З.

Open up the copied record files with the Smart Site Viewer to read the record data.

Record files in the shared folder can also be directly opened with the Smart Site Viewer. Reading the files in this way may take time, however, depending on the size of the record file and the network environment. Therefore, it is recommended that you copy the files to the computer on the client side before reading and processing them.

8.5 Refresh the settings of the module list

When the settings for the module list on the server side has been changed, follow the steps below to refresh the settings of the module list.

Procedure

 Click [Tools] – [Client] – [Download Module list] on the menu to open up the [Acquire Module list] screen.



Z. Click [Start] to acquire the current module list from the server.



8.6 Refresh the settings (IP address, port number) on the server computer

When the IP address (or computer name) of the computer on the server side has changed after operation has started, follow the steps below to renew the settings.

Procedure

 Click [Tools] – [Client] – [Server settings] to open up the [Server settings] screen.

Tool(T)	He	p(H)
Client	•	Server Settings
		Download Module List



Carry out the necessary server settings then click [Save].

Server Settings
Please specify the server name. Please perform detailed settings if needed.
Server Settings Server Name(Enter IP address or PCName)
172.20.10.74
Detailed Settings Change settings(usually unnecessary)
Port No. 50000
Receiving Timeout 10 📑 Sec
Save Cancel
8.7 Specifications

Basic specifications

Product medium	CD-R(1)
Supplied accessories	Instruction manual (1)
Software Configuration	A software to add a server function to the Smart Site Utility. Smart Site Client, Smart Site Viewer, Smart Site Wave Viewer

Computer System Requirements

Hardware	CPU 1 GHz or higher
Operating system	Windows 2000/XP/Vista/7 .NET Framework 2.0 Internet Explorer 5.01 or more
Memory	512MB or more
Display	Resolution 1024 x 768 dots, 65536 colors or more
Hard disk	At least 30 MB of free space (for software installation) When .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed, approximately 500 MB alternates are nec- essary Alternates are necessary for saving recording data (500 MB or more recommended)
Interfaces	COM port, LAN
Application	9768 Smart Site Utility Pro 4.2 or more (Necessary when using server option) Microsoft Excel 2000/2002/2003/2007/2010 (necessary when using the report making function)

Function specifications

1.Server option software

Add server functions to the 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro.

Server Functions	1. Allows the measurement value monitoring to be carried out from multiple computers with the client software, Smart Site Client.
	2. Allows up to 10 client software connections.
	3. Measurement value monitoring which can be provided to the client software is only applicable with the measurement module registered in the module list carrying out the measurement value monitoring with the server computer.
	4. Allows the information of the module list currently in use to be provided to the client software.

8.7 Specifications

2.Client software

• Smart Site Client specifications

Monitor functions	 Acquire and display the measurement value of the measurement module from the 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro with additional server functions 1. Monitor window (displays multiple measurement items in module units) 2. Measurement value labels (displays single measurement item) 3. Real time trend graph (up to 16 measurement items) 4. Layout creation function Creates multiple layouts of layout parts and layout with background pictures
Alarm function	 Carry out alarm evaluations for measurement values with the monitor function 1. Display alarm logs Displays information of activation and removal and pops up to display alarm activation 2. Alarm sound activation Activates the alert sound (sound file) from the computer when the alarm is activated 3. Standard value for alarm evaluations cannot be changed
Information of the mo tions.	odule list can be acquired from the 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro with additional server func-

• Smart Site Viewer specifications

Recorded data browsing function	 Displays recorded data in the form of tables, graphs, and alarms. 1. Graphing functions Display of alarm locations, automatic configuration, enlargement of selected range, time axis and Y-axis settings, channel settings, channel alarm settings, grid settings, cursor-defined calculations, printing, copying to clipboard 2. Display functions Output to CSV file, paste into Microsoft Excel 3. Alarm functions Display of waveform data, link to alarm locations on graph 4. View functions Save and restore display methods as views
Report creation functions	A Microsoft Excel report file can be created from a previously created format file and recorded data.1. Manual report creation function2. Automatic report creation function

9768-02 LAN Module **Mail Option**

28

You can be notified of evaluation results for alarms for connected measurement modules by two means using 2353 LAN Module or 2354 Memory Module.

- Send e-mail to an optional address
- Control network alarm lights "DN-1000 series" made by the ISA Co., Ltd. •

Note

This software is only applicable to communication module 2353 LAN Module or 2354 Memory Module. This cannot be used with 2353 + 2351 systems when the Model 2353 COM ID is set to "00".

9.1 **Install LAN Module Mail Option**

Note

You need to install 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro on the target computer. First, install 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro. 1.2 "Installation" (page 4)

Procedure

1 Insert the 9768-02 LAN Module E-mail Option CD-R in the computer, and run setup.exe on the CD-R.

Run installation as an administrator.

2.

If 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro is not installed on the computer, the following dialog box opens. Click [OK] to finish the installation.



After installing 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro, run setup.exe again.

З.

284

Follow the steps on the screen to install, and when the screen below is displayed, installation is complete.



9.2 Set conditions for alarm evaluation for the measurement module

Set the conditions for alarm evaluation for measurement modules before setting the alarm e-mail. \$ 5.3 "Function to evaluate alarms by module" (page 217)

285

Note

This is unnecessary for 2341 Input Module and 2342 Output Module.

9.3 Set alarm notification

Procedure

1. Right-click [2353 LAN MODULE] or [2354 MEMORY MODULE] from the module list, and then click [Mail Settings]. The Settings screen opens.

Module List Layout List	
□ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □	MODULE
ID: 01 (2306 MULTI-FUN ID: 02 (2332 POWER M	2354 MEMORY MODULE Settings Save setting file to CF
	Acquire all the data in the memory
	Disable Communication
	Displaying the Communication Status
	Mail Settings



Perform basic e-mail settings when using the E-mail Sending function. Click the [Mail Basic Setting] tab.

Note

Not necessary when only using the network alarm lights.

9.3 Set alarm notification

286

asic mail setting Alarm notification lis		
	t	
1-Send setting (SMTP setting) —		
SMTP server name	mailserverlocaldomain	Send Close
SMTP server port number	25 * 25 or 587 (SMTP Authentication) is general.	
Mail address of transmission	test@local.domain	
Mail title	Mail From HIOKI 2353	
-Authentication setting		
 Nothing 	C SMTP Authentication C POP Before SMTP	Mail sending test
User name		
Password		Kail address list
POP server name		user1@local.domain
POP server port number		user1@local.domain
2 Default gateway/DNS setting —		
Default gateway	192 . 168 . 1 . 1	
DNS Server address	192 168 1 250 SMTP/POP servers	
	Mandatory for names	
3 Mail address for changes in mod		
Drag _Drop from the address lis	st on the right	
▲Constant data mail		
Set the transmitting cycle of c	onstant data mail. Transmitting 1day 💌	
The measurement item is set w notification list] tab.	vith LAlarm Offset 00:00 ÷	Add Delete

Set the send mail server etc. Configures these settings to accommodate the network to which the 2353 (or 2354) is connected. If you do not know the details, contact your network administrator.

Setting Content		ntent	Description	
		SMTP server name	Input the host name (+ domain name) or IP address of SMTP server.	
		SMTP server port number	Set the SMTP server port number.	
		Mail address of transmission	Input the Mail address of transmission.	
		Mail title	Input the Mail title.	
1	Send setting (SMTP setting) Authentication setting User name	 Nothing: Select it, if there is no authentication. SMTP Authentication: Input the user-name and the password for the attestation. POP Before SMTP: Input the [User name], [Password], [POP mail server name] and [POP server port number] 		
		User name	Input the mail account of POP server.	
		Password	Input the password of POP server.	
		POP server name	Input the host name (+ domain name) or IP address of POP server.	
		POP server port number	Set the port number of POP server.	
2			Input the default gateway address.	
			Input the DNS server address.	
3	Mail address for change *An mail will be sent if a r is removed or added, or i module is unable to recor a hardware failure.	measurement module f the communication	 When number of modules changes, send mail to the registered address. Up to 4 addresses can be registered. When registering, drag and drop the address from [Mail address list]. When you want to delete an address, select the address and then click [Delete]. 	

9.3 Set alarm notification

Setting Content		ntent	Description
		Transmitting	Set the transmission interval. Sends data mails at the set interval. (Select from 1/5/10/15/20/30 minutes, 1/2/4/6/12 hours, or 1 day.)
4	Constant data mail *The monitor value at set interval is regularly transmitted with mail.	Offset	 Sets the time at which to send data mails. This setting is only valid when the interval is set to 1/2/4/6/12 hours or 1 day. Examples When the transmission interval is set to 1 day, setting this parameter to [10:00] will cause data mails to be sent at 10:00 every day. When the transmission interval is set to 2 hours, setting this parameter to [00:30] will cause data mails to be sent at 2:30, 4:30, 6:30, etc.
5	Mail address list		 Displays a list of destination addresses. Up to 20 addresses can be registered. Click [Add], input address and then click [OK]. SmartSiteUtility Input mail address OK Cancel When you want to delete an address, select the address and then click [Delete].

9.3 Set alarm notification

3.

Mail notification setting of each measurement items. push the [Alarm notification list] tab.

Setting for alarm notification (mail send	ing/network alarm light)	
Basic mail setting Alarm notification list		
Measurement item list Drag_Drop to the item list on the right Display the alarm enabled item	Measurement item for notification ID: Measurement item	Send Close
CHI Gnst)		Mail sending test
	Detailed setting Detailed setting Votify alarm V Alarm event Constant data mail V Alarm recovery Mail comment Recipient mail address	Mail address list luser1@local.domain user1@local.domain
	Drag_Drop from the address list on the right Control network alarm light IP address	
	Command for recovery RLY1 TurnOff Change	Add Delete

	Catting Contant		
Setting Content		ntent	Description
1	Measurement item list		 Display the alarm enabled item: Displays the item for which alarm evaluation conditions have been seas described in 5.3 (page 217). Measurement item that are unused or for which the alarm setting i OFF are not shown. Display all item : All measurement items are displayed. Unused measurement items are not shown
2	Measurement item for notification		 Drag and drop items you wish to control, for example email transmission or the network warning ligh from the [Measurement Items List]. Up to 80 items can be registered.
	Notify alarm *Set the condition of sending mail and control- ling the network warning light.		• [Alarm event] : The alarm generation is notified.
3			 [Alarm recovery] : The alarm recovery is notified. [Constant data mail] : Constant data mail is transmitted
4	Mail comment		Up to 20 characters can be inputs.
5	Recipient mail address		 Drag and Drop the address from [Mail address list] Up to 20 addresses can be registered.
		Check it when you con	trol the light.
		IP address	Set the IP address of network warning light.
6	6 Control network alarm light Command		 It is necessary to select [Alarm event] and [Alarr recovery] in [Notify alarm]. An initial value of the command is as follows. [RLY1 TurnOn] : Red LED is turned on when the alarm generated. [RLY1 TurnOff] : Red LED is turned off when the alarm recovery. When you want to change a command, click th [Change] button and then input the command.



- It may take some time to complete sending. Please wait until "Settings have been sent" is displayed.
- If you click the [Close] button, the Settings screen closes without saving the settings.

5.

Click "Mail seinding test" to check if the alarm e-mail was sent correctly. Perform this test after sending the settings by following the procedure in step 4.

- When executing the test, a test e-mail can be sent to an optional e-mail address.
- When settings are correct, the message "LAN module connected to mail server successfully." appears, and the following e-mail is sent. Subject: Model 2300 test e-mail

Message: Model 2300 test e-mail by Model 2353

For the memory module, the message "Memory module connected to mail server successfully." appears, and the following e-mail is sent.

Subject: Model 2300 test e-mail Message: Model 2300 test e-mail by Model 2354

9.4 Checking E-mail for Alarm Evaluation Results

Check the content of the alarm evaluation result e-mail, and check the monitoring system status.



Checking Alarm Event and Release E-mail

The respective e-mails sent when an alarm is generated and then released when the E-mail subject is "Alarm e-mail", the e-mail comment is "Temperature 1", COMID:53, and the upper limit for MODULE ID: 2 for CH1 of 2302 is set to "33°C" and monitored.

(Example)

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Data and time: 2005/09/26 11:37:30 Message: Temperature 1 ID model: 53.02 2302 Alarm Summary: Alarm occurred Alarm Details: Upper limit Parameter: CH1 Threshold: +33.0000 °C Current position +33.5000°C

Alarm occurred e-mail

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Data and time: 2005/09/26 11:40:25 Message: Temperature 1 ID model: 53.02 2302 Alarm Summary: Alarm released Alarm Details: Upper limit Parameter: CH1 Threshold: +33.0000 °C Current position +33.5000°C

Alarm released e-mail



Checking E-mail when the Number of Modules Changes

The e-mail when a change occurs such as when there is a power failure to the module, or when the module base is disconnected.

(Example)

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Data and time: 2005/09/26 11:55:13 Message: Temperature 1 ID model: 53.02 2302 Status: Added

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Module added e-mail

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Data and time: 2005/09/26 11:53:30 Message: Temperature 1 ID model: 53.02 2302 Status: Deleted

Subject: Alarm e-mail Message: 2353 LAN Module

Module deleted e-mail

9.5 Setting the Network Alarm Light for the DN-1000 Series

Network alarm light settings are enabled when only the "IP address" and "Subnet mask" are set from their default factory settings. For details, see the manual for the network alarm lights.

Note

- Although you can use the other functions, do not change the following two points. (1) Command access setting for the command password
- Use when the setting is invalid. (2) Command access setting for the user name is "root"

For 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module), logon with the user name "root".

9.6 Other Important Points

Be sure to note the following points when receiving alarm evaluation result notifications by e-mail or network alarm light.

(1) Regarding the interval between monitoring and sending time

- Alarm event/release is monitored every second, and you are notified when there is a change in the alarm status.
- E-mails for abnormalities in ranges are monitored and sent at the recording intervals for each module. E-mails when the number of modules changes are monitored and sent every second regardless of the recording interval for each module.

(2) Regarding starting and stopping alarm notifications

- When [Start recording] is executed, alarm notification is enabled.
- Alarm evaluations for the module are stopped when "Stop recording" is executed, and neither mail sending nor alarm lights are controlled. When [Start recording] is executed again, alarm evaluation is restarted.
- E-mails will be sent, when the number of modules changes, even while it is not recording.

(3) Regarding restarting the measurement module when alarm notification is set

When alarm notification settings are sent, the 2353 LAN Module (or the 2354 Memory Module) and the measurement module are restarted. When sending settings while "recording", data is not recorded for the few seconds during sending.

(4) Regarding times when e-mail is not sent normally

Check the following content when e-mail is not sent normally.

- When a router, or a gateway, etc. are present between "2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) and the mail server", they cannot communicate unless 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) are set as the "Default gateway".
- Check that the network address etc. for Mail Settings are set correctly. The network address etc. differ depending on the network used. For details regarding the settings, contact your network administrator.
- Depending on the type of SMTP server, there are those which require authentication before sending.
 - In that case, you need to set "POP Before SMTP". (Does not support APOP)
- For in-house networks, there may be various security restrictions in place.

Examples	Points to Check
Cannot connect to the server even though the mail server name is cor- rect	 Are there restrictions in place for accessing the mail server? Restrictions may be applied to DNS name resolution. Set the SMTP/POP server directly by IP address.
Cannot send to external addresses, but can send to in-house addresses	 Restrictions may be applied to mail sending. Contact your network administrator.

9.7 Specifications

Basic specifications

Product medium	CD-R(1)
Supplied accessories	Instruction manual (1)
Software Configuration	LAN module mail (or 2354 Memory Module) additional function software

Computer System Requirements

Hardware	CPU 1 GHz or higher
Operating system	Windows 2000/XP/Vista/7
Memory	512 MB or more
Display	Resolution 1024 x 768 dots, 65536 colors or more
Hard disk	At least 30 MB of free space (for software installation) When .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed, approximately 500 MB alternates are nec- essary Alternates are necessary for saving recording data (500 MB or more recommended)
Interfaces	COM port, LAN
Application	Microsoft Excel (necessary when using the report editing function)

Function specifications

When 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) setting functions for an e-mail sending function are added to 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro, the following functions are enabled in the LAN module (or memory module). * For the 2353 LAN module, the firmware version in the main unit must be 2.35 or later.

E-mail sending	1. E-mail destination address
function	Up to 20 e-mail addresses can be registered
	 Number of e-mail addresses that can be sent to one time: You can send to up to four e-mail addresses from among the registered addresses
	 Number of characters that can be set in an address: Up to 50 single-byte characters
	2. E-mail sending trigger
	When the following event occurs, mail sending can be performed in the measure- ment module connected to 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) with CAN BUS
	When the number of measurement modules changes (deleted and added)
	 In measurement items for measurement modules when an alarm status occurs and is released by alarm evaluation * For one 2353 LAN Module, up to 80 measurement items can be registered as monitoring targets for mail sending
	3. Comment
	Number of characters that can be set in a comment: Up to 20 characters
	4. Supported protocols
	SMTP, POP Before SMTP
	5. Send test mail
	Send a test mail for 9768 SmarteSite Utility Por operations
Network alarm light control	When an alarm occurs/is released, an optional command can be sent to the network alarm lights for the measurement item set as a monitoring target by using the mail sending function



9768-03 Modbus server Option

The monitor data of the Smart Site Utility can be acquired with Modbus communication via the Modbus server. Refer to technical manuals on Modbus protocol for details.





10.1 Install the Modbus server option

NOTE

The 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro needs to be installed in the computer to be installed. Please install the 9768 Smart Site Utiliy Pro first. 1.2 "Installation" (page 4)

Procedure

Insert the 9768-03 Modbus Server Option CD-R into the computer, and open up setup.exe in the CD-R's Server folder.

Run installation as an administrator.

2. The following screen will appear when the 9768 SMART SITE UTILITY PRO is not installed in the computer. Press [OK] to end the installation.

🔀 9768-03 Modbus Server Option	
In order to use a Modbus server option, 4.2 or more-v needs to be installed.	ersion 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro

Once the 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro has been installed, open up setup.exe again.

3.

Follow the installation steps on the screen until the following screen to show that installation is complete appears.



10.2 About Modbus address and data format

There are types of data – the Analog Input (AI) and the I/O Data (DI). The Modbus addresses are allocated to the linked space according to the COM ID/ MODULE ID in the module list from new to old.

Refer to the address map file later on which data is allocated to which address.

Types of data	Contents
Layout saving	 Acquire from Input Register (30001-39999) Data format is single-precision floating point (float) using a continuous register 2-word format. Order of the upper and lower data in the 2-word can be set when saving is started.
I/O Data (DI) (Bit data for 2341/ 2342 input/ output modules)	Acquire from Input Status (10001-19999)



10.3 Operate the Modbus server



Carry out the whole system construction with Smart Site Utility and check that the [Monitor] is functioning properly.

Procedure

1.

Carry out the various settings for Modbus. Select [Tools] – [Modbus] – [Modbus Settings] from the menu to open up [Modbus settings] and set the start address and FLOAT data sequence. Click [Save] to save the settings and close the screen.



Modbus setting	
Start Address Start address for DI (10001-19999)	10001
Start address for REG (30001-39999)	
Order for FLOAT data C Lower /Upper order (DeviceXplore) Upper / Lower order (BroadWin, e	
Sav	e Cancel

2.

Output the Modbus address map file.

Refer to this file to see which data is allocated to which address. Select [Tools] – [Modbus] – [Output Address Map] from the menu.

Tool(T)	Help(H)	
Swite	h to operation mode	Ø
Operation/Administrator Mode Switching Settings		Auto
Modb	us 🕨	Modbus Settings
		Output Address Map

To change the start address, enable the [Output after reallocating all addresses] then set the start address.

Modbus Address Map Output	
Modbus Address Map is outputted.	
A click of [Start] outputs an address map to file C:\Program_Files\SmartSiteUtility\modbus_address.csv	
*The existing file is overwritten.	
Output after reallocationg all addresses.	
Current Address Settings	
Start address for DI (10001 - 19999) 10001	
Start sddress for AI (30001 - 39999) 30001	
Start Cancel	

4. When [Start] is clicked, the address map will be created in the Smart Site Utlitiy install folder as the file name "modbus_address.csv".

e.	<u>File Edit View</u>	Insert For	rmat <u>T</u> ools <u>D</u> ata	Window	Help		Туре	a question fo	r help 👻 🕳	8
G	i 🖃 🖉 🕴 Aria	al	• 10 • B	ΙU		\$ %	• • • • • • • • •	傳練	🛛 • 🖄 • 🛓	Α -
	A9 👻	fx.		_		_				
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	t	
1	device name	group name	tag name	flag	comment	address	da a type	size	bit location	
2	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 01	1	U	30001	4	2		
3	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 02		1	30003	4	2		
4	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 03	1	P	30006	4	2	-	
5	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 04	0	PF	30007	4	2		
3	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 05		Frequency	30009	4	2	-	
7	SSU MODBUS	COMID1	T2331 01 01 06		WP+	30011	4	2	-	
8	SSU MODBUS	and the second s	T2302 01 02 01	i r	Temperature	30013	4	2		
9		1					-	-		-
0			1	-		-			-	
	+ H\modbus	address T				3				21

(Example) Address map file

5. Start the Smart Site Utility [Monitor].



З.

When the [Monitor] does not function, monitor values acquired with Modbus communication will not be refreshed.

10.4 Notes on Modbus communication

Take note of the following when using Modbus communication.

(1) Address map file output

Carry out the address map file output only after the system construction has completed.

Deleting or changing the settings after the address map file output may cause the address to deviate and not function properly.

(2) Deleting and adding modules

- When a module is deleted from the module list, the address used by the deleted module cannot be used.
- The same address cannot be used even when the deleted module is retrieved.
- Use a blank address when adding a new module.
 - * When the [Output after reallocating all addresses] is enabled and the address map is output on the [Modbus address map output] screen, an address that was made unavailable by module deletion will become available again.

10.5 Specifications

Basic specifications

Product medium	CD-R(1)
Supplied accessories	Instruction manual (1)
Software Configuration	Addition software for Modbus server function

Computer System Requirements

Hardware	CPU 1 GHz or higher
Operating system	Windows 2000/XP/Vista/7 .NET Framework 2.0 Internet Explorer 5.01 or more
Memory	512MB or more
Display	Resolution 1024 x 768 dots, 65536 colors or more
Hard disk	At least 30 MB of free space (for software installation) When .NET Framework 2.0 is not installed, approximately 500 MB alternates are nec- essary Alternates are necessary for saving recording data (500 MB or more recommended)
Interfaces	COM port, LAN
Application	9768 Smart Site Utility Pro 4.2 or more (Necessary when using server option) Microsoft Excel 2000/2000/2003 (necessary when using the report making function)

Function specifications

Modbus server functions are available with the 9768 Smart Site Utility Pro, and acquiring measurement values (monitor values) of the measurement modules using other applications through Modbus/ TCP communication is also possible.

Modbus Server	1. Modbus Address
Functions	Allocated to the linked space according to the COM ID/MODULE ID in the module
	list from new to old.
	• Start address of the Analog Input (AI) can be set within the range of 30000-39999.
	 Start address of the I/O Data (DI) is fixed at 10000-19999.
	 Condition of the address map can be outputted to the file
	 Sequence of FLOAT data of analog data (lower/upper order & upper/lower order) can be specified.



Appendix

Appendix 1 Smart Site Utility Settings Folder Configuration

- The various settings for the Smart Site Utility are saved in folders with the following configuration.
- To copy the settings, copy the [Settings] folder and [SSUtil.xml].



Appendix 2 Recording folder configuration for Smart Site Utility

Recorded data for Smart Site Utility is saved by using the following configurations.



mm : Module ID (fixed at 2 digits)

Appendix 3 Number of Wireless Relay Steps

1. Frequency Assignments

(1) Frequency Band

The 2351 Air Module has 48 individual frequencies between Model 2426 MHz and Model 2473 MHz with 1 MHz separation in each frequency. One band consists of 24 frequencies in the 48 frequencies for select/operate. See the table below for the exact frequency assignments.

(2) Frequency Allocation

24 Frequency are assigned each frequency band (01,and 02) with 1 MHz separation. If 1 MHz adjacent frequency separation is utilized in a same area, the possibility of adjacent channel interference exists because the difference of reception signal level between the desired signal and undesired leakage from the adjacent channel. Therefore, more than 2 MHz separation operation is recommended.

	Free	q. (MHz)
Freq. No.	01 Band	02 Band*
0	2426	2450
1	2427	2451
2	2428	2452
3	2429	2453
4	2430	2454
5	2431	2455
6	2432	2456
7	2433	2457
8	2434	2458
9	2435	2459
10	2436	2460
11	2437	2461
12	2438	2462
13	2439	2463
14	2440	2464
15	2441	2465
16	2442	2466
17	2443	2467
18	2444	2468
19	2445	2469
20	2446	2470
21	2447	2471
22	2448	2472
23	2449	2473

*Both France and Spain are band limited, please use 02 Band for operation.

Appendix 4 Wireless Transmission Stages

- The practical limit for wireless transmission stages is 6. Above this number, response will become too slow for efficient use. (The software allows for a maximum of 20 stages.)
- The maximum number of wireless modules is 89 in total.
- Up to 88 wireless modules can be connected to the first stage.
- Except for one unit connected to the computer via a wired connection, downstream relay with a 2-way split is possible.



Appendix 5 Cannot Communicate with LAN

If you cannot communicate with LAN, check the following items.

Is the cable connected correctly?

- You need to use a cross cable when performing a one-to-one connection from the computer to a 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module).
- Use a straight cable when connecting through a hub.
- With the straight to cross conversion of the accesories of the 9642 LAN cable, the short cable becomes the cross cable, and the male terminal of the straight cable is converted to the female. Also, even if it is intended to connect to the terminal, a loose connection may occur. Try disconnecting and then reconnecting the cable.



Is the computer IP address set correctly?

You can use the following procedure to search for the computer's network interface IP address, the subnet mask, and the gateway address.

For Windows 2000

Open the command prompt from the Start menu [Programs (P)] - [Accessories] - [Command Prompt]. Enter [ipconfig/all] and press the [Enter] key.

For Windows XP

Open the command prompt from the Start menu [All Programs (P)] - [Accessories] - [Command Prompt]. Enter [ipconfig/all] and press the [Enter] key.

If it is not set correctly

- 1. From the Start menu, select [Settings (S)] [Control Panel (C)].
- 2. Double-click the Network icon to call the Network Properties.
- 3. Set the IP address again.



Is the IP address for 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) set correctly?

Perform individual initial settings after constructing the LAN module (or memory module) system configuration in MAP editor.

For details on initial settings for the LAN module (or memory module), see 3.1.2 "Setting the LAN system" (page 13)



Is the [LINK LED] for 2353 LAN Module lit green (the [LINK LED] for 2354 Memory Module is yellow)?

When performing LAN communication for 2353 LAN Module, the LED [LINK/Rx] on the front of the unit is lit green. (The LED [LINK/Rx] for 2354 Memory Module is lit yellow.) If it is not lit, the LAN cable connection may be loose, so try disconnecting and then reconnecting the cable.



Can you communicate between the computer and the 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module)?

You can check communication between the computer and 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) by sending a ping command from the computer. However, when connecting via the Internet, you may not be able to confirm communication depending on the router settings.

For Windows 2000

Open the command prompt from the Start menu [Programs (P)] - [Accessories] - [Command Prompt]. Enter ping <IP address for which you want to check communication> and then press the [Enter] key.

For Windows XP

Open the command prompt from the Start menu [All Programs (P)] - [Accessories] - [Command Prompt]. Enter ping <IP address for which you want to check communication> and then press the [Enter] key.

(Example) When the LAN module (or 2354 Memory Module) IP address is 192.168.1.2. Enter ping 192.168.1.2 <Enter>.

If the following message appears on the screen, communication was successful. time means the time that communication took.

Pinging 192.168.1.2 with 32 bytes of data: Reply from 192.168.1.2: bytes=32 time<10ms TTL=32 Reply from 192.168.1.2: bytes=32 time<10ms TTL=32 Reply from 192.168.1.2: bytes=32 time<10ms TTL=32 Reply from 192.168.1.2: bytes=32 time<10ms TTL=32

If the following message appears, communication was not completed successfully. Check the cable connection and the IP address settings again.

Reply from 192.168.1.1: Host is down. Reply from 192.168.1.1: Destination host unreachable. Request timed out

Appendix 6 LAN Terminology

IP address

In the TCP/IP protocol used by 2353 LAN MODULE (or 2354 memory module), the IP address is used to identify individual equipment. A numerical value of 32 bits is used in IP version 4 (IPv4), which is currently in general use. Usually, this is expressed by decimal numbers such as 192.168.1.1 at each octet (eight bits), separated by a ".".

Subnet mask

The IP address has two roles, as the network section showing which network (subnet) the equipment belongs to, and as the host section that specifies the equipment in the subnet.

To show the range of this network and host section, an identifier called a subnet mask is introduced. Expressed in a numerical value of 32 bits, where 1 corresponds to the network section and 0 corresponds to the host section.

For example, if there are 24 bits in the first half of the network section, the remaining 8 bits are the host section.

11111111 1111111 11111111 0000000

This is written as a hexadecimal number (0xfffff00) or an IP address of the same decimal number (255.255.255.0).

Also, when the IP address and the net mask are expressed as a group, it is written as 192.168.1.1/24. The "24" after the "/" shows that the net mask is 24 bits, in short 255.255.255.0 is displayed.

Allocating IP Address

Managed by an organization known an RIR (Regional Internet Registry), so that each piece of equipment should have a unique (original) IP address.

Usually, the allocation of IP addresses is carried out by the NIC (Network Information Center) of each country which controls the allocation of IP addresses on a national scale.

10.0.0/8 10.0.0 to 10.255.255.255

The range is defined by RFC1597 as a private IP address.

Although private IP addresses can be used freely, a restriction is applied that it is not allowed direct connection from the internet.

When the computer and the equipment are connected 1 to 1 by using a cross cable, and a closed network environment that only uses a HUB is constructed, select the IP address from among these.

However, because bits for the host section are used and the address for all ones are used as a broadcast address displaying all hosts present on the subnet, IP addresses for all zeros cannot use bits for the host section for IP addresses for

equipment as network addresses where the subnet is displayed. For example, in the network 192.168.1.0/24, the address 192.168.1.255 indicates all equipment connected to the subnet 192.168.1.0.

Then, 254 IP addresses of 192.168.1.1 to 192.168.1.254, except for 192.168.1.0 and 192.168.1.255 can be used in this subnet.

Gateway

A gateway is equipment that connects different networks together.

When communicating with equipment with a different network address, you need to specify the IP address of the equipment connected with the different network address to establish the communication route for the gateway. Equipment inside the

address to establish the communication route for the gateway. Equipment inside the same subnet changes to the same settings.

This does not need to be set when communicating only with equipment in the network section (subnet section) e.g. when a 2353 LAN Module (or 2354 Memory Module) are connected 1 to 1 with the computer.

DNS (Domain Name System)

With the TCP/IP protocol, individual equipment is identified by an IP address, but these can be very difficult for people to remember. And so we allocate a host name as a character string which takes the place of the IP address.

It then becomes necessary to convert both the host name and IP address of the equipment on the network. DNS is used for this system.

When a DNS server is operational on a network, you can specify the communication partner by name by specifying the IP address for the DNS server.

Appendix 7 Checking Method for Communication Port

For Windows 2000



2. The [System Properties] dialog box opens. Select the [Hardware] tab, and then click [Device Manager].

System Properties ? 🗙
General Network Identification Hardware User Profiles Advanced
Hardware Wizard The Hardware wizard helps you install, uninstall, repair, unplug, eject, and configure your hardware.
Hardware Wizard
Device Manager
The Device Manager lists all the hardware devices installed on your computer. Use the Device Manager to change the properties of any device.
Driver <u>S</u> igning
Hardware Profiles
Hardware profiles provide a way for you to set up and store different hardware configurations.
Hardware Profiles
OK Cancel Apply

The communication port under [Ports (COM & LPT)] display the communication port for the computer. (COM1 in the example screen)



For Windows XP

З.



2. The [System Properties] dialog box opens. Select the [Hardware] tab, and then click [Device Manager].



The communication port under [Ports (COM & LPT)] display the communication port for the computer. (COM1 in the example screen)



3.

Appendix 8 Canceling Standby and Hibernation Functions

Note

If you cannot cancel the standby or hibernate functions even after completing the following procedures, change the settings by referring to the manual of the computer you are using.

For Windows 2000

1. Right-click the Desktop, and then select [Properties].

Active Deskto	P •
Arrange Icon: Line Up Icons Refresh	5 🕨
Paste Paste Shortci Undo Delete	ıt Ctrl+Z
New	•
Properties	



The [Display Properties] dialog box opens.

Select the [Screen Saver] tab, and from [Monitor power] click the [Power...] button.

Display Properties	<u>? ×</u>
Background Screen Saver Appearance Web Effects Settings	1
Screen Saver	
(None) Settings Preyjew	
Bassword protected	
Energy saving features of monitor	
To adjust the power settings for your monitor, click Power.	
Power	╸╵╹╵
OK Cancel <u>App</u>	ly

3. The [Power Options Properties] dialog box opens. Select the [Power Schemes] tab, and then from [Power schemes] select [Always On].

Check that the following three items are set to [Never], and then click [OK].

- •
- [Turn off hard disks] [System standby] [System hibernate]

Power Options Propertie	es	? ×
Power Schemes Advan	ced Hibernate UPS	
Select the po this computer the selected s	wer scheme with the most appropr . Note that changing the settings b :cheme.	iate settings for ielow will modify
Power schemes Always On		
Nings off	<u>S</u> ave As	<u>D</u> elete
Settings for Always Or	n power scheme	
Turn off <u>m</u> onitor:	Never	
Turn off hard djsks:	Never	
System s <u>t</u> andby:	Never	
	OK Cancel	



To return to the [Display Properties] dialog box, click [OK].

For Windows XP

1. Right-click the Desktop, and then select [Properties].



<u> </u>	
•	
_	

The [Display Properties] dialog box opens.

Select the [Screen Saver] tab, and from [Monitor power] click the [Power...] button.

play Propertie	S	
hemes Desktop	Screen Saver	Appearance Settings
		Windows
Screen saver Windows XP	-	Settings Preview
Wait: 5 🗢	minutes 🔲 On	resume, password protect
Monitor power	To adjust moni click Power.	itor power settings and save energy,

З.

The [Power Options Properties] dialog box opens. Select the [Power Schemes] tab, and then from [Power schemes] select [Always On].

Check that the following two items are set to [Never], and then click [OK].

- [Turn off hard disks] [System standby]

Schemes Advanced Hibernate UPS Select the power scheme with the most appropriate setting this computer. Note that changing the settings below will the selected scheme. wer schemes ways Dn Save As Dele tings for Always On power scheme n off monitor: Never n off hard disks: Never	I modify
this computer. Note that changing the settings below will the selected scheme. ways On Save As Dele tings for Always On power scheme n off monitor: Never	I modify
ways Dn Save As Dele tings for Always Dn. power scheme n off monitor: Never	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Save As Dele tings for Always On power scheme n off monitor: Never	ete 🚽
tings for Always On power scheme	ste
tings for Always On power scheme	ste
n off monitor: Never	
n off monitor: Never	
	-
n off hard disks: Never	~
	¥
tem standby: Never	×
OK Cancel	-

4. To return to the [Display Properties] dialog box, click [OK].

Appendix 9 CF card



Note

*1: In the SET folder, there are setting files which the Model 2354 refers to in recording.

Please pay close attention to file operations because, if the SET folder and other files are damaged, there are times when you may not be able to continue recording and important recorded data may be lost.

*²: 1 file for 1 module for recording files in binary format is saved daily, and 1 file in CSV format is saved daily.

File name Ddd_cc_mm.bin and Ddd_cc.csv dd; date (fixed at 2 digits), cc; COM ID (fixed at 2 digits), and mm; Module ID (fixed at 2 digits)





HIOKI E. E. CORPORATION

Headquarters

81 Koizumi, Ueda, Nagano 386-1192, Japan TEL +81-268-28-0562 FAX +81-268-28-0568 E-mail: os-com@hioki.co.jp URL http://www.hioki.com/ (International Sales and Marketing Department)

HIOKI USA CORPORATION

6 Corporate Drive, Cranbury, NJ 08512, USA TEL +1-609-409-9109 FAX +1-609-409-9108 E-mail: hioki@hiokiusa.com URL http://www.hiokiusa.com

HIOKI (Shanghai) Sales & Trading Co., Ltd.

1608-1610, Shanghai Times Square Office 93 Huaihai Zhong Road Shanghai, P.R.China POSTCODE: 200021 TEL +86-21-63910090 / 63910092 FAX +86-21-63910360 E-mail: info@hioki.com.cn URL http://www.hioki.cn

Beijing Representative Office:

TEL +86-10-84418761 / 84418762 FAX +86-10-84418763 E-mail: info-bj@hioki.com.cn

Guangzhou Representative Office:

TEL +86-20-38392673 / 38392676 FAX +86-20-38392679 E-mail: info-gz@hioki.com.cn

HIOKI INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Khandela House, 24 Gulmohar Colony Indore 452 018 (M.P.), India TEL +91-731-4223901 / 4223902 FAX +91-731-4223903 E-mail: info@hioki.in URL http://www.hioki.in

HIOKI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD.

33 Ubi Avenue 3, #03-02 Vertex Singapore 408868 TEL +65-6634-7677 FAX +65-6634-7477 E-mail: info@hioki.com.sg

1104

Edited and published by Hioki E.E. Corporation Technical Support Section

- All reasonable care has been taken in the production of this manual, but if you find any points which are unclear or in error, please contact your supplier or the International Sales and Marketing Department at Hioki headquarters.
- In the interests of product development, the contents of this manual are subject to revision without prior notice.
- The content of this manual is protected by copyright. No reproduction, duplication or modification of the content is permitted without the authorization of Hioki E.E. Corporation.

Printed in Japan

Printed on recycled paper